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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

PART Item Business

THE COMPANY

The Dow Chemical Company was incorporated in 1947 under Delaware law and is the successor to Mtchigan corporation of the same name organized in

1897 Except as otherwise indicated by the context the terms Company or Dow as used herein mean The Dow Chemical Company and its consolidated

subsidiaries On April 2009 the merger of Rohm and Haas Company Rohm and Haas with subsidiary of the Company was completed and Rohm
and Haas became wholly owned subsidiary of Dow

Dow is diversified worldwide manufacturer and supplier of products used primarily as raw materials in the manufacture of customer products and

services The Company serves the following industries appliance automotive agricultural building and construction chemical processing electronics

furniture housewares oil and gas packaging paints coatings and adhesives personal care pharmaceutical processed foods pulp and paper textile and

carpet utilities and water treatment

The Companys principal executive offices are located at 2030 Dow Center Midland Michigan 48674 telephone 989636 1000 us Internet website

address is www.dow.com All of the Companys filings with the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission are available free of charge thruugh the Investur

Relations page on this website immediately upon filing

BUSINESS AND PRODUCTS

Corporate Profile

Dow combines the power of science and technology with the Human Element to passionately innovate what is essential to human progress The Company

connects chemistry and innovation with the principles of sustainabtlity to help address many of the worlds most challenging problems such as the need for

clean water renewable energy generation and conservation and increasing agricultural productivity Dows diversified industryleading portfolio
of

specialty chemical advanced materials agrosciences and plastics businesses deliver broad range of technologybased products and solutions to customers

in approximately 160 countries and in high growth sectors such as electronics water energy coatings and agriculture In 2010 Dow had annual sales of

$53.7 billion and employed approximately 50000 people worldwide The Companys more than 5000 products are manufactured at 188 sites in

35 countries across the globe The following descriptions of the Companys eight operating segments include representative listing of products for each

business

ELECTRONIC AND SPECIALTY MATERIALS

Applications chemical mechanical planarization CMP pads and slurries chemical processing aids nd intermediates electronic displays food

and pharmaceutical processing and ingredients home and personal care ingredients hygiene and infection control photolithography materials

printed circuit board materials process and materials preservation semiconductor packaging connectors and industrial finishing water purification

Dow Electronic Materials is leading global supplier of materials for chemical mechanical planarization materials used in the production of

electronic displays including brightness films diffusers metalorganic light emitting diode LED precursors and organic light emitting diode

OLED materials products and technologies that drive leading edge semiconductor design materials used in the fabrication of printed circuit

boards and integrated metallization processes critical for interconnection corrosion resistance metal
finishing

and decorative applications

These enabling materials are found in applications such as consumer electronics flat panel displays and telecommunications

Products ACuPLANE CMP slurries ARtM antireflective coatings AUROLECTROLESS immersion gold process COPPER

GLEAMTM acid copper plating products CYCLOTENE11 advanced electronics resins DURAPOSITTM electroless nickel process

ENLICHTTM products for photovoltaic manufacturers EPIC14 immersion photoresists INTERVIAThI photodtelectrics for advanced

packaging LITHOJETT4 digital imaging processes OPTOGRADETM metalorganic precursors VISIONPADT4 CMP pads
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Specialty Materials is portfolio of businesses characterized by vast global footprint broad array of unique chemistries multifunctional

ingredients and technology capabilities combined with key positions in the pharmaceuticals food home and personal care water and energy

production and industrial specialty industries These technology capabilities and market platforms enable the bustnesses to develop innovative

solutions that address modern societal needs for sufficient and clean waler air and energy material preservation and improved health care

disease prevention nutrition and wellness The businesses global footprint
and geographic reach provide multiple opportunities for value

growth Specialty Materials consists of five global businesses Dow Water and Process Solutions Dow Home and Personal Care Dow
Microbial Control Dow Wolff Cellulosics and Performance Materials

Products and Services Arrnlein derivatives ACTJDYNE hair fixative resins AC1JLYN rheology modifiers ACUMER scale

.nhibitors and dispersants ACUSOL detergent polymers dispersants opacifiers
and rheology modifiers AMBERCHROM

chromatography resins AMBERJET AMBERLITETM AMBERLYSTtM and DOWEXTM ion exchange resins ANGUS
nitroalkanes and derivatives AQUCAR water treatment microbiocides ASC METATIN dimethyltin catalyst AUTOMATETM

liquid dyes BIDBAN biocide for material preservation CELLOSIZE hydroxyethyl cellulose CLEARSTABLEtM

carboxymeihyl cellulose Divinylbenzene DOWTM electrodeionization DOWIM ultrafiltration DUOLITE pharmaceutical grade

resins DURAGREEN and DURAPLUStM floor care polymers ECOSMOOTH silk conditioning polymers ECOSURF4
biodegradable surfactants ETHOCELTM ethylcellulose polymers FILMTECTM reverse osmosis membrane elements GLUTEXTM
sanilizers and cleaners KATHON preservatives KLARIXTM algicides METHOCEL1M cellulose ethers NEOLONETM preservatives

for personal care OPULYN opacifiers POLYOX watersoluble resins PRIMENELM amines Quaternaries SATISFITTM Weight

Care Techqology SILVADUR1 antimicrobial Sodium borohydride products SOFTCATTM polymers SOLTERRA Boost

inorganic SPF booster SOLTEXTM waterproofing polymer SUNSPHERES SPF boosters UCARE polymers UCARHIDETM

opacifier UCON fluids VENPURE reducing agents VERSENE chelating agents Vinylbenzyl chloride VINYZENETM

antimicrobials for plastics WALOCEL cellulose polymers WALSRODERTM nitrocellulose ZinClear IM zinc oxide dispersions

The Electronic and Specialty Materials segment also includes the Companys share of the results of Dow Corning Corporation ajoint venture

of the Company

COATINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Applications building and construction insulation and weatherization roofing membrane systems adhesives and sealants cellulosicbased

construction additives construction materials vinyl siding vinyl windows vinyl fencing flexible and rigid packaging general mortars and

concrete cement modifiers and plasters tile adhesives and grouls house and traffic paints leather textile graphic arts and paper metal coatings

pipeline coatings processing aids for plastic production tapes and labels transportation and corrosion protection

Dow Adhesives and Functional Polymers is portfolio of businesses that primarily manufacture sticking and bonding solutions for wide

range of applications including adhesive tapes and paper labels flexible packaging and leather textile and imaging These products are

supported with market recognized bestinclass technical support and enduse application knowledge Many of the businesses waterborne

technologies are wellpositioned to support more environmentally preferred applications

Products ADCOTETM and AQUALAMtM laminating adhesives MOR_PREETM solveniless adhesives ROBOND
acrylic

adhesives SERFENETM barrier coatings Solventbased polyurethanes and polyesters TYMORTM lie resins
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Dow Building and Construction is comprised of three global businesses Dow Building Solutions Dow Constmction Chemicals and Dow
Solar Solutions which offer extensive lines of industryleading insulation housewrap sealant and adhesive products and systems as well as

construction chemtcal solutions and building integrated photovoltaics Through tts strong sales support customer service and technical

expertise Dow Building Solutions provides meaningful solutions for tmproving the energy effictency
in homes and buildings today while also

addressing the industrys emerging needs and demands Dow Construction Chemicals provides solutions for increased durability greater water

resistance and lower systems costs As leader in insulation solutions the businesses products help curb
escalating utility bills reduce

buildings carbon footprint and provide more comfortable indoor environment Dow Solar Solutions is focused on developing the next

generation of solar energy products to solve global energy challenges

Products AQUASET acrylic thermosetting resins CELLOSIZETM hydroxyethyl cellulose DOWTM latex powders
FROTHPAKTM polyurethane spray foam CREAT STUFFTM polyurethane foam sealant INSTASTIK roof insulation adhesive

METI-IOCELTM cellulose ethers POWERl-IOUSE solar shingle RHDPLEXTM aqueous acrylic polymer emulsions

STYROFOAMTM brand insulation products including extruded polystyrene and polyisocyanurate rigid
foam sheathing products

THERMAXTM insulation TILE BONDTM roof tile adhesive WEATHERMATETM weather barrier solutions housewraps sill pans

flashings
and tapes

Dow Coating Materials is the
largest coatings supplier

in the world and premier supplier of raw materials for architectural paints and

industrial coatings The business manufactures and delivers solutions that leverage high quality technologically advanced product offerings for

paint
and cnstings The husiness also offers technologies used in industrial coatings including packaging pipelines wood automotive marine

maintenance and protective industries The business is also the leader in the conversion of solvent to waterbased technologies which enable

customers to offer more environmentally friendly products including low volatile organic compound VOC paints
and other sustainable

coatings

Products ACRYSOLTM rheology modifiers AVANSETM ELASTENETM PRIMAV and RHOPLEX acrylics CELLOSIZETM

hydroxyethyl cellulose CELLOSOLVE and the CARBITOLTM and DOWANOL series of oxygenated solvents D.E.H.TM curing

agent and intermediates D.E.R.TM and D.E.N.TM liquid and epoxy resins FORTEGRA Epoxy Tougheners OROTAN and

TAMOIY diapersants ROPAQUETM opaque polymers TRITONTM TERGITOLTM DOWFAXTM and ECOSURF SA surfsctants

HEALTH AND AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES

Applications agricultural seeds traits genes and oils control of weeds insects and
plant

diseases for
agriculture

and
pest management

Dow AgroSciences is global leader in providing agricultural and
plant biotechnology products pest management solutions and healthy oils

The business tnvents develops manufactures and markets products for use in agriculture industrial and commercial pest management and

food servtce

Products ACROMEN seeds BRDDBECK seed CLINCHEW herbicide DAIRYLAND seed DELEGATW insecticide

DITHANETM fungicide Dow AgroSciences SmartStaxtM FORTRESS fungicide GARLONTM herbicide CLYPHOMAX
herbicide GRANITW herbicide HERCULEXTM HERCULEX RW and HERCULEX XTRA insect protection KEYSTONE
herbicides LAREDO fungicide LONTREL herbicide LORSBANTM insecticides MILESTONW herbicide MUSTANG
herbtctde MYCOGENTM seeds NEXERATM csnols and sunflower seeds PHYTOCENtM cottonseeds PROFUMETM gas fumigant

RENZE seed SENTRICONTM termite colony elimination system SIMPLICITY herbicide STARANETM herbicide TELONETM
soil fumigant TORDON herbicide TRACER NATURALYTETM tnsect control TRIUMPHTM seed VIKANE structural

fumigant WIDESTRTKETM insect
protection

The Health and Agricultural Sciences segment also includes the results of the AgroFresh business providing portfolio of products used for

maintaining the freshness of fruits vegetables and flowers
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PERFORMANCE SYSTEMS

Applications automotive interiors extertors underthehood and body engineered systems bedding caps and closures food and specialty

packagtng footwear furniture gaskets and sealing components manufactured housing and modular construction medical equipment mining

pipe treatment pressure sensitive adhesives transportation vinyl exteriors waterproofing membranes wire and cable insulation and jackettng

materials for power utility and telecommunications

Dow Automotive Systems is leading global provider of technologydriven solutions that meet consumer demand for vehicles that are safer

stronger quieter lighter more comfortable and stylish The business provides plastics adhesives glass bonding systems emissions control

technology films fluids structural enhancement and acoustical management solutions to original equipment manufacturers tier aftermarket

and comiriercial transportation customers With offices and application development centers around the world Dow Automotive Systems

provides materials science expertise and comprehensive technical
capabilities

to its customers worldwide

Products AERIFY diesel particulate filters BETAFOAMTM NVH acoustical foams BETAMATETM structural adhesives

ETASEAL glass bonding systems DOWTM polyethylene resins IMPAXX energy management foam INSPIRE performance

polymers INTEGRALTM adhesive films ISONATW pure and modified methylene diphenyl diisocyanate MDI products

PELLETHANETM thermoplastic polyurethane elastomers Premium brake fluids and lubricants SPECFLEXTM semiflexible

polyurethane foam systems

Dow Elastomers offers unique set of elastomers specialty films and plastic additive products for customers worldwtde The businoss is

focused on delivering innovative solutions that allow for differentiated participation in multiple industries and applications The business offers

broad range of performance elasiomers and plasiomers specially copolymers synthetic rubber specialty resins and films and plastic

additives Key applications include adhesives transportation building and construction packaging and consumer durables

Products ADVASTAB thermal stabilizer AFFINITYTM polyolefin plastomers POPs AMPLIFYTM functional polymers DOW
Adhesive Film DOW Backing Layer Film DOWTM Medical Device Film DOWTM Medical Packaging Film DOWTM very low

density polyethylene ENGAGETM polyolefin elaslomers ENLIGHT polyolefin encapsulani films INFUSE olefin block

copolymers INTEGRALTTM adhesive films NORDELTM hydrocarbon rubber NYLOPAKTM nylon barrier films OPTICITE films

FARALOID EXL impact modifier FRIMACOR copolymers FROCITE window envelope films SARAN111 barrier resins

SARANEXTM barrier films TRENCHCOAT11 protective films TRYGITETM polystyrene film TYBRITETTM clear packaging film

TYRIN1 chlorinated polyethylene VERSIFY1 plastomers and elastomers

Dow Formulated Systems manufactures and markets custom formulated rigid
and semirigid flexible integral skin and microcellular

polyurethane foams and systems and tailormade epoxy solutions and systems These products are used in broad range of applications

including appliances athletic equipment automotive bedding construction decorative molding furniture shoe soles and wind turbines

Products AIRSTONE111 epoxy systems Encapsulants and chemical compositions ENFORCERTM Technology and ENHANCERTM

Technology for polyurethane carpet and turf backing HYPERKOTETTM TRAFFIDECK11 and VERDISEALTTM waterproofing systems

HYPOLLM hydrophilic polyurethane prepolymers RENUVAtM Renewable Resource Technology SPECFILtM urethane components
SPECFLEXTM copolymer polyols SPECTRIMTM reaction moldable products VORACOR11 and VORALASTTh1 polyurethane

systems and VORALASTTM renewable content system VORAMERTM industrial adhesives and binders VORASTARTM polymers
XITRACK111 polyurethane rail ballast stabilization systems
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Dow Wire and Cable is the worlds leading provider of polymers additives and specialty
oil technologybased solutions for electrical and

telecommunication applications Through its suite of polyolefin ENDURANCETM products the business sets industry standards for assurance

of longevity efficiency ease of installation and protection in the transmission distribution and consumption of power voice and data In

addition to worldclass power telecommunications and flame retardant/specialty cable applications the business supports its produci offerings

with solid research product development engineering and market validation expertise

Products ENGAGETM polyolefin elastomers NORDELTM hydrocarbon rubber SILINKTM and REDILINK moisture

crosslinkable polyethylenebased wire and cable insulation compounds TYRIN chlorinated polyethylene UNIGARDTh flame

retardant compound for specialty wire and cable applications

The Performance Systems segment also includes the results of Dow Fiber Solutions providing differentiated fibers and process improvements

to the textile industry and Dow Oil and Gas providing products for use in exploration and production refining and gas processing

transportation and fuel and lubricant performance

On March 2010 Dow announced the entry into definitive agreement to sell Styron to an affiliate of Bain Capital Partners the transaction

closed on June 17 2010 Businesses and products sold included Synthetic Rubber and certain products from Dow Automotive Systems which

were reported in the Performance Systems segment through the date of the divestiture

PERFORMANCE PRODUCTS
Applications adhesives aircraft and runway deicing fluids appliances carpeting chelating agents chemical intermediates civil engineering

cleaning products coated paper and paperboard composites construction corrosion inhibitors detergents cleaners and fabric sofieners

electrical castings potting and encapsulation and tooling electrical laminates electronics flavors and fragrances flooring footwear gas

treatment heat transfer fluids home and office furnishings industrial coatings mattresses metalworking fluids packaging sealants

surfactants

The Amines business is the worlds largest producer of ethanolamines ethyleneamines and isopropanolamines used in wide variety of

applications including gas treatment heavyduty liquid detergents herbicide formulations for the agricultural industry and personal care

products

Products Alkyl alkanolamtnes Ethanolamines Ethyleneamines Isopropanolamines Piperazine VERSENE chelating agents

The Emulsion Polymers business provided broad line of styrenebutadiene products supporting customers in paper and paperboard

applications as well as carpet and artificial turf backings

On March 2010 Dow announced the entry into definitive agreement to sell Styron to an affiliate of Bain Capital Partners the

transaction clnaed on June 17 2010 Businesses sold included Emulsion Polymers styrenebutadiene latex which was reported in the

Performance Products segment through the date of the divestiture

The Epoxy business is the worlds
largest producer of epoxy resins and intermediates The busiress is the most feedstockintegrated supplier in

the world Epoxies provide good adhesion and coating protection over range of environmental conditions making them ideal for applications

such as transportation marine and civil engineering

Products D.E.HJ epoxy curing agents or hardeners D.E.N epoxy novolac resins D.E.R.TM epoxy resins liquids solids and

solutions Epoxy intermediates acetone sllyl chloride epichiorohydrin and phenol Epoxy resin waterborne emulsions and

dispersions FORTEGRA epoxy tougheners Gtycidyl methacrylate GMA



Table of Contents

The Oxygenated Solvents business offers full range of acetone derivatives alcohols esters and ethylene and propylenebased glycol ether

products The business is the industry leader in solvent products used tn cleaning products inks electronics mining paints and coatings

personal care and other applications

Products Acetic esters Acetone derivatives Alcohols Aldehydes Butyl CARBITOL11 and Butyl CELLOSOLVE solvents

Carboxylic acids DOWANOL1 glycol ethers BCOSOFTtM 1K solvent PROGLYDE1 DMM solvent UCAR1 propionates

The Performance Monomers business produces specialty monomer products that are sold externally as well as consumed internally as

building blocks used in downstream polymer businesses The business products are used in several applications including cleaning materials

personal care products paints coatings and inks

Pro4ucts Acrylic acid/acrylic esters ACUMERTM ACUSOLTM DURAMAXTM OPTIDOSBTM ROMAX1 and TAMOLTM

dispersants Methyl methacrylate

The Polyglycols Surfactants and Fluids business is one of the worlds leading suppliers of polyglycols and surfactants wtth broad range of

products and technology and proven record of performance and economy The business also produces broad line of lubricants hydraulic

fluids aircraft deicing fluids and thermal fluids with some of the most recognized brand names in the industry Product applications include

chemical processing cleaning heating cooling food and beverage processing fuel additives paints and coatings pharmaceuticals and silicone

surfactanis

Products AMBITROL1 and NORKOOL coolants CARBOWAXTM and CARBOWAX SENTRY1 polyethylene glycols and

methoxypOlyethylene glycols DOW1 polypropylene glycols DOW SYMBIO base fluid DOWPAX1 TERGITOLTM and

TRITON1 surfactants DOWFROST and DOWTHERMTM heat transfer fluids ECOSURP1 biodegradable surfactants

SYNALOXTM lubricants UCAR1 deicing fluids UCONTM fluids

The Polyurethanes business is leading global producer of polyurethane raw materials Dows polyurethane products are used in broad range

of applications including appliance athletic equipment automotive bedding construction decorative molding furniture and shne soles

Products ECHELON1 polyurethane prepolymer ISONATETM methylene dtphenyl diisocyanate MDI MONOTHANEtM single

component polyurethane elaslomers PAPI1 polymeric MDI Propylene glycol Propylene oxide RENUVATM Renewable Resource

Technology VORANATETM isocyanate VORANOLTM VORACTIVTM polyether and copolymer polyols

The Performance Products segment also includes the results of Dow Haltermann provider of worldclass contract manufacturing services to

companies in the fine and specialty chemicals and polymers industries and SAPECHEM wholly owned subsidiary that manufactures

closedloop systems to manage the risks associated with chlorinated solvents The segment also includes portion of the results of the

OPTIMAL Group of Companies through the September 30 2009 divesttture of this group ofjoint ventures and the 5CCDow Group joint

ventures of the Company

PLASTICS

Applications adhesives appliances and appliance housings agricultural
films automotive

parts
and trim beverage bottles bins crates pails

and

pallets building and construction coatings consumer and durable goods consumer electronics disposable diaper liners fibers and nonwovens

films bags and packaging for food and consumer products hoses and tubing household and industrial bottles housewares hygiene and medical

films industrial and consumer films and foaiis information technulugy oil tanks and road equipment plastic pipe textiles toys playground

equipment and recreational products wire and cable compounds
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The Polyethylene business is the worlds leading supplter of polyethylenebased solutions through sustainable product differentiation With

multiple catalyst and process technologies the business offers customers one of the industrys broadest ranges of polyethylene resins

Products ASPUNTM fiber grade resins ATTANETM ultra low density polyethylene ULDPE resins CONTINUUMTM bimodal

polyethylene resins DOWTM high density polyethylene HDPE resins DOWrM low density polyethylene LDPE resins DOWLEXtM

polyethylene resins ELITETM enhanced polyethylene EVE resins TUPLIN1 linear low denstty polyethylene LLDPE resins

UNIVAL HDPE resins

The Polypropylene business major global polypropylene supplier provides broad range of products and solutions tailored to customer

needs by leveraging Dows leading manufacturing and application technology research and product development expertise extensive market

knowledge and strong customer relationships

Products DOW homopolymer polypropylene resins DOWTI impact copolymer polypropylene resins DOW random copolymer

polypropylene resins INSPIRW performance polymers UNIPOLTM PP process technology SHAC and SHACTM ADT
catalyst

systems

The Styrenics business the global leader in the production of polystyrene resins is uniquely positioned with geographic breadth and

parlicipation in diversified portfolio of applications

Products Licensing and supply of related catalysts process conirul sufiware and services for the Mass ABS process technology

STYRON ATECH and CTECH advanced technology polystyrene resins and full line of STYRONTM general purpose

polystyrene resins STYRONTM highimpact polystyrene resins

On March 2010 Dow announced the entry into definitive agreement to sell Slyron to an affiliate of Bain Capital Partners the

transaction closed on June 17 2010 Businesses sold included Styrenics polystyrene acrylonitrile butadiene styrene styrene

acrylonilrile and expandable polystyrene Polycarbonate and Compounds and Blends as well as the Companys 50percent ownership

interest in Americas Slyrenics LLC nonconsolidated affiliate all of which were reported in the Plastics segment through the dale of

the divestilure

The Plastics segment also includes the results of the Plastics Licensing and Catalyst business and the Polycarbonale and Compounds and

Blends business through the June 17 2010 divestiture of Styron It also includes the results of Equipolymers Americas Styrenics LLC

through the june 17 2010 divestiture of Styron and Untvation Technologies LLC which licenses the UNIPOL polyethylene process and

sells related catalysts including metallocene catalysts as well as portion of the results of EQUATE Petrochemical Company K.S.C The

Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C and the 5CCDow Group all joint ventures of the Company

CHEMICALS AND ENERGY
Applications agricultural products alumina automotive antifreeze and coolant systems carpet and textiles chemical processing dry cleaning
household cleaners and plastic products inks metal cleaning packaging food and beverage containers paints coatings and adhesives personal

care products petroleum refining pharmaceuticals plastic pipe powers protective packaging pulp and paper manufacturing soapa and

detergents water treatment

The ChlorAlkaIiIChlorVinyl business focuses on the production of chlorine for consumption by downstream Dow derivatives as well as

production marketing and supply of ethylene dichloride vinyl chloride monomer and caustic soda These products are used for applications

such as alumina production pulp and paper manufacturing soaps and detergents and building and construction Dow is the worlds largest

producer of both chlorine and caustic soda

Products Caustic soda Chlorine Ethylene dichioride EDC Hydrochloric acid Vinyl chloride monomer VCM
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The Energy business supplies power steam and other utilities principally for use in Dows global operations

Products Power steam and other utilities

The Ethylene Oxide/Ethylene Glycol business is the worlds
largest producer of

purified ethylene oxide principally used in Dows
downstream performance derivatives Dow is also key supplier of ethylene glycol to MEGlobal 5050

joint
venture and world leader in

the manufacture and marketing of merchant monoethylene glycol and diethylene glycol Ethylene glycol ia used in polyester fiber polyethylene

terephihalate PET for food and beverage container applications polyester film and aircraft and runway deicers

Products Ethylene oxide EU Ethylene glycol EG METEORTM EO/EG process technology and
catalysts

The Chnicals and Energy segment also includes the results of Ihe Chlorinated Organics business Also included in the Chemicals and Energy

segment are the results of MEGlobal and portion of the results of EQUATE Petrochemical Company K.S.C The Kuwait Olefins Company
K.S.C and the OPTIMAL Group of Companies through the September 30 2009 divestiture of this group ofjoint ventures all joint ventures

of the Company

HYDROCARBONS
Applications polymer and chemical production

The Hydrocarbons business encompasses the procurement of natural gas liquids and crude oilbased raw materials as well as the supply of

monomers principally
for use in Dows global operations The business regularly sells its byproducts and buys and sells products in order to

balance regional production capabilities
and derivative requirements The business also sells products to certain Dow joint ventures Dow is the

world leader in the production of olefins and aromatics

Products Benzene Butadiene Butylene Cumene Ethylene Propylene Styrene

The Hydrocarbons segment also includes the results of Compania Mega S.A and porlion of the results of The Kuwait Olefins Company
K.S.C and the 5CCDow Group joint ventures of the Company

On March 2010 Dow announced the entry into definitive agreement to sell Styron to an affiliate of Bain Capital Partners the transaction

closed on June 17 2010 Businesses and products sold included certain styrene monomer assets which were reported in the Hydrocarbons

segment through the date of the divestiture

Corporate includes the results of Ventures which includes new business incubation platforms focused on identifying and pursuing new commercial

opportunities Venture Capital nonbusiness aligned technology licensing and
catalyst activities the Companys insurance operations and

environmental operations and certain corporate overhead costs and cost recovery variances not allocated to the operating segments In 2009

Corporate also included the results of the Salt business which the Company acquired with the April 2009 acquisition of Rohm and Haas and sold to

K-i.S Aktiengesellschaft on October 2009

Industry Segments and Geographic Area Results

See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information by operating segment and geographic area
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Competition

Historically the chemical industry has operated tn competitive environment and that environment is expected to conttnue The Company experiences

substantial competition in each of its nperating segments and in each of the geographic areas in which it operates In addition to nther chemical rnmpanies
the chemical divisions of major national and international oil companies advanced material suppliers and producers of crop protection chemicals and

agricultural biotechnology provide substantial competition in the United States and abroad Dow competes worldwide on the basis of quality technology

price and customer service and for 2010 continued to be the
largest

U.S producer of chemicals and plastics in terms of sales

Raw Materials

The Company operates in an integrated manufacturing environment Basic raw materials are processed through many stages to produce number of

products that are sold as finished goods at various points in those processes

The two major raw material streams that feed the integrated productton of the Companys finished goods are chlorinebased and hydrocarbonbased
raw materials

Salt limestone and natural brine are the base raw materials used in the production of chloralkalt products and derivatives The Company owns salt

deposits in Louisiana and Texas Alberta Canada Brazil and Germany

The Company purchases hydrocarbon raw materials tncluding liquefied petroleum gases crude oil naphtha natural gas and condensate These raw

materials are used in the production of both saleable products and energy The Company also purchases electric power benzene ethylene and propylene to

supplement internal production Expenditures for hydrocarbon feedstocks and energy accounted for 41 percent of the Companys production costs and

operating expenses for the year ended December 31 2010 The Company purchases these raw materials on both short and longterm contracts

Dther
significant raw materials include acetone aniline phenol styrene methanol carbon black ammonia formaldehyde and acetic acid The

Company purchases these raw materials on both short and long term contracts

The Company had adequate supplies of raw materials during 2010 and expects to conttnue to have adequate supplies of raw materials in 2011

Method of Distribution

All products and services are marketed primarily through the Companys sales force although in some instances more emphasis is placed on sales through

distributors

Twentynine percent of the sales of the Chemicals and Energy segment in 2010 were to one customer with which the Company has an ongoing

supply contract In addition excess ethylene glycol produced in Dows plants in the United States and Europe is sold to MEGlobal 5050
joint venture

with Petrochemical Industries Company K.S.C of Kuwait Sales to MEGlobal represented approximately 10 percent of Ihe sales in the Chemicals and

Energy segment in 2010 Twentyfive percent of the sales of the Hydrocarbons segment in 2010 were to two other customers with which the Company has

ongoing supply contracts Other than the sales to these customers no significant portion of the business of any operating segment is dependent upon single

customer

No single product accounted for more than percent of the Companys consolidated net sales in 2010

Research and Development
The Company is engaged in continuous program of basic and applied research to develop new products and processes to improve and refine existing

products and processes and to develop new applications for
existing products Research and development expenses were $1660 million in 2010

$1492 million in 2009 and $1310 million in 2008 At December 31 2010 the Company employed approximately 6300 people in various research and

development activities
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Patents Licenses and Trademarks
The Company continually applies for and obtains U.S and foreign patents At December 31 2010 the Company owned 3609 active U.S patents and

14028 active foreign patents as follows

Patents Owned at December 31 2010

US Foreign

Electronic and Specially Materials

Coatings and Infrastructure

Health and Agricultural Sciences

Performance Systems

Performance Products

Plastics

Chemicals and Energy

Hydrocarbons

Corporate

988

513

573

744

330

215

26

14

206

3063

2625
1882

3311

1465
931

106

102

543

Total 3609 14028

Dows primary purpose in obtaining patents is to protect the results of its research for use in operations and licensing Dow is also party to

substantial number of
patent

licenses and other technology agreements The Company had revenue related to patent and technology royalties totaling

$191 million in 2010 $269 million in 2009 and $307 million in 2008 The Company incurred
royalties

to others of $111 million in 2010 $102 million in

2009 and $60 million in 2008 Dow also has substantial number of trademarks and trademark registrations
in the United States and in other countries

including the Dow in Diamond trademark Although the Company considers that its patents licenses and trademarks in the aggregate constitute valuable

asset it does not regard its business as being materially dependent upon any single patent license or trademark

Principal Partly Owned Companies
Dows principal nonconsolidated affiliates at December 31 2010 including direct or indirect ownership interest for each are listed below

Compania Mega S.A 28 percent an Argentine company that owns natural gas separation and fractionation plant which provides

feedstocks to the Companys petrochemical plant located tn Bahia Blanca Argentina

Dow Corntng Corporation 50 percent U.S company that manufactures silicone and silicone products See Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

EQUATE Petrochemical Company K.S.C 42.5 percent Kuwaitbased company that manufactures ethylene polyethylene and ethylene

glycol

Equtpolymers 50 percent company headquartered in Horgen Switzerland that manufactures purified terephthalic acid and manufactures

and markets polyethylene terephthalate resins

The Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C 42.5 percent Kuwait based company that manufactures ethylene and ethylene glycol

MEClobal 50 percent company headquartered in Dubai United Arab Emirates that manufactures and markets monoethylene glycol and

diethylene glycol

The SCGDow Group of Siam Polyethylene Company Limited 49 percent Siam Polystyrene Company Limited 50 percent

Siam Styrene Monomer Co Ltd 50 percent Siam Synthetic Latex Company Limited 50 percent Thatlandbased companies that

manufacture polyethylene polystyrene styrene and latex

Univation Technologies LLC 50 percent U.S limited liability company that develops markets and licenses polyethylene process

technology and related catalysts

See Note to the Consolidatel Financial Statements for additional information
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Financial Information About Foreign and Domestic Operations and Export Sales

In 2010 the Company derived 67 percent of its sales and had 52 percent of its property investment outstde the United States While the Companys
international operations may be subject to number of additional risks such as changes in currency exchange rates the Company does not regard its foreign

operations on the whole as carrying any greater risk than its operations in the United States Information on sales and longlived assets by geographic area

for each of the last three years appears in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements and discussions of the Companys risk management program
for

foreign exchange and interest rate risk management appear in Part Item 1A Risk Factors Part II Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About

Market Risk and Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Protection of the Environment

Matters pertaining to the environment are discussed in Part Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and Notes and to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employees
Personnel count was 49505 at December 31 2010 52195 at December 31 2009 and 46102 at December 31 2008 l-Ieadcount decreased from yearend
2009 primarily due to diveslitures including Slyron the Powder Coatings business and portion of the Companys acrylic monomer and

specialty
latex

businesses as well as actions taken related to the
integration

of Rohm and I-Iaas and previously announced restructuring plans Personnel count at

December 31 2009 was up from 46102 at December 31 2008 primarily due to the acquisition of Rohm and Haas offset by derlines related In

restructuring activities business diveslitures and personnel transfers to joint venture

Other Activities

Dow engages in the property and casually insurance and reinsurance business primarily through its Liana Limited subsidiaries
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Set forth below is information related to the Companys executive officers as of February 11 2011

WILLIAM BANHOLZER 54 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT VENTURES NEW BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT LICENSING AND CHIEF

TECHNOLOGY OFFICER Employee of Dow since 2005 General Electric Company Chemical Engineer 19831989 Laboratory Manager and Leader

RD Cenier 19891992 Engineering Manager of Superabrasives Business 19921997 Vice President of Global Engineering GE Lighting 19971999

Vice President of Global Technology GE Advanced Materials 19992005 Dow Corporate Vice President and Chief Technology Officer 20052009

Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer 2009 to date Venturea New Business Development Licensing May 2009 to date Director of

Dow Corning Corpoiatton Dow Kokam LLCt and Mycogen Corporalion Member of the Dow AgroSciences LLC Members Committee and the Dow

Corning Corporation Corp.orate Responsibility Committee Elected to the U.S National Academy of Engineering NAE 2002 Elected NAE Counctlor

2005 Member of American Chemical Society and American Institute of Chemical Engineers Advisory Board member for chemistry and chemical

engineering at Massachusetts Institute of Technology and University of California Berkeley

RONALD EDMONDS 53 VICE PRESIDENT AND CONTROLLER Employee of Dow since 1992 Arthur Anderson Co 1979-1982 The Upjohn

Company 19821991 Chtquita Brands International 19911992 Dow Latin America Audit Manager 19921994 Latin America Payables Controller

19941997 Global Payables Controller 19971998 Global Procurement Service Center Leader 19982001 Global Accounting Director 20012007
Bustness Pinance Vice President for Performance Plastics and Chemicals and Market Facing Businesses 2007 to june 2009 Vice President and Assistant

Controller july 2009 to November 2009 Vice President and Controller November 2009 to date Director of Dorinco Reinsurance Company DSL Holdings

Inc and Liana Limiled Director of the Midland Center for the Arts Member of Financial Executives International Committee on Corporate Reporting

the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Michigan Association of Certified Public Accountants

JAMES PITTERLING 49 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND PRESIDENT PLASTICS AND HYDROCARBONS Employee of Dow since

1984 Commercial Director Liquid Separation Dow Pacific 19941998 Global Business Director Liquid Separations and President and CEO of FilmTec

Corporation5 19982000 Chief Executive Officer of The OPTIMAL Group 20022005 with added responsibility for the Southeast Asia and Australia

region in 2004 Business Vice President Polyethylene 20052007 President Basic Plastics 20072009 Vice President Corporate Development 2009 to

August 2010 Dow Executive Vice President and President Plastics and Hydrocarbons August 2010 to date Chairman and Director of Untvalion

Technologies LLC.5 Board member of Chemical Financial Corporation and the Midland Country Club

GREGORY FREIWALD 57 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT HUMAN RESOURCES AND CORPORATE AFFAIRS AND AVIATION

Employee of Dow since 1979 Human Resources Manager Chemical Performance BusinessU.S Region 19921993 Human Resources Director for

Executive Finance Law and Corporate 19931994 Latin America Human Resources and Quality Performance Director 19941996 Latin America Human

Resources Leader and PBBPolisur S.A Human Resources Integration Leader 19961997 Global Human Resources Resources Center Director

19972001 Senior Human Resources Director for Global Human Resources Resource Center and Human Resources Director for Geographic Council

2001 2004 Human Resources Vice President Operations 2004 2005 Human Resources Vice President 20052006 Vice President Corporate Affairs and

Executive Compensation 20062007 Senior Vice President Human Resources and Corporate Affairs 20082009 Executive Vice President Human

Resources Corporate Affairs and Aviation 2009 to dale
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MICHAEL GAMBRELL 56 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT MANUFACTURING AND ENGINEERING OPERATIONS Employee of Dow since

1976 Business Director for the North America ChlorAlkali Assets Business 1989 1992 General Manager for the Plastic Lined Pipe Business 19921994

Vice President of Operations for Latin America 1994 1996 Corporate Director Technology Centers and Global Process Engineering 19961998 Global

Business Director GhlorAlkali Assets Business 19982000 Business Vice President EDG/VGM ECU Management 20002003 Business Vice

President ChlorVinyl Bustness 2003 Senior Vice President Chemicals and Intermediates 20032005 Executive Vice President Basic Plastics and

Chemicals Portfolio 20052007 Executive Vice President Basic Plastics and Chemicals and Manufacturing and Engineering 20072009 Executive Vice

President Manufacturing and Engineering Operations 2009 to date Exofficio member of the Dow Board of Directors Environment Health and Safety

Committee Board member of Oman Petrochemical Industries Company LLG Director of TRW Automotive Holdings Corporation Director of the

National Association of Manufacturers Director Emeritus of the U.SIndia Business Council Member of the U.S Department of Commerces

Manufacturing Council Member of the University of Michigan Advisory Engineering Council Recipient of the Presidents Distinguished Career Award

from RoseHulman Institute of Technology 1996

HEINZ HALLER 55 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEP COMMERCIAL OPPICER Employee of Dow 1980-1994 and since 2006

Marketing manager Chlorinated Solvents 19841985 Frankfurt Sales office manager and Regional manager Emulsion Polymers and Specialty Chemicals

19861989 Dow business operations manager Emulsion Polymers New Ventures and Plastic Lined Pipe 19891992 Global business director Emulsion

Polymers 19931994 Managing Director and member of the board OMYAPluss Stsufer AG 1994 1999 Chief Executive Officer Red Bull Sauber AG
and Sauber Petronas Engineering AG 20002002 Managing Director Alltanz Capital Partners GmbH 20022006 Dow Corporate Vice President Strategic

Development and New Ventures 20062007 Executive Vice President Performance Plastics and Chemicals 211072009 Exerltve Vice President Health

Agriculture and Infrastructure Group February 2009 to May 2009 Executive Vice President Performance Systems May 2009 to August 2010 Chief

Commercial Officer August 201010 date Director of Mycogen Corporatton Dow Kokam LLC and Dow Corning Gorporstton Chairman of the Dow

AgroSciences LLG Members Committee Director of the Michigan Molecular Institute

CHARLES KALIL 59 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT LAW AND GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS GENERAL COUNSEL AND CORPORATE

SECRETARY Employee of Dow since 1980 U.S Department of Justice Assistant U.S Attorney Eastern District of Michigan 19771980 General

Counsel of Petrokemya former 5050
joint

venture of the Company 19821983 Regional Counsel to Mtddle East/Africa 19831986 Senior

Environmental Attorney 19861987 Litigation Staff Counsel and Group Leader 19871990 Senior Financial Law Counsel Mergers and Acquisitions

19901992 General Counsel and Area Director of Government and Public Affairs for Dow Latin America 19921997 Special Counsel and Manager of

INSITETM legal issues 19972000 Assistant General Counsel for Corporate and Financial Law 20002003 Associate General Counsel for Corporate Legal

Affairs 20032004 Dow Corporate Vice President and General Counsel 20042007 Senior Vice President and General Counsel 20072008 Executive

Vice President and General Counsel 2008 to date Corporate Secretary 2005 to date Board member of Dow Corning Corporation Dorinco Reinsurance

Company Liana Limited and Oman Petrochemical Industries Company LLG Member of the Conference Boards Council of Chief Legal Officers

Member of the American Bar Association District of Columbia Bar and the Stale Bar of Michigan Board member of Institute for Legal Reform U.S

Chamber of Commerce Recipient of 2010 Bridge Builder of the Year Award American Arab Chamber of Commerce
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DAVID KEPLER 58 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT BUSINESS SERVICES CHIEF SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER AND CHIEF

INFORMATION OFFICER Employee of Dow since 1975 Computer Services Mansger of Dow U.S.A Esstern Division 19841988 Commercial Director

of Dow Canada Performance Products 19891991 Director of Pacific Area Information Systems 19911993 Manager of Informatton Technology for

Chemicals and Plastics 19931994 Director of Global Information Systems Services 19941995 Director of Global Information Applicatton 19951998

Vice President 19982000 Chief Information Officer 1998 to date Corporate Vice President with
responsibility

for eBustness 2000 to date Responsibility

for Advanced Electronic Materials 20022003 Responsibility for Business Services Customer Service Information Systems Purchasing Six Sigma

Supply Chain 2004 to date Senior Vice President with added responsibility for EHS 2006 to date Chief
Sustainability

Officer 2007 to date Executive

Vice President 2008 to date Director of Dorinco Reinsurance Company and Liana Limited Director of Teradata Corporation Chairman of the

MidMichigan Innovation Center Board of Directors Member of U.S Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors and American Chemistry Council Board of

Directors Member of the U.S National Infrastructure Advisory Council the American Chemical Society the American Institute of Chemical Engineers

and the University of California Board of Trustees

ANDREW UVERI5 56 PRESIDENT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR SINCE 2004 Employee of Dow since 1976

General manager of Dows Thailand operations 19891992 Group business director for Emulsion Polymers and New Ventures 19921993 General

manager of Dows startup businesses in Environmental Services 19931994 Vice President of Dows start up businesses in Environmental Services

19941995 President of Dow Chemical Pacific Limited 19951998 Vice President of Specialty Chemicals 19982000 Business Group President for

Performance Chemicals 20002003 President and Chief Operating Officer 20032004 President and Chief Executive Officer 2004 to date and Chairman

2006 to date Director of Citigroup Inc and International Business Machines Corporation Chairman of the International Council of Chemical Associations

Vice Chairman of the U.S Business Council Past Chairman of the U.SChina Business Council and American Chemistry Council Member of the

Presidents Export Council the American Australian Association the Business Roundtable the U.SIndia CEO Forum and the Peterson Institute for

International Economics Member of the Board of Trustees of Tufts University

JUAN LUCIANO 49 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND PRESIDENT PERFORMANCE DIVISION Employee of Dow since 1985 Sales

Marketing Manager Specialty Chemicals 19941996 Senior Marketing Manager for the Americas Polyglycols within Specialty Chemicals Portfolio

19961999 Business Director Chelants Specialty Chemicals 19992000 Global Business Director LDPE/PRIMACOR/SARAN/Slurry PE

20002001 Global Business Director Polypropylene 20012004 Business Vice President Engineering Polymers 20042006 Global Business Vice

President Olefins sod Aromatics 20062007 Business Group President Hydrocarbons and Energy 20072008 Senior Vice President Hydrocarbons sod

Energy Basic Plastics and Joint Ventures 2008 to August 2010 Dow Executive Vice President and President Performance Division August 2010 to dale

Members Committee of Dow Hydrocarbons and Resources LLC

JAMES MCILVENNY 52 GROUP SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT MEGA PROJECTS Employee of Dow since 1982 Business Manager Separation

Systems 19891994 Director of Marketing Sales and Service Liquid Separations 19941995 Global Business Director Liquid Separations 19951998

President and Chief Executive Officer FilmTec Corporation 19951998 President and Chief Executive Officer Hampshire Chemical Corp 19982001

Business Vice President Specialty Polymers 20012004 President Greater China 20042006 President Dow Asia Pacific sod Greater China 20062008

Senior Vice President Performance Products 2009 to August 2010 Dow Group Senior Vice President Mega Projects August 2010 to dale

CEOFFERY MERSZEI 59 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT PRESIDENT OF DOW EUROPE MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA AND CHAIRMAN
OF DOW EUROPE Employee of Dow 19772001 and since 2005 Dow Middle East/Africa Credit Manager 19771980 Dow Asia Pacific Credit

Manager 19801982 Dow Asia Pacific Finance and Credit Manager 19821983 Dow Germany and Eastern Europe Treasurer 19831986 Dow Foreign

Exchange Manager l986l9S8 Director of Finance for Dow Asia Pacific 19881991 Director 01 Finance/Treasurer for Dow Europe 19911996 Dow

Vice President and Treasurer 19962001 Alcan Inc Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 20012005 Dow Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer 20052009 Board member of The Dow Chemical Company 20052009 President of Dow Europe Middle East and Africa and

Chairman of Dow Europe 2009 to date Member of the European Chemical Industry Council Board and Executive Committee
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JEROME PERIBERE 56 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DOW ADVANCED
MATERIALS Employee of Dow since 1977 Regional Markeiing Manager of Eastern Europe 19821985 Regional Manager for the Middle Easi and

Africa 19851988 European Agricultural Business Director 19881989 European Agricultural Commercial Director 19891993 Agricultural Global

Commercial Director 19931997 Corporate Strategy Leader for Dow AgroSciences 19971998 Vice President of Weed Management Global Business

Unit and European Trade Area 19982002 Vice President Agricultural Chemicals 20022004 President and Chief Executive Officer of Dow

AgroSciences 20042009 Dow Executive Vice President and President and Chief Executive Officer Dow Advanced Materials 2009 to date Board

member of Harris Financial Corporation and the United Way of Southeastern Pennsylvania Member of the Greater Philadelphia Chamber of Commerce

FERNANDO RUIZ 55 CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT AND TREASURER Employee of Dow since 1980 Treasurer Ecuador Region 19821984

Treasurer Mexico Region 19841988 Financial Operations Manager Corporate Treasury 19881991 Assistant Treasurer USA Area 19911992 Senior

Finance Manager Corporate Treasury 1992 1996 Assistant Treasurer 19962001 Corporate Director of Insurance and Risk Management 2001 Corporate

Vice President and Treasurer 2001 to date President and Chief Executive Officer Liana Limited and Dorinco Reinsurance Company 2001 to date

President of Dow Credit Corporation5 2001 to date Director of Dow Financial Services Inc.5 Member of Financial Executives International and Michigan

State University Eli Broad College of Business Advisory Board Member of DeVry Inc Board of Directors

WILLIAM WEIDEMAN 56 EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER Employee of Dow since 1976 Controller of

Texas Operations 19941996 Global Business Controller for Specially Chemicals 19961998 Global Finance Director for Specialty Chemicals

199820011 Global Finanre Director for Performance Chemicals 20002004 Finance Vice President Chemicals and Intermediates and Dnw Ventures

20042006 Group Finance Vice President for Basic Chemicals and Plastics Portfolio 2006 Vice President and Controller 2006 to November 2009 Vice

President and Interim Chief Financial Officer November 200910 March 2010 Dow Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 2010 to

date Director of Dow Corning Corporetion5 Diamond Capital Management Inc.5 Dorinco Reinsursnce Company5 and Liana Limited.5 Member of the

Dow AgroSciences LLC5 Members Committee Director of the Dow Chemical Employees Credit Union end Family sod Childrens Services of Midland

Board and finance committee member of Mid Michigan Health Member of Central Michigan University Accounting Advisory Commiltee and Central

Michigan University Development Board

CAROL WILLIAMS 52 GROUP SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT AND PRESIDENT CHEMICALS AND ENERGY DIVISION Employee of Dow
since 1980 Director of Analytical Science Lab 19931995 Global RD Director Epoxy Products and Intermedistes Business 1995 1999 North America

Chior Alkali Assets Business Operations Leader Site Leader 19992000 Business Vice President ChlorAlksli Assets 20002003 Vice President Global

Purchasing 20032004 RD Vice President Hydrocarbons Energy Chemicals Intermediates and Corporate RD 20042005 Vice President

Business Development Market Facing Businesses 20052006 Vice President RD Performance Plastics Chemicals Portfolio 20062007 Corporate

Vice President Market Facing Business Development and Licensing 20072008 Senior Vice President Basic Chemicals Division 2008 to August 2010

Dow Group Senior Vice President and President Chemicals sod Energy Division August 2010 to date Advisory Board member Engineering Department at

Carnegie Mellon University Member of Society of Women Engineers Member of American Institute of Chemical Engineers Chairperson of the World

Chlorine Council

number of Company enlities are referenced in the biographies and are defined as follows Some of these entities have had various names over the

years The names and relationships to the Company unless otherwise indicated are slated in this footnote as they existed as of February 11 2011 Dow
Koksm LLC ullimalely 45 percent owned by Dow Dow Corning Corporation Oman Petrochemical Industries Company LLC and Univation

Technologies LLC companies ultimately 50 percent owned by Dow Diamond Capital Management Inc Dorinco Reinsursnce Company Dow

Agro5ciences LLC Dow Chemical Pacific Limited Dow Credit Corporation Dow Financial Services Inc Dow Hydrocarbons and Resources LLC
DSL Holdings Inc FilmTec Corporation Hampshire Chemical Corp Liens Limited Mycogen Corporation end PBBPoIisur S.A all ultimately

wholly owned subsidiaries of Dow Ownership by Dow described above may be either direct or indirect
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

PART Item 1A Risk Factors

The factors described below represent the Companys principal
risks

Global Economic Conditions The Company operates in global competitive environment which gives rise to operating and market risk

exposure
The Company sells tts broad range of products and services in competitive global environment and competes worldwide for sales on the basts of product

quality price technology and customer service Increased levels of competition could result in lower
prices or lower sales volume which could have

negative impact on the Companys results of operations

Economic conditions around the world and in certain industries tn which the Company does business also impact sales prices
and volume As result

an economic downturn in the geographic areas or industries tn which Dow sells its products could reduce demand for these products and result to decreased

sales volume which could have negative impact on Dows results of operations

In addition volatility
and disruption of financial markets could limit customers

ability
to obtain adequate financing to maintain operations which

could result in decrease in sales volume and have negative impact on Dows results of operations The Companys global business operations also gtve

rise to market risk exposure related to changes in foreign exchange rates interest rates commodity prices
and other market factors such as equity prices To

manage such risks Dow enters into hedging transactions pursuant to established guidelines and policies If Dow fails to effecttvely manage such risks it

could have negative impact on the Companys results of operations

The economic environment impacts the fair value of pension and insurance assets which could trigger
increased future funding requirements of the

pension trusts and could result in other than temporary impairmeni losses for certain insurance assets

Financial Obligations and Credit Markets Market conditions could reduce the Companys flexibility to respond to changing business conditions

or fund capital needs

Interest and dividend payments could increase the Companys vulnerability to adverse economic conditions and reduce the Companys flexibility to respond

to changing business and economic conditions or to fund capital expenditures or worktng capital needs In addition the economic environment could result

in contraction in the availability of credit in the marketplace and reduce sources of liquidity for the Company This could result in higher borrowing costs

Raw Materials Availability of purchased feedstocks and energy and the
volatility

of these costs impact Dows operating costs and add variability

to earnings
The Company purchases hydrocarbon raw materials including liquefied petroleum gases crude oil naphtha natural gas and condensate The Company also

purchases electric power benzene ethylene and propylene to supplement internal production as well as other raw materials If the Companys key suppliers

are unable to provide the raw materials required for production tt could have negative impact on Dows results of operations

Purchased feedstock and energy costs account for substantial portion of the Companys total production costs and operating expenses While the

Company uses its feedatock flexibility and financial and physical hedging programs to lower overall feedstock costs when these coals increase the

Company is not always able to immediately raise selling prices and ultimately the ability to pass on underlying cost increases is greatly dependent on

market conditions Conversely when these costs decline selling prices decline as well As result volatility in these costs could negatively impact the

Companys results of operations

Supply/Demand Balance Earnings generated by the Companys basic chemical and
plastic products vary based in part on the balance of supply

relative to demand within the industry

The balance of supply relative to demand within the industry may be significantly Impacted by the addition of new capacity especially for basic

commodities where capacity is generally added in large increments as worldscale facilities are built This may disrupt industry balances and result in

downward pressure on prices
due to the increase in supply which could negatively impact the Companys results of operations
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Litigation The Company is party to number of claims and lawsuits arising out of the normal course of business with respect to commercial

matters including product liability governmental regulation and other actions

Certain of the claims and lawsuits factng the Company purport to be class actions and seek damages in very large amounts All such claims are contested

With the exception of the possible effect of the asbestosrelated liability of Union Carbide Corporation Union Carbide described below it is the

opinion of the Companys management that the
possibility

is remote that the aggregate of all such claims and lawsuits will have material adverse impact

on the Companys consolidated financial statements

Union Carbide is and has been involved in
large

number of asbestosrelated suits filed primarily in stale courts during the past three decades At

December 31 2010 Union Carbides asbestosrelated liability for pending and future claims was $728 million $839 million at December 31 2009 and its

receivable for insurance recoveries related to the asbestos liability was $50 million $84 million at December 31 2009 At December 31 2010 Union

Carbide also had receivables of $248 million $448 million at December 31 2009 for insurance recoveries for defense and resolution costs It is the opinion

of the Companys management that it is reasonably possible that the cost of Union Carbide disposing of its asbestosrelated claims including future defense

costs could have material adverse impact on the Companys results of operations and cash flows for particular period and on the consolidated financial

position of the Company

Environmental Compliance Actual or alleged violations of environmental laws or permit requirements could result in restrictions or prohibitions

on plant operations substantial civil or criminal sanctions as well as the assessment of strict liability and/or joint and several liability

The Company is subject to extensive federal state local and foreign laws regulations rules and ordinances relating to pollution protection of the

environment and the generation storage handling transportation treatment disposal and remediation of hazardous substances and waste materials At

December 31 2010 the Company had accrued obligations of $607 million $619 million at December 31 2009 for probable environmental remediation

and restoration costs including $59 million $80 million at December 31 2009 for the remediation of Superfund sites This is managements best estimate

of the costs for remediation and restoration with respect to environmental matters for which the Company has accrued liabilities although the ultimate cost

with respect to these particular matters could range up to approximately twice that amount Costs and capital expenditures relating to environmental health

or safety matters are subject to evolving regulatory requirements and depend on the liming of the promulgation and enforcement of
specific standards which

impose the requirements Moreover changes in environmental regulations could inhibit or interrupt
the Companys operations or require modifications to

its facilities Accordingly environmental health or safety regulatory matters could result in significant unanticipated costs or liabilities

Chemical Safety Increased concerns regarding the safe use of chemicals in commerce and their potential impact on the environment have resulted

in more restrictive regulations from local state and federal governments and could lead to new regulations

Concerns regarding the safe use of chemicals in commerce and their potential impact on health and the environment reflect growing trend in societal

demands for increasing levels of product safety and environmental protection These concerns could manifest themselves in stockholder proposals preferred

purchasin
and continued pressure for more

stringent regulatory intervention These concerns could also influence public perceptions the
viability

of the

Company products the Companys reputation and the cost to comply with regulations In addition terrorist attacks and natural disasters have increased

concerns about the security and safety of chemical production and distribution These concerns could have negative impact on the Companys results of

operations

Local state and federal governments continue to propose new regulations related to the
security

of chemical plant locations and the transportation of

hazardous chemicals which could result in higher operating costs and interruptions in normal business operations
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Operational Event significant operational event could negatively impact the Companys results of operations

As diversified chemical manufacturing company the Companys operations the transportation of products or severe weather could result in an unplanned

event that could be significant in scale and could negatively impact operations neighbors or the public at large which could have negative impact on the

Companys results of operations

In the past major hurricanes have caused significant disruption in Dows operations on the U.S Gulf Coast logistics across the region snd the supply

of certain raw materials which had an adverse impact on volume and cost for some of Dows products Due to the Companys substantial presence on the

U.S Gulf Coast similarsevere weather in the future could negatively affect Dows results of operations

Company Strateg Implementing certain elements of the Companys strategy could negatively impact the Companys financial results

The Company is evaluating the formation of new joint ventures in emerging geographies to build and operate integrated worldscale facilities Large

projects like these are accompanied by uncertainty and risks including learning to navigate different government regulatory environments developing

relationships with new local partners and determining raw material supply and other details regarding product movement If the implementation of these

proposed joint ventures is not successful it could adversely affect the Companys financial condition and results of operations

Goodwill An impairment of goodwill would negatively impact the Companys financial results

The April 2009 acquisition of Rohm and Haas Company increased the Companys goodwill by $9.7 billion At least annually the Company performs an

impairment test for goodwill When tested if the carrying value of reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value impairment is deemed to have occurred

and the carrying value of goodwill is written down to fair value with charge against earnings Since the Company utilizes discounted cash flow

methodology to calculate the fair value of its reporting units continued weak demand for specific product line or business could result in an impairment

Accordingly any determination requiring the writeoff of significant portion of goodwill could negatively impact the Companys results of operations

Implementation of ERP system The Companys implementation of new enterprise resource planning ERP system may adversely affect the

Companys business and results of operations or the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

Beginning in the first quarter of 2011 the Company is implementing new SEP system that will deliver new generation of work processes and

information systems SEP implementations are complex and timeconsuming projects
that involve substantial expenditures on system software and

implementation activities that take several years SEP implementations also require transformation of business and financial processes in order to reap the

benefits of the SEP system If the Company does not effectively implement the SEP system as planned or if the system does not operate as intended it

could adversely affect financial reporting systems the Companys ability to produce financial reports and/or the effectiveness of tnternal control over

financial reporting
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

PART Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

PART Item Properties

PROPERTIES

The Company operates 188 manufacturing sites in 35 countries Properties of Dow include facilities which in the opinion of management are suitable and

adequate for the mÆhufacture and distribution of Dows products During 2010 the Companys production facilities and plants operated at 83 percent of

capacity The Company major production sites are as follows

United States Plaquemine and Hahnville Louisiana Midland Michigan Freeport Seadrift Texas

City and Deer Park Texas Marlborough Massachusetts

Canada Fort Saskatchewan Alberta

Cermany Boehlen Leuna Rhetnmuenster Schkopau Stade

France Drusenheim

The Netherlands Terneuzen

Spain Tarragona

Argentina Bahia Blanca

Brazil Aratu

Including the major production sites the Company has plants and holdings in the following geographic areas

United States 55 manufacturing locations in 20 states

Canada manufacturtng locations in provinces

Europe Middle East andAfrica 59 manufacturing locations in 18 countries

Latin America 27 manufacturing locations in countries

Asia Pacific 43 manufacturing locations in 10 countries

All of Dows plants are owned or leased subject to certain easements of other persons which in the opinion of management do not substantially

interfere with the continued use of such properties or materially affect their value

summary of properties classified by type is provided in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements Additional information regarding leased

properties can be found in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

AsbestosRelated Matters of Union Carbide Corporation

Union Carbide Corporation Union Carbide wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is and has been involved in
large

number of asbestosrelated

suits filed primarily in state courts during the past three decades These suits princtpally allege personal injury resulting from exposure to

asbestoscontaining products and frequently seek both actual and punitive damages The alleged claims primarily relate to products that Union Carbide sold

in the past alleged exposure to asbestoscontaining products located on Union Carbides premises and Union Carbides responsibility
for asbestos suits

filed
against former Union Carbide subsidiary Amchem Products Inc

Ills the opinion of Dows management that it is reasonably possible that the cost of Union Carbide disposing of its asbestosrelated claims including

future defense costs could have material adverse impact on the Companys results of operations and cash flows for
particular period and on the

consolidated financial position of the Company

For additional information see AsbestosRelated Matters of Union Carbide Corporation in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations and Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Environmental Matters

In meeting on April 28 2010 the Company received verbal and written communications from the U.S Environmental Protection Agency EPA
notifying the Company of the EPA intent to seek

injunctive relief and assess civil penalty against the Company for alleged violations of various

environmental rules and regulations at the Companys Midland Michigan site The Company is negotiating with the EPA and the U.S Department of

justice and expects that resolution of this matter will likely result in civil penalty in excess of $100000

The Company received written communication dated September 17 2010 from the EPA notifying the Company of the EPAs intent to assess civil

penalty against the Company for alleged violations of various environmental rules and regulations at the Companys Plaquemine Louisiana site The

Company is negotiating with the EPA and expects that resolution of this matter will likely result in civil penalty in excess of $100000

Rohm and Haas Pension Plan Matters

In December 2005 federal judge in the U.S District Court for the Southern District of Indiana the District Court issued decision granting class of

participants in the Rohm and Haas Pension Plan the Rohm and l-laas Plan who had retired from Rohm and Haas Company Rohm and Haas now

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and who elected to receive lump sum benefit from the Rohm and l-laas Plan the
right

to costofliving

adjustment COLA as part of their retirement benefit In August 2007 the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed the District Courts decision and in

March 2008 the U.S Supreme Court denied the Rohm and l-laas Plans
petition to review the Seventh Circuits decision The case was returned to the

District Court for further proceedings In October 2008 and February 2009 the District Court issued
rulings

that have the effect of including in the class all

Rohm and Haas retirees who received lump sum distribution without COLA from the Rohm and Haas Plan since January 1976 These rulings are subject

to appeal and the District Court has not yet determined the amount of the COLA benefits thai may be due to the class participants The Rohm and Mass
Plan and the plaintiffs entered into settlement agreement that in addition to settling the litigation with respect to the Rohm and Mass retirees provides for

the amendment of the complaint and amendment of the Rohm and I-lass Plan to include active employees in the seitlemeni benefits The District Court

preliminarily approved the settlement on November 24 2009 and following shearing on March 12 2010 issued final order approving the settlement on

April 12 2010 group of objectors to the settlement filed an appeal from the final order In November 2010 the District Court issued an order approving

class counsels fee award
petition

in an amount consistent with the terms of the settlement The same objectors also appealed this order Both appeals are

pending

pension liability associated with this matter of $185 million was recognized as part of the acquisition of Rohm and Mass on April 2009 The

liability which was determined in accordance with the accounting guidance for contingencies recognized the estimated impact of the above described

judicial decisions on the longterm Rohm and Mass Plan obligations owed to the applicable Rohm and Haas retirees and active employees At

December 31 2010 the Company had liability of $186 million $183 million at December 31 2009 associated with this matter
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PART II Item Market for Registrants Common Equity

Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES
The

principal market for the Companys common stock is the New York Stock Exchange traded under the symbol DOW

Data
Quarterly market snd dividend information can be found in Quarterly Statistics at the end of Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

At December 31 2010 there were 84119 registered common stockholders The Company estimates that there were an additional 554000

stockholders whose shares were held in nominee names at December 31 2010 At january 31 2011
there

were 83711 regislered common stockholders

On December 2010 the Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.15 per share payable January 28 2011 to stockholders of record on

December 31 2010 On Pebruary 2011 the Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.15 per share payable April 29 2011 to stockholders

of record on March 31 2011 Since 1912 the Company has paid cash dividend every quarter and in each instance prior to February 12 2009 had

maintained or increased the amount of the dividend adjusted for stock splits During this 97 year period Dow has increased the amount of the quarterly

dividend 47 times approximately 12 percent of the lime and maintained the amount of the quarterly dividend approximately 88 percent of the time The

dividend was reduced in Pebruary 2009 for the first time in the 97year period due to uncertainly in the credit markets unprecedented lower demand for

chemical products the ongoing global recession and pending business issues The Company declared dividends of $0.60 per share in 2010 $0.60 per share

in 2009 and $1.68 per share in 2008

See Part III Item 11 Executive Compensation for information
relating

to the Companys equity compensation plans

The following table provides information regarding purchases of the Companys common stock by the Company during the three months ended

December 31 2010

Period --

Approximate doilar vaiue

of shares that may yet be

purchased under the

Companys pubiiciy

Totai number Average

of shares price paid

nprshrp

2048 $29.85

4974 $32.25

1268 _________
$34.24

8290
__________

$31.96

Represents shares received from employees and nonemployee directors to pay taxes owed to the Company as result of the exercise of stock options

or the delivery of deferred stock For information regarding the Companys stock oplion plans see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company does not
currently

have an authorized share repurchase program

C/JUl LlIOC pi /JC1 Ciii U/JIll IliaIU JI 11111

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

October 2010

November 2010

December 2010

Pourth nartar 2010

Totai number of shares

purchased as part of the

Companys pubiiciy

announced share

.-1
announced share
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In millions
except

as noted IJnaicitted 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Summary of Operations

Net sales 53674
Cost of sales 45780

Research and development expenses 1660

Selling generl and administrative expenses 2609

Amortization of intangibles 509

Special charges restructuring mergerrelated asbestosrelated IPRD impairment

losses 115

Equity in earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates 1112

Sundry incomenet 125

Interest expense net 1436

44875

39148

1492

2487
399

869

630

891

1532

$57361

51913

1310

1966
92

1117
787

89

562

$53375

46302

1305

1861

72

635

1122

324

454

$49009

41448

1164

1660

50

414

959

137

431

Income Loss from continuing operations before income taxes 2802
Provision Credit for income taxes 481

469

97
1277

651

4192

1230

4938

1142

Net income loss from continuing operations 2321
Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes

Net income attributable to noncootrolling interests 11

Preferred stock dividends 340

.566

110

28

312

626

28

75

2962
23

98

3796
21

93

Income Loss before cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles 1970

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles

336 579 2887 3724

Net income loss available for The Dow Chemical Company common stockholders 1970 336 579 2887 3724

Per share of common stock in dollars

Net income loss from continuing operations per common share basic 1.75

Discontinued operations per common share basic

Earnings Loss per common share basic 1.75

0.22

0.10

0.32

0.59

0.03

0.62

3.00

0.03

3.03

3.85

0.02

3.87

Net income loss from continuing operations percommon share diluted 1.72

Discontinued operations per common share diluted

Earnings Loss per common share diluted 1.72

0.22

0.10

0.32

0.59

0.03

0.62

2.97

0.02

2.99

3.80

0.02

3.82

Cash dividends declared per share of common stock 0.60

Cash dividends paid per share of common stock 0.60

Bookvaluepershareofcommonstock 19.23

Weightedaverage common shares outstanding basic 1125.9

Weightedaverage common shares outstanding diluted 1143.8

Convertible preferred shares outstanding thousands 4000

0.60

0.87

18.42

1043.2

1053.9

4000

1.68

1.68

14.62

930.4

939.0

1.64

1.59

20.62

953.1

965.6

1.50

1.46

17.81

962.3

974.4

Yearend Financial Position

Total assets 69588

Working capital 9885

Property gross 51648

Properly net 17668

Longterm debt 20605
Total debt 23827
The Dow Chemical Companys stockholders equity 21839

66.018

6437

53567

18141

19152

22373

20555

$45474

2952

48391

14294

8042
11856

13511

$48801

6209

47708

14388
7581

9715

19389

$45581

6608
44381

13722

8036

9546

17065

Financial Ratios

Research and development expenses as percent of net sales 3.1%

Income Loss from continuing operations before income taxes as percent of net sales

5.2%

Return on stockholders equity 11.0%

Debt as percent of total capitalization 51.3%

3.3%

1.0%

2.0%

51.4%

2.3%

2.2%
4.3%

45.7%

2.4%

7.9%

14.9%

31.8%

2.4%

10.1%

21.8%

34.1%

General

Capital expenditures 2130

Depreciation 2289

Salaries and wages paid 5711

Cost of employee benefits 1653

Number of employees at yearend thousands 49.5

Number of Dow stockholders of record at yearend thousands 84.1

1683

2291

5152

1389

52.2

89.9

2276

2016

4681
981

46.1

94.6

2075

1959

4404

1130
45.9

98.7

1775

1904
3935

1125

42.6

103.1

Adjusted to report sale of the Calcium Chloride business in 2009 as discontinued operations

Adjusted for reclassification of idsurance operations in 2002

Adjusted for 3forl stock split in 2000

Stockholders of record as reported by the transfer agent The Company estimates that there were an additional 554000 stockholders whose shares

were held in nominee names at December 31 2010
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In millions sept as nntpd f1JnauditrI 2005 2Q04 2003 2002 2001 2000

Summary of Operations

Net sales $46186 $40063

Cost of sales 38194 34175

$32536

28110

$27545

23737

$27988

23838

$29727

24256

Research and development expenses 1073 1022

Selling general and administrative expenses 1542 1434

Amortization of intangibles 55 81

Special charges restructuring merger related asbestosrelated IPRD
impairment losses 114 543

Equity in earnings of nonconsoltdated affiliates 964 923

Sundry income net 755 699

Interest expense net 564 661

981

1390

63

322

146

736

1066

1595

65

1108

40

54

708

1072

1762
178

1556
29

394

648

1119

1822
139

354

352

519

Income Loss from continuing operations before income taxes 6363 3769
Provision Credit for income taxes 1769 867

1724

92
640
287

643
239

2572
834

Net income loss from continuing operations 4594 2902
Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 23 17

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82 122

Preferred stock dividends

1816

17

94

353
11

63

404
19

32

1738

72

Income Loss before cumulative effect of changes in accounting

principles 4535 2797

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles 20
1739 405

67

417
32

1675

Net income loss available for The Dow Chemical Company common
stockholders 4515 2797 1.730 338 385 1675

Per share of common stock in dollars

Net income loss from continuing operations per common share

basic 4.66 2.96 1.86 0.38 0.45 1.87

Discontinued operations per common share basic 0.03 0.02

Earnings Loss per common share basic 4.69 2.98

0.02

1.88

0.01

0.37

0.02

0.43

0.01

1.88

Net income luss from continuing uperatiuns per common share

diluted 4.60 2.91

Discontinued operations per common share diluted 0.02 0.02

Earnings Loss per common share diluted 4.62 2.93

1.85

0.02

1.87

0.38
0.01

0.37

0.45
0.02

0.43

1.84

0.01

1.85

Cash dividends declared per share of common stock 1.34 1.34

Cash dividends paid per share of common stock 1.34 1.34

Book value per share of common stock 15.84 12.88

Weightedaverage common shares outstanding basic 963.2 940.1

Weightedaverage common shares outstanding diluted 976.8 953.8

Convertible preferred shares outstanding thousands

1.34

1.34

9.89

918.8

926.1

1.34

1.34

8.36

910.5

910.5

1.30

1.25

11.04

901.8

901.8

1.16

1.16

13.22

893.2

904.5

Yearend Financial Position

Total assets $45934 $45885 $41891 $39562 $35515 $35991

Working capital 6741 5384

Property gross 41934 41898

Property net 13537 13828

Longterm debt 9186 11629

Total debt 10706 12594

3578

40812

14217

11763

13109

2519

37934

13797

11659

13036

2183

35890

13579

9266

10883

1150

34852

13711

6613
9450

The Dow Chemical Companys stockholders equity 15324 12270 9.175 7626 9993 11840

Financial Ratios

Research and development expenses as percent of net sales 2.3% 2.6%
Income Loss from continuing operations before income taxes as percent

of net sales 13.8% 9.4%

Return on stockholders equity 29.5% 228%
Debt as percent of total capitalization 39.1% 47.9%

3.0%

5.3%

18.9%

55.4%

3.9%

2.3%
4.4%
59.2%

3.8%

2.3%
3.9%
48.9%

3.8%

8.7%

141%
42.5%

General

Capital expenditures 1597 1333

Depreciation 1904 1904

Salaries and wages paid 4309 3993
Cost of employee benefits 988 885

Number of employees at yearend thousands 42.4 43.2

Number of Dow stockholders of record at yearend thousands 105.6 108.3

1100

1753

3608

783

46.4

113.1

1623

1680

3202

611

50.0

122.5

1587

1595

3215
540

52.7

125.1

1808

1554

3395
486

53.3

87.9

Adjusted to report
sale of the Calcium Chloride business in 2009 as discontinued operations

Adjusted for reclassification of insurance operations in 2002

Adjusted for 3forl stock split in 2000

Stockholders of record as reported by the transfer agent The Company estimates that there were an additional 554000 stockholders whose shares

were held in nominee names at December 31 2010
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides safe harbor for forwardlooking statements made by or on behalf of The Dow Chemical

Company and its subsidiaries Dow or the Company This section covers the current performance and outlook of the Company and each of its

operating segments The forwardlooking statements contained in this section and in other parts of this document involve risks and uncertainties that may
affect the Companys operations markets products services prices

and other factors as more fully
discussed elsewhere and in filings with the U.S

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC These risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to economic competitive legal governmental and

technological factors Accordingly there is no assurance that the Companys expectations will be realized The Company assumes no obligation to provide

revisions to any forwardlooking statements should circumstances change except as otherwise required by securities and other applicable laws

ABOUT DOW
Dow combines the power of science and technology with the Human Element to passionately innovate what is essential to human progress The Company
connects chemistry and innovation with the principles of sustainsbility to help address many of the worlds most challenging problems such as the need for

clean water renewable energy generation and conservation and increasing agricultural productivity Dows diversified industryleading portfolio
of

specialty chemical advanced materials agrosciences and plastics businesses deliver broad range of technologybased products and solutions to customers

in approximately 160 countries and in high growth sectors such as electronics water energy coatings and agriculture In 2010 Dow had annual sales of

$53.7 billion The Company conducts its worldwide operations through global businesses which are reported in eight operating segments Electronic and

Specialty Materials Coatings and Infrastructure Health and Agricultural Sciences Performance Systems Performance Products Plastics Chemicals and

Energy and Hydcucarbons
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In 2010 36 percent of the Companys sales were to customers in North AmerIca 34 percent were in Europe Middle East and Afrtca EMEA
while the rematning 30 percent were to customers in Asta Pactfic and Lattn America The Company employs approximately 50000 people and has broad

global reach with 188 manufacturing sites in 35 countries

2010 OVERVIEW
In 2010 Dow and the chemical industry as whole experienced another year of improving economic conditions Economies across much of the developed

world showed signs of ongoing recovery in most endmarkets as the year progressed Meanwhile the emerging geographies continued to lead in economic

growth and as result were critical area of focus for new business opportunities and invesiments As the year came to close however some challenges

remained such as high unemployment in developed geographies and weakness in construction endmarkets particularly in the United States and Europe In

the face of these challenges Dow delivered reshaped and transformed business
portfolio

tn 2010 one that is increasingly targeted to growing geographic

areas and endmarkets and wellbalanced to mitigate uncertainties

Dow2çeported
sales increased 20 percent from 2009 to $53.7 billion an increase of 15 percent from pro forma 2009 sales Excluding the impact of

divestitures sales rose 26 percent versus pro forma 2009 sales The Company reported quarterly sequential sales gains throughout the year excluding

divestitures Sales improvements were broadbased with notable gains in emerging geographies around the world Dows reported sales in the emerging

geographies surpassed $16 billion As the global economic recovery continued feedstock and energy costs rose throughout the year and remained volatile

The Companys purchased feedstock and energy costs were $5.0 billion higher than 2009 an increase of 31 percent

The Company reported volume growth of percent over 2009 pro forma sales Excluding the impact of divestitures Dow reported 12 percent

improvement in volume with gains In all operating segments and geographic areas Volume growth was notable in the Performence segments Electronic

and Specialty Materials Coatings and Infrastructure Health and Agricultural Sciences Performance Systems and Performance Products all of which

reported doubledigit volume growth except Coatings and Infrastructure which was impacted by continued weakness in the construction industry

Compared with 2009 pro forma sales price rose 13 percent on reported basis and 14 percent excluding divestitures Price gains were most significant in

the Basics segments Plastics Chemicals and Energy and Hydrocarbons which together reported 25 percent improvement compared with 2009 Dow

results from
joint ventures returned to the level of earnings reported before the global economic recession totaling

$1.1 billion for the year an increase of

more than 75 percent from 2009 Earnings available for common stockholders increased from $0.32 per share in 200910 $1.72 per share in 2010

The Company continued to invest for growth in the year reinforcing its
strategic

focus on sciencebased innovation and technology integration

Research and development RD expenses rose to nearly $1.7 billion an increase of percent versus pro forms spending in the prior year as the

Company invested in growth projects in its innovation pipeline Selling General and Administrative SGA expenses fell percent versus 2009 pro

forms spending despite increased spending in Health and Agricultural Sciences to support new product launches and commercial activities related to recent

seed acquisitions

Pinally the Company delivered $4.1 billion of cash from operating activities nearly double that of 2009 and surpassed its goal to divest $2 billion in

nonstrategic assets in 2010 Dow ended the year with $7.0 billion of cash and cash equivalents Throughout the year the Company had sufficient liquidity

and financial flexibility to meet all of its financial obligations

The unaudited pro forms historical informstinn is based on the historical consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of both Dow and

Rohm and Haas and has been prepared to illustrate the effects of the Companys acquisition of Rohm and Haas assuming the
acquisitton

of Rohm

and Haas had been consummated on January 2008 and the treatment of Dows Calcium Chloride business as discontinued operations due to the

sale of the business on June 30 2009
Excludes sales of the Salt business of Rohm and Haas Company divested on October 2009 sales related to TRN divested on September 2009

sales of the
acrylic monomer business and portion of the

specialty
latex business divested on January 25 2010 sales of the Powder Coatings

business divested on June 2010 and sales of Styron divested on June 17 2010
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Dow focused on the execution of its
strategy

and delivering on the promise of its new portfolio as well as investing for growth in businesses tied to

fastgrowing geographic areas and endmarkets Actions taken during 2010 included

Dow completed the sale of Styron to an affiliate of Bain Capital Partners for $1.6 billion The Company also finalized the sale of its
acrylic

acid

and esters business in Clear Lake Texas and its UCAR Emulsion Systems specialty latex business in North America to Arkema With the

completion of the sale of Styron Dow exceeded its goal of divesting $5 billion in non strategic assets in less than two years See Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on divestitures

Dow successfully completed twoyear multimilliondollar project to transform its STYROFOAM14 brand insulation to more sustainable

manufacturing technology in North America reductng the greenhouse gas emissions from production at all of its converted facilities in the

region by one half

Dow AgroSciences announced the ftrst planting of SmartStaxTM corn hybrid for commercial production revolutionary new seed trait

combination SmartStaxtM received the AgProfesstonal Readers Choice 2009 New Product of the Year award

Dow Kokam LLC joint venture of Dow and Kokam America broke ground on worldscale lithium ion battery manufacturing facility in

Michigan The plant is expected to employ more than 800 people and have the capactty to manufacture 1.2 billion watthours of large format

affordable lithium ion batteries

Dow Electrontc Materials announced multiphase plan to expand its trtmethylgallium TMG production capacity to serve the

fastgrowing light emitting diode LED industry Plans include adding significant TMG capacity at existing
U.S facilities and building

new manufacturing plant tn Cheonan Korea

Dow and BASF received 2010 Presidential Green Chemistry Challenge Award for jointly developed hydrogen peroxide to propylene oxide

technology The technology improves the production process of key chemical intermediate propylene oxide

Dow and Mitsui formed 5050 manufacturing joint venture to construct own and operate new membrane chloralkalt facility at Dows

manufacturing complex in Preeport Texas

Dow became an official Worldwide Olympic Partner This top sponsorship extends through 2020 and will allow Dow to showcase its people

products scientific excellence and commitment to sustainable soluttons on global stage

Dow announced technology breakthrough project that will increase polyolefin elastomers manufacturing capacity at its production facilities in

Preeport Texas and Tarragona Spain

Dow AgroSciences showcased new refugeinthebag concept Pending registration by the U.S Environmental Protection Agency the

concept will be commercialized as SmartStaxtM Refuge Advanced14 and will provide singlebag solution for refuge reduction in the U.S

Corn Belt as early as 2012

Dow introduced ENLTGHT114 Polyolefin Encapsulaot Films that can enhance efficiencies in photovoltaic module production and lead to lower

conversion costs Commercialscale manufacturing of the films began in Findlay Ohio in the fourth quarter of the year

Dow announced the successful
startup

of the Solution Linear Low Density Polyethylene II train SPE II in Thailand SPE TI is owned by

Siam Polyethylene Company Limited ajoini venture of Dow and Siam Cement Group

Dow AgroSciences was granted U.S
patent

for crop plants that contain one of Dow AgroSciences new class of herbicide tolerant traits

DOWTM POWERHOUSE14 solar shingle received Underwriters Laboratories safety certification The certification is milestone toward its

planned 2011 commercialization

30



Table of Contents

Dow Electronic Materials announced it will construct new manufacturing facility in Eastern China to meet the growing material demand to

serve printed circuit hnard electronic and industrial finishing and photovoltaic industries in Asia Pacific

Dow broke ground on new manufacturing facility in southern Vietnam for the production of polymers used in the paint coatings

construction packaging home and personal care industries

Looking to 2011 Dow expects growth in the emerging geographies to continue driven by broad range of leading end markets The Company

projects that these geographic areas will continue their high rate of growth although yearoveryear comparisons will be subdued relative to recent years

Signs of improvement in industrial endmarkets in North America and Europe coupled with ongoing strength
in highergrowth sectors such as electronics

agriculture and packaging give Dow
greater optimism that growth will continue in the developed geographies Despite these more favorable business

conditions the Company expects lingering challenges to remain particularly slow employment growth in developed geographies Consequently the

Companys plans do not assume an accelerated rebound in business conditions Dows success will continue to be driven by its transformed business

portfolio balanced geographic presence and investments in innovations aimed at the intersection of greatest societal need and business opportunity

Dows results of operations and financial condition for the year ended December 31 2010 are described in further detail in the following discussion

and analysis

ACQUISITION OF ROHM AND HAAS COMPANY
On April 2009 the Company completed the acquisition of Rohm and l-laas Pursuant to the july 10 2008 Agreement and Plan of Merger the Merger

Agreement Ramses Acquisition Corp direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company merged with and into Rohm and l-laas the Merger with

Rohm and Haas continuing as the surviving corporation becoming direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

The Company pursued the acquisition of Rohm and Haas to make the Company leading specialty chemicals and advanced materials company

combining the two organizations bestinclass technologies broad geographic reach and strong industry channels to create business portfolio with

significant growth opportunities

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement each outstanding share of Rohm and Haas common stock was converted into the right

to receive cash of $78 per share plus
additional cash consideration of $0.97 per share The additional cash consideration represented percent per annum on

the $78 per share consideration from January 10 2009 to the closing of the Merger less dividends declared by Rohm and Haas with dividend record date

between January 10 2009 and the closing of the Merger All options to purchase shares of common stock of Rohm and Haas granted under the Rohm and

Haas stock option plans and all other Rohm and Haas equitybased compensation awards whether vested or unvested as of April 2009 became fully

vested and converted into the right to receive cash of $78.97 per share less any applicable exercise price Total cash consideration paid to Rohm and Haas

shareholders was $15.7 billion

The Company achieved its synergy targets related to the acquisition full quarter ahead of schedule with realized savings of $1.4 billion including

increased purchasing power for raw materials manufacturing and supply chain work process improvements and the elimination of redundant corporate

overhead for shared services and governance The integration of Rohm and Flaas was substantially complete at December 31 2010

On July 31 2009 the Company entered into definitive agreement for the sale of certain acrylic monomer and specialty
latex assets as required by

the United States Federal Trade Commission FTC for approval of the April 2009 acquisition of Rohm and Haas see Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements The transaction closed on January 25 2010
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Results of Rohm snd Hsas are included tn the Company consolidated results from the April 2009 acquisitton forward In order to provtde the most

meaningful comparison of results of operations some of the comparisons made in this section are presented on pro forma basis reflecting the combination

of Dow and Rohm and Haas assuming the transaction had been consummated on January 2008

Nei sales for 2010 were $53.7 billion up 20 percent from reported net sales of $44.9 billion in 2009 and up 15 percent from pro forma net sales of

$46.6 billion in 2009 Sales increased in 2010 across all segments and geographic areas with higher prices contributing 13 percent of the improvement and

increased volume adding percent over 2009 pro forma results The increase in
price was largely

driven by higher feedstock and energy costs and was

most pronounced in the combined Basics segments with Hydrocarbons up 35 percent Plastics up 24 percent and Chemicals and Energy up 18 percent

Doubledigit price increases were reported in all geographic areas Volume was mixed across the segments with significant gains in Electronic and

Specially Materials up 19 percent and Health and Agricultural Sciences up 11 percent tempered by the impact of recent diveslitures which resulted in

declines in Coatings and Infrastructure down percent and Plastics down percent The Companys recent divestitures included the Siyron business unit

Slyron divested on June 17 2010 the Powder Coatings business divested on June 2010 portion of the
acrylic monomer business and portion of

the specialty latex business divested on January 25 2010 the Salt business of Rohm and Haas Company divested on October 2009 and the Companys

ownership interest in Total
RaffinaderiJ

Nederland N.V TRN divested on September 2009 See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information concerning the Companys divestitures Excluding these divestitures volume increased 12 percent compared with 2009 on pro

forma basis with volume improvement in all segments and geographic areas

On pro forms basis net sales for 2009 were down 30 percent from $66.9 billion in 2008 Compared with 2008 prices fell 17 percent with decreases

in all segments and doubledigit declines in all geographic areas Price declines were most pronounced in the Basics segments with Hydrocarbons down

28 percent and Plastics and Chemicals and Energy each down 27 percent driven by significantly lower feedatock and energy costs Volume decreased

13 percent ass result of the continued weakness in the global economy with declines in all operating segments except Health and Agricultural Sciences

which reported growth of percent From geographic perspective the volume decrease was most pronounced in North America down 18 percent from

2008 levels which were already reduced due to Hurricanes Gustav and Ike which hit the U.S Gulf Coast resulting in temporary plant outages

Sales in the United Stales accounted for 33 percent of total sales in 2010 and 32 percent of total sales in 2009 and 2008 See the Sales Price and

Volume tables at the end of the section titled Segment Results for details regarding the change in sales by operating segment and geographic area In

addition sales and other information by operating segment and geographic area are provided in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Gross margin for 2010 was $7.9 billion compared with $5.7 billion in 2009 and $5.4 billion in 2008 The improvement in gross margin compared
with 2009 reflected higher prices which more than offset $5.0 billion increase in purchased feedstock and energy costs increased volume in Electronic

and Specialty Materials Health and Agricultural Sciences and other higher margin product lines and significantly higher operating rates In 2010 gross

margin was reduced by $50 million laborrelated litigation matter that was included in Cost of Sales and reflected in Corporate and $91 million in asset

impairments and related costs in the Polyurethanes business the Epoxy business and Dow Automotive Systems The impairment charges and related costs

were included in Cost of Sales and reflected in Performance Systems $9 million and Performance Products $82 million

In 2009 despite significant drop in sales compared with 2008 gross margin increased as result of the
acquisition

of Rohm and Haas

$10.2 billion decrease in feedstock and energy costs lower other raw material and freight costs and the favorable impact of currency on costs In 2009

Gross margin was reduced by one lime increase in cost of sales of $209 million related to the fair value stepup of inventories acquired from Rohm and

Haaa on April 2009 and sold in the second quarter of 2009 The increase was included in Cost of sales and reflected in the operating segments as

follows $75 million In Electronic and Specialty Materials $82 million in Coatings and Infrastructure $30 million in Performance Systems and $22 mtllton

in Performance Products Gross margin in 2009 was also reduced by hedging losses of $56 million related to the sale of the Companys 45 percent

ownership interest in TRN see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements reflected in the Hydrocarbons segment
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Cross margin in 2008 was negatively impacted by Hurricanes Custav and Ike which hit the U.S Cuif Coast causing temporary outages for several of

the Companys Cuif Coast production facilities and
resulting

in $181 million in additional manufacturing expenses including the repair of property damage

cleanup costs unabsorbed fixed costs and inventory writeoffs The expenses were included in Cost of sales and reflected in the operating segments as

follows $2 million in Electronic and Specialty Materials $2 million in Health and Agricultural Sciences $6 million in Performance Systems $59 million in

Performance Products $16 million in Plastics $44 million in Chemicals and Energy and $43 million in Hydrocarbons wtth the remaining $9 million in

Corporate In addition gross margin in 2008 was reduced by legal expenses and other costs of $69 million related to the KDow transaction these costs

were expensed to Cost of sales upon Petrochemical Industries Company K.S.C of Kuwaits refusal to close the KDow transaction reflected in

Corporate

Dows global plant operating rate was 83 percent of capacity in 2010 compared with 74 percent in 2009 and 77 percent in 2008 Operating rates

improved in 2010 with both increased demand and actions taken by management to rationalize capacity through shutdowns and divestitures contributing to

the improvement In 2009 operating rates were down from 2008 reflecting the downturn in the global economy In 2008 operating rates were impacted by

lower demand resulting from the slowing global economy especially in the second half of the
year as well as by Hurricanes Custav and Ike which hit the

U.S Culf Coast in the third quarter of 2008 Depreciation expense was $2289 million in 2010 $2291 million in 2009 and $2016 million in 2008

OperatIng Rate

tptrcenfl

Personnel count waa 49505 at December 31 2010 down from 52195 at December 31 2009 Headcount decreased from year end 2009 primarily

due to divestitures including Styron the Powder Coatings business and portion of the Companys acrylic monomer and specialty latex businesses as well

as restructuring activities associated with the
integration of Rohm and Haas and previously announced restructuring plans Personnel count at December 31

2009 was up from 46102 at December 31 2008 primarily due to the
acquisition

of Rohm and Haaa offset declines related to restructuring activities

business divestitures and personnel transfers to
joint

venture

Research and development RD expenses were $1660 million in 2010 compared with $1492 million in 2009 and $1310 million in 2008 The

increase in RD expenses in 2010 reflected the Companys planned spending on strategic corporate growth initiatives and continued investments in the

Health and Agricultural Sciences segment partially
offsel by the elimination of RD expenses related to the divestiture of Styron In 2009 RD expenses

increased compared with 2008 due to the acquisition of Rohm and Haas and planned growth initiatives in the Health and Agricultural Sciences segment

partially offset by cost savings in other segments

Selling general and administrative SCA expenses were $2609 million in 2010 compared with $2487 million in 2009 and $1966 million in

2008 SCA expenses increased percent from 2009 as selling expenses for all segments increased commensurate with higher sales and the fullyear

impact of the Rohm and Haas
acquisition

in 2010 In 2009 SCA expenses increased compared with 2008 primarily due to the acquisition of Rohm and

Haas partially offset by cost savings initiatives
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Research and Development Expenses
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2006

2007 24%
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2009

2009

2010

Selling General and Administrative Expenses
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2006 13%
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The following table illustrates the relative size of the primary components of total production costs and operating expenses of Dow More information

about each of these components can be found in other sections of Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Fart II Item Selected Financial Dsta

Production Costs and Operating Expenses

net narront nftntat
t.tjII1UtICIJL5 as 2010 2009 2008

Hydrocarbon feedstocks and energy

Salaries wages and employee benefits

Maintenance

41%

14

35%

15

48%

10

Depreciation

Restructuring charges

Supplies services and other raw materials 36 40 34

Total 100% 100% 100%

Amortization of intangibles was $509 million in 2010 $399 million in 2009 and $92 million in 2008 The increase in amortization of intangibles in

2010 reflected the fullyear impact of the amortization of intangible assets acquired from Rohm and Haas Amortization of intangibles in 2009 increased

from 2008 due to amortization of the fair value of intangible assets acquired from Rohm and Mass from the April 2009 acquisition date forward See

Notes and Ito the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding the acquisition of Rohm and Mass and goodwill and other

intangible assets

The Company performs annual goodwill impairment tests during the fourth quarter of the year During the fourth quarter of 2010 no impairment

indicators related to the carrying value of goodwill were identified During the fourth quarter of 2009 it was determined that goodwill associated with the

Dow Haltermann business unit was impaired The impairment was based on review performed by management in which discounted cash flows did not

support the carrying value of the goodwill As result the Company recorded goodwill impairment loss of $7 million impacting the Performance

Products segment During the fourth quarter of 2008 it was determined that goodwill associated with the Dow Automotive Systems and Polypropylene

reporting units was impaired The impairment was based on review performed by management in which discounted cash flows did not support the

carrying value of the goodwill The Company recorded charges totaling
$239 million for goodwill impairment losses including $209 million for the Dow

Automotive Systems reporting unit impacting the Performance Systems segment and $30 million for the Polypropylene reporting unit impacting the

Plastics segment See Note Ito the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding goodwill

During 2010 the Company recorded adjustments of $29 million to the 2009 restructuring charge for additional asset impairments exit and disposal

activities and severance and adjustments of $3 million to the 2008 restructuring charge to reduce the severance reserve The adjustments were reflected in

Electronic and Specialty Materials $8 million charge Coatings and Infrastructure $5 million charge Performance Products $15 million charge and

Corporate $2 million credit
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In June 2009 Dows Board of Directors approved restructuring plan that incorpoisted acttons related to the Companys acquisition
of Rohm snd

Haas as well as additional actions to advance the Companys strategy and to respond to continued weakness in the global economy The
restructuring plan

included the shutdown of number of facilities and global workforce reduction As result the Company recorded restructuring charges totaling

$677 million in the second quarter of 2009 which included asset writedowns and writeoffs of $454 million severance costs of $155 million and costs

associated with exit or disposal activities of $68 million The impact of the charges was shown as Restructuring charges in the consolidated statements of

income and was reflected in the Companys segment results as follows $68 million in Electronic and Specialty Materials $171 million in Coatings and

Infrastructure $73 million in Performance Products $1 million in Plastics $75 million in Chemicals and Energy and $65 million in Hydrocarbons with the

remaining $224 million in Corporate

During 2009 the Company recorded the following adjustments to its
restructuring plans in the first quarter of 2009 the Company recorded additional

severance of $19 million related to 2008
restructuring activities reflected in Corporate in the second quarter of 2009 the Company recorded $15 million

reduction in the 2007
restructuring reserve reflected in the Health and Agricultural Sciences segment and in the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company

recorded $5 million reduction to the 2007 restructuring reserve and $13 million in additional charges related to the 2009 restructuring activities both

reflected in Corporate

On December 2008 the Companys Board of Directors approved restructuring plan as part of series of actions to advance the Companys

strategy and respond to the severe economic downturn that began in the latter part of 2008 The restructuring plan included the shutdown of number of

facilities and global workforce reduction which were substantially complete by the end of 2010 As result of the shutdowns and glnbal
wnrkforce

reduction the Company recorded restructuring charges of $785 million in the fourth quarter of 2008 The charges consisted of asset writedowns and

wrileoffs of $336 million costs associated with exit or disposal activities of $128 million and severance costs of $321 million The impact of the charges is

shown as Restructuring charges in the consolidated statements of income and was reflected in the Companys segment results as follows $10 million in

Electronic and Specialty Materials $16 million in Coatings and Infrastructure $68 million in Performance Systems $39 million in Performance Products

$98 million in Plastics $106 million in Chemicals and Energy and $18 million in Hydrocarbons with the remaining $430 million in Corporate In addition

to the charges related to the 2008 restructuring plan in the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company recorded additional adjustments of $54 million related to

the 2007 and 2006 restructuring plans primarily impacting the Plastics segment

See Note to the Consolidated Pinancial Statements for details on the
restructuring charges

During 2009 charge of $7 million was recorded for purchased inprocess research and development IPRD related to the purchase of lithium

ion battery technology by the Ventures business impacting Corporate During 2008 charges totaling $44 million were recorded for purchased IPRD
related to acquisitions

within the Health and Agricultural Sciences segment See Note to the Consolidated Pinancial Statements for information regarding

these charges

Charges totaling $143 million in 2010 $166 million in 2009 and $49 million in 2008 were recorded for integration costs legal expenses and other

transaction costs related to the
acquisition

of Rohm and Haas these charges were reflected in Corporate In 2009 the Company also recorded $60 million in

acquisitionrelated retention costs These costs were recorded in Cost of sales Research and development expenses and Selling general and

administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income and reflected in Corporate The
integration

of Rohm and Haas was substantially complete

at December 31 2010

Pollowing the completion of study to review Union Carbides asbestos claim and resolution activity in December of 2010 Union Carbide decreased

its asbestosrelated liability for pending and future claims excluding future defense and processing costs by $54 million in the fourth quarter of 2010

Similarly following completion of study to review Union Carbides asbestos claim and resolution activity
in December of 2008 Union Carbide decreased

its asbestosrelated liability for pending and future claims excluding future defense and processing costs by $54 million in the fourth quarter of 2008 The

reductions were shown as Asbestosrelated credits in the consolidated statements of income and were reflected in Corporate See Asbestos Related

Matters of Union Carbide Corporation in Other Matters for additional information
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Dows share of the earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates in 2010 was $1112 million compared with $630 million in 2009 and $787 million in 2008

In 2010 increased earnings at Dow Corning Corporation Dow Corning EQUATE Petrochemical Company K.S.C EQUATE MEGlobal The

Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C and The Kuwait Styrene Company K.S.C more than offset decline in earnings resulting
from the September 2009

divestitures of the Companys ownership interests in TRN and the OPTIMAL Group of Companies OPTIMAL and the June 2010 divestiture of the

Companys ownership interest in Americas Styrenics LLC See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information concerning the

Companys recent dtvestitures In 2009 equity earnings declined compared with 2008 reflecting the overall decrease in global demand and poor economic

conditions with EQUATE Dow Corning and OPTIMAL reporting the largest declines Improved results were reported by The Kuwait Olefins Company
K.S.C in 2009 following the successful startup of additional production capacity for ethylene oxide/ethylene glycol and increased production of ethylene tn

support uf additional polyethylene capacity Equity earnings fur 2009 weie negatively impacted by $65 mtlliun impairment charge related to

Equtpolymers and the Companys $29 million share of
restructurtng charge related to Dow Corning See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for additional tnformatton on nonconsolidated affiliates

Equity in Earnings of Nonconsolidated Affiliates

rrfllcns

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Sundry income net tncludes variety of income and expense items such as the gain or loss on foreign currency exchange dividends from

tnvestments and gains and losses on sales of investments and assets Sundry income net for 2010 was $125 million compared with $891 million in 2009

and $89 million in 2008 In 2010 sundry income net included net $27 million gain on the Styron divestiture reflected in the following operating

segments Performance Systems $7 million Performance Products $13 million and Plastics $7 million In addition to the net gain on the Styron

divestiture Sundry income net for 2010 included net gains on several other divestitures parttally offset by loss of $46 million related to the early

extinguishment of debt and charge of $47 million for an obligation related to past
divestiture both reflected in Corporate Sundry tncome net in 2009

included gain of $513 mtllton on the sale of the Companys ownership interest in TRN and related inventory on September 2009 and gain of

$339 mtllion on the sale of the Companys ownership interest in OPTIMAL on September 30 2009 Sundry income net in 2009 was reduced by loss of

$56 million related to the Companys early extinguishment of debt in the third quarter of 2009 In 2008 sundry income net reflected net gains on several

small divestitures and asset sales partially offset by unfavorable foreign exchange hedging results See Note to the Consolidated Financtal Statements for

additional information concerning the Companys recent divestitures See Liquidity and Capital Resources for additional informatton on the Companys
early extinguishment of debt

Net interest expense interest expense less capitalized interest and interest income was $1436 mtllton in 2010 down from $1532 million in 2009

reflecting
lower debt financing costs during the year Tn 2009 net tnterest expense increased compared with net interest expense of $562 million in 2008

due to debt ftnancing activity
for the April 2009 acquisition of Rohm and Haas Interest expense net of capitalized interest and amortization of debt

discount totaled $1473 million in 2010 $1571 million in 2009 and $648 million in 2008 See Liquidity and Capital Resources for additional information

regarding debt financing activtty Interest income was $37 million in 2010 down from $39 million in 2009 and $86 million in 2008 Interest rates on

investments in 2010 were consistent with those of 2009 following decline from 2008 rates resulting
in lower interest income in 2010 and 2009 compared

with 2008
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The provision for income taxes was $481 million compared with credit of $97 million in 2009 and provision of $651 million in 2008 The

Companys effective tax rate fluctuates based on among other factors where income is earned and the level of income relative to tax credits available For

example as the percentage of foreign sourced income increases the Companys effective tax rate declines The Cnmpanys lax rate is alsn influenced hy the

level of equity earnings since most of the earnings from the Companys equity company investments are taxed at the joint venture level

The lax rate for 2010 was positively impacted by high level of equity earnings as percentage of total earnings the release of tax valuation

allowance tax law change and improved financial results in
jurisdictions

with tax rates that are lower than the U.S atatutory rate These factors resulted

in an effective tax rate of 17.2 percent for 2010

In 2009 the effective tax rate was negative 20.7 percent and was reduced by several factors significantly higher level of equity earnings as

percent of total earnings favorable accrualtoreturn adjustments in various geographies the recognition of domestic losses and an improvement in

financial results in jurisdictions with tax rates that are lower than the U.S
statutory

rate In 2008 the effective tax rate was 51.0 percent reflecting
the

negative impact of goodwill impairment losses that were not deductible for tax purposes

On June 30 2009 the Company sold the Calcium Chloride business and recognized $162 million pretax gain The results of operations related to

the Calcium Chloride business have been reclassified and reported as income from discontinued operations for all periods presented Income from

discontinued operations net of income taxes was $110 million $0.10 per share in 2009 compared with $28 million $0.03 per share in 2008

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests was $11 million in 2010 $28 million in 2009 and $75 million in 2008 Net income attributable to

nnncnntrolltng interests declined in 2010 compared wtth 2009 as result of the July 2009 redemption of the Tornado Finance V.O.F preferred partnership

units Net income attributable to nonconirolling interests declined in 2009 compared with 2008 as result of the third quarter of 2008 redemption by the

outside partner of its ownership interest in Hobbes Captial S.A See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information concerning

these noncontrnlling interests

Preferred stock dividends of $340 million were recognized in 2010 compared with preferred stock dividends of $312 million in 2009 Dividends

related to the Companys Cumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock Series were $340 million tn 2010 and $255 million in 2009 The remaining

$57 million of dividends in 2009 related to the Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series and Cumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock

Series both of which were retired in the second quarter of 2009 See Notes Wand to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

Net income available for common stockholders was $1970 million $1.72 per share in 2010 compared with $336 million $0.32 per share in 2009

end $579 million $0.62 per share in 2008

Net Income Available for Common Stockholders

as non$

2006
2007

20081570

2009 $338

2010 1t9T
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The following table summarizes the impact of certain item recorde din 2010 009 and 2008

Certain Items Impacting Results

In millions except per share amounts

Pretax

Impact

Impact on

Net Income

Impact on

EPS

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Cost of sales

One time increase in cost of sales related to fair valuation of

Rohm and Haas inventories

Impact of Hurricanes Gustav and Ike

KDow related expenes
Laborrelated litigation matter

Asset impairments and related costs

Goodwill impairment losses

Restructuring charges

Purchased inprocess research and development charges

Transaction integration and other acquisition costs

Asbestosrelated credOs

50
91

26

143
54

$209

689

226

181
69

239
839
44
49
54

$132

33
72

14 466

93 170
34

115
44

230
628
44
43
34

50.03

0.06

0.02

0.08
0.03

$0.13

0.01

0.45

0.01

0.16

50.12

0.05

0.25

0.68

0.05

0.05
0.04

Equity in earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates

Dow Corning restructuring

Equipolymers impairment

29
65

27
65

0.03

0.06

Sundry income net

Net gain on sale of TRN
Gain on sale of OPTIMAL

457

339

321

198

0.29

0.18

Gain Lusa un dtvesttture of Styron

Obligation related to past divestiture

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Total

27

47
46

$322
56

5492 $0367

56
30
29 36

5293 $389 $0070

0.04

0.03

0.02

$0.25

0.03
$0.4l $0.16

Impact on Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes

Impact on Net Income from Continuing Operations
Impact on Net income from continuing operations available for common stockholders Earnings per common share diluted

Consists of $513 million gain in Sundry income net and hedging losses of $56 million in Cost of sales
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SEGMENT RESULTS
In the fourth quarter of 2010 the Company made the followtng changea to tts operattng segments to reflect changes tn the Companys organizatton

Segment name changed from Basic Plastics to Plastics

Segment name changed from Basic Chemicals to Chemicals and Energy

Segment name changed from Hydrocarbons and Energy to Hydrocarbons

Energy moved from Hydrocarbons to Chemicals and Energy
Constructtonrelated cellulosics moved from Electronic and Specialty Materials to Coatings and Infrastructure

Transportatton adhesives moved from Coatings and Infrastructure to Performance Systems

Certatn new business development initiatives moved from Performance Products to Coatings and Infrastructure

The reporting changes are reflected tn this sectton for all periods presented

The reported results by operating segment can be found in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements The Company uses EBITDA which
Dow defines as earnings before interest income taxes depreciation and amortization as its measure of profit/loss

for segment reporting purposes EBITDA

by operating segment includes all operating items relating to the businesses except depreciation and amortization items that principally apply to the

Company as whole are assigned to Corporate Note also includes reconciliation of EBITDA to Income from Continuing Operations Before Income

Taxes

In order to provide the most meaningful comparison of results by operating segment the following discussion and analysis compares actual results for

2010 to actual results for the last nine months of 2009 plus pro forma historical results for the first
quarter

of 2009 and pro forms historical results for 2008

The unsudited pro forms historical segment information is based on the historical consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of both Dow

and Rohm and Usas and was prepared to illustrste the effects of the Companys acquisition of Rohm and Hsss assuming the scquisitton
of Rohm and Hass

had been consummated on Jsnusry 2008 In addition the unsudtted pro forms historical segment information reflects the impact of increased depreciation

and smorttzstion expense resulting from the fsir valuation of sssets acquired from Rohm and Hass assuming that the transaction hsd been consummsted on

Jenuary 2008

The unsudtted pro forms historical segment tnformstton prepared following the April 2009 acquisition of Rohm and Hass is not necesssrily

indicative of the results of operations that would have actually occurred hsd the
acquisition

been completed as of the dste indicsted nor is it indicative of

the future opersting results of the combined compsny The unsudited pro forms historical segment information does not reflect future events that msy occur

after the acquisition of Rohm snd Hsss including the potential reslizstton of operating cost ssvtngs synergtes or restructuring scltvittes or other costs

related to the plsnned integrstton
of Rohm and Hess and does not consider

potential impacts of current market conditions on revenues expense efficiencies

or asset dispositions with the exceptton of the sate of Dows Calcium Chloride business

The following table which summarizes the pretax impact of certain items recorded by Rohm end Hsas prior to the acquisition is provtded for pro

forms comparison purposes

Certain Items Impacting Rohm and Haas Three months

Results ended Year ended

In millions March 31 2009 Dec 31 2008

Impact of Hurricanes Gustav and Ike 29
Restructuring charges 199
Transaciton and other

acquisition
costs 80 54

Gain on sale of 40 percent equity investment in UP Chemical

Company 87

Total Rohm and Hess Certain Items 84 195

In addition due to the completion of several divestitures see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements the change in sales volume from 2009

excluding divestttures ts also provided by operating segment where applicable
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ELECTRONIC AND SPECIALTY MATERIALS
The Electronic and Specialty Materials segment consists of two businesses Dow Electronic Materials and Specialty Materials and tncludes the

Companys share of the results of Dow Corning Corporation ajotnt venture of the Company Dow Electronic Materials ts leading global supplier of

matertals for chemical mechanical planarization materials used in the production of electronic displays products and technologies that drive leading edge

semiconductor design materials used in the fabrication of printed circuit hoards and
integrated

metallization processes critical for interconnection

corrosion resistance metal
finishing

and decorative applications These materials are found in applications such as consumer electronics flat panel displays

and telecommunications Specialty Materials is portfolio of five global businesses Dow Water and Process Solutions Dow Home and Personal Care

Dow Microbial Control Dow Wolff Cellulosics and Performance Materials characterized by vast global footprint broad
array

of unique chemistries

multifunctional ingredients and technology capabilities combined with key positiuns in the pharmaceuticals food home and personal care water and

energy production nd industrial specialty industries

Electronic and Specialty Materials

Actual Results

LU flflhSWIO 2010 2009 2008

Sales

EBITDA
$5040

$1612

$3744

996

$2151
758

Electronic and Specialty Materials

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma
2009 Pro Forma Versus 2008 Pro Forma
In millions 2010 2009 2008

Sales

Price change from comparative period

Volume change from comparative period

Equity earnings

EBITDA
Certain items impacting EBITDA

$5040

19%

449

$1612

$4239

3%
16%

290

$1010
172

$5260
N/A

N/A

465

$1487
62

P08

_________
Iieiz

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

Electronic and Specialty Materials sales were $5040 million for 2010 up 19 percent from $4239 million in 2009 entirely
due to volume Volume was

strong across all geographic areas and all businesses reflecting improved economic conditions in the food and nutrition personal care water and electronics

industries Prices were flat for the segment as competitive pricing pressure on more mature products was countered by the introduction of new products

with higher margins and
targeted price increases in response to escalating raw materials costs EBITDA for 2010 was $1612 million significant increase

from $1010 million in 2009 primarily due to higher volume and higher equity earnings from Dow Corning Results for 2010 were negatively impacted by

an $8 million adjustment to the 2009
restructuring charge related to the closure of small manufacturing facility EBITDA for 2009 was negatively

impacted by restructuring charges of $68 million an increase in cost of sales of $75 million related to the fatr valuation of Rohm and Haas inventories and

the Companys $29 million share of restructuring charge recognized by Dow Corning

Electronic and Specialty Materials- Sales

tfl oPtions

2008 Actual fist

2008 Fto Forno tk 20O

2009 Attudt

Electronic and Specialty Materials- EBIIDA

hr nttkmns

2009 flo Foqtrn

2OlOActuat

2008 Actual

2008 Fo Focrm

2009 Actuat

2009 Ro Fonm

2010 Actual
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Dow Electronic Materials sales in 2010 were up 29 percent from 2009 driven by higher volume especially
in Asia Pacific primarily due to strong

underlying demand in the electronics
industry

and new product introductions Semiconductor foundry utilization rates across the industry improved

significantly compared with 2009 and were running in excess of 90 percent throughout most of 2010 supporting higher demand for chemical mechantcal

planarization pads and materials used in printed circuit boards Demand for liquid crystal display LCD chemicals and film materials that replace glass

used in plasma display panels also increased New product launches and strategic customer wins helped drive 39 percent volume growth for Dow

Electronic Materials in Asia Pacific

Specialty Materials sales in 2010 were up 13 percent from 2009 as volume improved 14 percent and prices decreased percent due to currency

Volume increased in all geographic areas with paritcular strength in Aaia Pacific and in all businesses Dow Water and Process Solutions sales were higher

driven by solid demand for ion exchange resins and reverse osmosis membranes Demand for specialty biocides and cellulosics used in food and nutrition

also improved significantly compared with 2009

2009 Versus 2008 Pro Forma Comparison
Electronic and Specialty Materials sales were $4239 million for 2009 down 19 percent from $5260 million in 2008 as volume dropped 16 percent and

prices
declined percent The decrease in volume was broadbased with declines in all geographtc areas and in all businesses due to the global downturn in

the electronics and construction industries EBITDA for 2009 was $1010 million compared with $1487 million for 2008 Despite the impact of lower

SGA expenses and lower raw material costs during 2009 EBITDA declined as result of lower volume decrease in equity earnings from Dow Corning
which included the Companys $29 million share of restructuring charge restructuring charges of $68 million see Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements and an increase in cost of sales of $75 million related to the fair valuation of Rohm and Haas inventories EBITDA for 2008 included gain on

the sale of Rohm and Haas investment in UP Chemical Company of $87 million restructuring charges of $22 million and hurricanerelated costs of

$3 million

Electronic Materials sales for 2009 were down 23 percent versus 2008 driven by 22 percent decrease in volume and percent decline in prices

Volume declined in all geographic areas reflecting the global economic downturn Asia Pacific however reported signs of recovery in the second half of

2009 due to rebound in electronics demand and restocking within the value chain

Specialty Materials sales for 2009 were down 17 percent versus 2008 with volume down 12 percent and prices down percent Volume declined

across all major businesses and geographic areas Volume declines in ion exchange resins and reverse osmosis membranes particularly for large industrial

water projects were principally
due to lower infrastructure spending and cautious capital spending by customers Volume declines in cellulosics were

driven by weaker construction industry conditions Prices declined in all geographic areas especially
in North America and EMEA

Electronic and Specialty Materials Outlook for 2011

Electronic and Specialty Materials sales are expected to increase in 2011 driven by continued demand in the electronics water and health care industries

especially in emerging geographies

Electronic Materials sales volume is expected to increase driven by higher demand across electronics endmarkets especially
in mobile phones LCD

televisions and tablet devices Industry semiconductor foundry utilization rates are expected to remain near current levels in 2011 In the fourth quarter of

2010 Dow Electronic Materials broke ground on two new manufacturing facilities in Asia Pacific The construction of the new metslorganic precursor

manufacturing plant
in Cheonsn Korea is

part
of multiphase plan announced in June 2010 to expand trimethylgallium production capacity to meet the

surgtng demand for the material in LED and related electronics applications The
facility

is expected to be operational in early 2011 new Eastern Chins

manufacturing facility at the Companys Zhangjiagang site will meet growing demand for materials for printed circuit boards electronic and industrial

finishing and photovoltaics in Asia Startup is planned for late 2011

Specialty Materials sales are also expected to tncrease especially
in emerging geographies due to higher demand for specialty biocides used in

personal care and cosmetics applications Higher demand for cellulosics used in food and nutrition is also expected Dow Water and Process Solutions sales

are expected In increase driven by higher demand for ion exchange resins and reverse osmosis membranes used in large industrial water desalination

projects Several innovation projects across the business are anticipated to drive higher sales
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COATINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE
The Coatings and Infrastruciure segment consists of the following businesses Dow Adhestves and Functional Polymers Dow Building and Construction

and Dow Coating Malerials These businesses produce wide
variety

of products with broad range of applications sticking and bonding solutions

construction materials insulation and vinyl applications and raw materials for architectural paints
and industrial coatings

Coatings and Infrastructure

Actual Results

In millions 2010 2009 2008

Sales

EBITDA
$5365

$743

$4551

$414

$3234

$212

Coatings and Infrastructure

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

2009 Pro Forma Versus 2008 Pro Forma

In millions 2010 2009 2008

Sales

Price change from comparative period

Volume change from comparative period

Volume change excluding divestitures

Equity earnings

EBITDA
Certain items impacting EBITDA

$5365

7%

3%
4%

$2

$743

15

$5173

7%
16%

N/A

$3

$518

1254

$6723
N/A

N/A

N/A

$2

$731

139

CoatIngs and lnfraMructure Sales

in rrons

.1

CoatIngs and lnfraucture EBIIDA

in rrflion.sl

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

Coatings and Infrastructure sales were $5365 million for 2010 up percent from $5173 million in 2009 Compared with 2009 price was up percent

while volume declined percent Price improved across all geographic areas and most businesses drtven by higher raw material costs The price

improvement was most pronounced in Dow Coating Materials where raw material supply constraints led to favorable pricing environment during 2010

Volume declined as result of recent divestitures within the segment Excluding the impact of the FTC required divestiture of certain specialty latex assets

and the divestiture of the Powder Coatings business volume increased percent compared with 2009 The increase in volume was primarily driven by

higher demand for insulation products and adhesives used in packaging and leather applications

EBITDA for 2010 was $743 million compared with $518 million for 2009 Results for 2010 were negatively impacted by $5 million in restructuring

charges related to the divestiture of the specialty
latex assets EBITDA for 2009 was reduced by $172 million of

restructuring charges primarily related to

the Companys actions to optimize facilities following the acquisition of Rohm and I-laas and an increase in cost of sales of $82 million related to the fair

valuation of Rohm and Haas inventories Compared with 2009 the benefit of higher prices improved operating rates and lower SCA expenses was offset

by significantly higher raw material costs See Notes and to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on restructuring charges

and the acquisition of Rohm and Haas

2008 Actual

2008 Po Fonn

2009 Actual

2009 Po Foosi

2010 Actual

_____
2008 Actual

2008 cto Foinn

2009 Actual

2009 For no

2010 Actual

tnt
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2009 Versus 2008 Pro Forma Comparison

Coatings and Infrastructure sales were $5173 million for 2009 down 23 percent from $6723 million in 2008 ss volume dropped 16 percent and
prices

fell

percent The decrease in price and volume was due to weak demand for architectural and industrial coatings and other materials used in residential and

commercial construction and lower demand for packaging adhesive tapes and paper labels Demand for coatings and construction materials was down

significantly due to the downturn in the housing industry particularly in North America and EMEA

EBITDA for 2009 was $518 million compared with $731 million for 2008 EBITDA for 2009 was reduced by $172 million of restructuring charges

and by an $82 million increase in cost of sales related to the fair valuation of Rohm and Mass inventories As result of these charges and the decrease in

sales EBITDA declined in 2009 despite lower raw material and freight costs and lower SCA expenses EBITDA for 2008 included $39 million of

restructuring charges

Coatings and Infrastructure Outlook for 2011

Coatings and Infrastructure sales are expected to increase in 2011 driven by the gradual recovery of new residential
cotmtruction

in the United States and

continued growth in insulation products due to more stringent energy codes Innovation projects like POWERHOUSE solar shingles are expected to

commercially launch in the second half of 2011 Dow Coating Materials sales are also expected to increase especially
in emerging geographies driven by

higher demand for architectural coatings Demand for industrial coatings is expected to remain flat Price increases are expected across most businesses in

response to projected higher raw material costs in 2011

HEALTH AND AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES
Dow AgroSciences is global leader in providing agricultural and plant biotechnology products pest management solutions and healthy oils The business

invents develops manufactures and markets products for use in agricullure industrial and commercial pest management and food service

Health and Agricultural Sciences

Actual Results

In millions 2010 2009 2008

Sales

EBITDA
$4869

$640

$4522

$573

$4535

$872

Health and Agricultural Sciences

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

2009 Pro Forma Versus 2008 Pro Forma

In millions 2010 2009 2008

Sales

Price change from comparative period

Volume change from comparative period

Equity earnings

EBITDA
Certain items impacting EBITDA

$4869

4%
11%

$2

$640

$4537

6%
4%

$2

$577

$15

$4609

N/A
N/A

$4

$892

49
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2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

Health and Agricultural sales were record $4869
million

in 2010 up from $4537 million in 2009 Sales increased percent with volume up 11 percent

and
price down percent With the launch of SmartStaxT technology growth in the corn soybean and cotton portfolios and new seed acquisitions the

Seeds Traits and Oils bustness reported 25 percent increase in volume New agricultural chemicals products also posted strong volume growth increasing

34 percent as pyroxsulam cereal herbicide sales doubled and penoxsulam rice herbicide aminopyralid range and pasture herbicide and spinetoram

insecticide recorded doubledigit growth The
price

decline when compared with the same period last year was the result of continued generic competition

on commodity agricultural chemicals AgroFresh reported modest volume growth in all geographic areas in 2010

EBITDA for 2010 was $640 million compared with $577 million in 2009 EBITDA increased as sales volume gains in the Seeds Traits and Oils

business new product growth and continued portfolio management more than offset lower pricing on commodity agricultural chemicals and increased

investment in RD and SGA to support growth initiatives Results for 2009 were favorably impacted by $15 million reduction in the 2007
restructuring

reserve originally related to preacquisition contract termination fees between the Company and Rohm and Haas See Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for information on restructuring charges

2009 Versus 2008 Pro Forma Comparison
Health and Agricultural sales were $4537 million in 2009 down from $4609 million in 2008 Sales decreased percent as prices

declined percent half

due to currency while volume increased percent Reduced farm income and tighter credit markets in many regions created significant downward pricing

pressure during 2009 Prices declined as farm income was negatively impacted by falling crop commodity prices combined with the relatively higher costs

of purchases made earlier in the year The commodity product glyphosate accounted for the vast majority of the overall decline in
prices compared with

2008 Volume increased as new seed acquisitions and growth in the corn soybean and sunflower portfolios resulted in 33 percent sales growth in the Seeds

Traits and Oils business Volume for new agricultural chemicals products also increased as pyroxsulam sales more than
tripled antpenoxsulam

and

spinetoram had continued strong growth AgroFresh posted record sales volume growth compared with 2008 as SMARTFRESH technology for

maintaining Ihejust harvested quality and fieshness of fruits and vegetables continued to receive excellent channel support in all geographic areas

EBITDA for 2009 was $577 million compared with $892 million in 2008 EBITDA was negatively impacted by higher cosis associated with the

valuation of inventory based on reduced raw material prices unfavorable currency exchange rates glyphosate price declines and increased RD and

SGA expenses to support growth initiatives Results for 2009 were favorably impacted by $15 million reduction in the 2007 restructuring reserve

originally related to preacquisition contract termination fees between the Company and Rohm and Haas EBITDA for 2008 was negatively impacted by

charges of $44 million for IPRD related to seed acquisitions $3 million in restructuring charges and $2 million related to the 2008 hurricanes

Health and Agricultural Sciences Outlook for 2011

Health and Agricultural Sciences sales for 2011 are expected to grow above the levels achieved
io

2010 Volume is anticipated to increase in key regions as

the agricultural industry benefits from strong global demand for agricultural products SmartStax technology which is already considered an industry

leading corn slacked trait will enter its second year of commercial production in 2011 Continued sales growth of new producis pyroxsulam spinetoram

penoxsulam and aminopyralid is also anticipated in 2011 Investments in technology capacity and geographic reach in the Seeds Traits and Oils business

remain priority
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PERFORMANCE SYSTEMS
The Performance Systems segment conststs of the following bustnesses Dow Automottve Systems Dow Elastomers Dow Wire and Cable Dow
Formulated Systems Dow Oil and Gas and Dow Fiber Solutions These businesses produce wide

variety
of products with brnad range

of applications

automotive interiors and exteriors footwear mattresses specialty films wind turbines transportation waterproofing membranes and electrical and

telecommunication applications

On March 2010 Dow announced that it had signed definitive agreement for the sale of Styron to an affiliate of Batn Capital Partners the

transaction closed on June 17 2010 Businesses and products sold included Synthetic Rubber and certain products from Dow Automotive Systems which

were reported in the Performance Systems segment through the date of the divestiture See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information on this divestiture

Performance Systems

Actual Results

In millinns 2010 2009 2008

Sales

EBITDA
$6676

$855

$5782
$668

$7531
$235

Performance Systems

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

2009 Pro Forma Versus 2008 Pro Forma

In millions 2010 2009 2008

Sales

Price change from comparative pertod

Volume change from comparative period

Volume change excluding divestitures

Equity earnings

EBITDA
Certain items impacting EBITDA

$6676

6%
7%

15%

$8

$855

$12

$5902

1%
18%

N/A

$4

$666

$129

$8294
N/A

N/A

N/A

$2
$279

$1287

Performance Systems Sales

ntas

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Furina

Performance Systems sales for 2010 were $6676 million up 13 percent from $5902 million in 2009 Volume increased percent end price increased

percent with both volume and price improvement reported in all businesses and all geographic areas Dow Formulated Systems led volume growth for the

segment as demand for formulations related to alternative energy and energy efficiency
rebounded from the global economic slowdown Demand was also

strong in the transportation adhesives and packaging industries while demand for wire and cable applications increased to lesser extent Offsetting these

increases were reductions in volume due to the divestiture of Synthetic Rubber and certain products from Dow Automotive Systems in the second quarter of

2010 as part
of the Styron divestiture Excluding the impact of these divestttures volume increased 15 percent for the segment Dow Elastomers reported

the most
significant

increase in price due to tight supply/demand balances during the year

2008 Actual

2008 Fto F0nm3
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2010 Actual
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EBITDA for 2010 was $855 million compared with $666 million in 2009 EBITDA in 2010 included $7 million net gain on the sale of Styron and

$9 million writeoff of
capital project spending in Dow Automotive Systems EBITDA in 2009 was reduced by $30 million increase in cost of sales

related to the fair valuation of inventories acquired from Rohm and Nasa and was favorably impacted $1 million from the sale of the Companys ownership

interest in OPTIMAL Compared with last year EBITDA improved as volume growth higher prices improved operating rates and lower RD expenses

due to recent divestitures more than offset higher feedstock and energy and other raw material costs

2009 Versus 2008 Pro Forma Comparison
Performance Systems sales were $5902 million in 2009 down from $8294 million in 2008 Sales declined 29 percent whh volume declining 18 percent

and
prices declining 11 percent The decrease in volume was broad based across all geographic areas and most businesses with declines driven by the

global economic slowdown in the automotive construction and utility industries The drop in prices was also broadbased with decreases reported in all

geographic areas driven by lower feedstock and other raw material costs

EBITDA for 2009 was $666 million compared with $279 million in 2008 EBITDA increased from 2008 as decrease in raw material and feedatock

costs lower
freight costs and lower RD and SCA expenses offset lower selling prices and lower volume EBITDA for 2009 was reduced by

$30 million increase in cost of sales related to the fair valuation of inventories acquired from Rohm and Haas and was favorably impacted by $1 million

from the sale of the Companys ownership interest in OPTIMAL EBITDA for 2008 was negatively impacted by goodwill impairment loss of

$209 million associated with Dow Automotive Systems See Note Ito the Consolidated Financial Statements costs of $6 million related to the U.S Gulf

Coast hurricanes and
restructuring charges of $72 million related to the closure or impairment of several manufacturing facilities See Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for information on restructuring charges

Performance Systems Outlook for 2011

Performance Systems sales are expected to increase in 2011 as recovery in the transportation packaging building and construction and

infrastructurerelated industries continues particularly in emerging geographies Dow Formulated Systems volume is expected to continue to grow with

increased demand in energy etfliency
and alternative energy applications Dow Elastomers is also expected to experience continued growth with the

introduction of the ENLIGHT encapsulant films which began commercialscale production in late 2010 in Findlay Ohio Performance Systems expects

increased prices in 2011 driven by projected higher feedstock and other raw material costs The anticipated startup of new specialty elastomers

production train at joint venture in Thailand will increase capacity and expand the Companys presence in Asia Pacific

PERFORMANCE PRODUCTS
The Performance Products segment consists of the following businesses Amines Emulsion Polymers through the june 17 2010 divestiture of Styron

Epoxy Oxygenated Solvents Performance Monomers Polyglycols Surfactants and Fluids Polyurethanes Dow l-laltermann and SAFECHEM These

businesses produce wide variety of products with broad range of applications adhesives and deicing fluids solvents paper and paperboard

applications carpet backing and home furnishings The segment also includes portion of the results of the OPTIMAL Group of Companies through the

September 30 2009 divestiture of this group ofjoint ventures and the SCGDow Group ofJoint ventures

On March 2010 Dow announced the entry into definitive agreement to sell Styron to an affiliate of Bain Capital Partners the transaction closed

on June 17 2010 Businesses and products sold included Emulsion Polymers styrenebutadiene latex which was reported in the Performance Products

segment through the date uf the divestiture 5ee Nute to the Cunsolidctted Fiuaiiuial Statements for additional information on this divestiture

Performance Products

Actual Results

Tn m41ln 2010 2009 2008

Sales $10903 8938 $12114

EBITDA $1311 $1151 $1049
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Performance Products

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

2009 Pro Forma Versus 2008 Pro Forma
In rnillinnc 2010 2009 2008

Sales $10903 $9065 $13026
Price change from comparative period

Volume change from comparative period

Volume change excluding divestitures

Equity earnings

EBITDA
Certain items impacting EBITDA

15%

5%
14%

$5

$1311
584

18%
12%

N/A

$31

$1107

$43

N/A

N/A

N/A

$52

$1060

5117

2008 Actual

2008 Pto Fcxnu

2009 Actual

2009 Fcxne

2010 Actual

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma
Performance Products sales were $10903 million in 2010 up 20 percent from $9065 million in 2009 Price increased 15 percent driven primarily by

increased feedstock and energy and other raw material costs while volume increased percent as the global economic recovery led to increased demand

Prices increased in all businesses within the segment end double
digit price

increases were reported in all geugrephic aieas Compdred with last year

volume growth was negatively impacted by the sale of the Companys Emulsion Polymers assets as
part

of the Styron divestiture completed on June 17

2010 Excluding the impact of Ihe Emulsion Polymers divestiture volume was up 14 percent with increases in most businesses and all geographic areas

Strong growth was reported by the Epoxy business up 30 percent driven by improved demand for resins used in the automotive and electronic industries

and new product supply agreements with Styron Oxygenated Solvents also reported significant volume gain of 22 percent driven by the economic

recovery especially in North America and Asia Pacific

EBITDA for 2010 was $1311 million up from $1107 mIllion In 2009 Compared with last year higher prices and volume improved operating rates

and lower RD and SGA expenses more than offset higher raw materials costs higher manufacturing and supply chain costs and lower equity earnings

due to costs associated with the startup of new joint venture EBITDA for 2010 was negatively Impacted by $15 million in adjustments to the 2009

restructuring plan and asset impairment charges and related costs of $48 million in the Polyurethanes business and $34 million writeoff of capital project

spending and related costs in the Epoxy business and was favorably impacted by $13 million net gain on the sale of Styron EBITDA for 2009 was

positively impacted by again of $145 million on the sale of the Companys ownership interest in OPTIMAL partially offset by restrucluring charges of

$73 million an increase in cost of sales of $22 million related to the fair valuation of Rohm and Haas inventories and $7 million charge related to the

impairment of goodwill associated with the Dow Haltermann reporting unit

2009 Versus 2008 Pro Forma Comparison
Performance Products sales were $9065 million in 2009 down from $13026 million in 2008 Sales declined 30 percent with prices declining 18

percent

and volume declining 12 percent The sharp drop in prices was largely driven by decline in feedstock and energy and other raw material costs Volume

was down in all businesses as result of weak global demand Prom geographic standpoint North America and EMEA experienced substantial volume

declines while the decline in Latin America was less pronounced and Asia Pacific reported slight volume increase

Performance Products- Sales
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EBITDA for 2009 was $1107 million up from $1060 million in 2008 Compared with 2008 the benefits of lower raw material and freight costs and

lower SGA and RD expenses were more than offset by declines in
price and volume EBITDA for 2009 was positively impacted by gain of

$145 million on the sale of the Companys ownership interest in OPTIMAL partially offset by restructuring charges of $73 million and an increase in cost

of sales of $22 million related to the fair valuation of Rohm and Haas inventories EBITDA for 2008 was negatively impacted by costs of $78 million

related to the U.S Gulf Coast hurricanes and restructuring charges of $39 million related to the closure of several manufacturing facilities See Note to the

Consoltdated Financial Statements for information on
restructuring charges

Performance Products Outlook for 2011

The global economic recovery is expected to continue in 2011 with higher selling prices within the segment largely
driven by higher projected feedstock

and energy costs Pricing may come under pressure for some of the businesses as new industry capacity is anticipated in 2011 Moderate volume growth is

expected driven by continued strong demand and the anticipated startup of propylene oxide production at consolidated joint venture in Thailand

PLASTICS
The Plastics segment tncludes the following businesses Polyethylene Polypropylene Styrenics through the June 17 2010 dtvesttture of Styron Plastics

Licenstng and Catalyst and Polycarbonate and Compounds and Blends through the june 17 2010 divestiture of Styron These worldleading businesses

provide broad range of products and solutions by leveraging Dows leading manufacturing and application technology research and product development

expertise extensive market knowledge and strong customer relationships Product applications range from beverage bottles disposable diaper liners and

toys to plastic pipe oil tanks and road equipment The Plastics segment also includes the results of Equipolymers Americas Styrenics LLC through the

june 17 2010 divestiture of Styron and Univation Technologies LLC and portion of the results of EQUATE Petrochemical Company K.S.C The

Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C and the 5CCDow Group all
joint ventures of the Company

On March 2010 Dow announced the entry into definitive agreement to sell Styron to an affiliate of Batn Capital Partners the transaction closed

on june 17 2010 Businesses and products sold included Styrenics polystyrene acrylonitrtle butadtene styrene styrene acrylonitrile
and expandable

polystyrene Polycarbonate and Compounds and Blends as well as the Companys 50percent ownership interest in Americas Styrentcs LLC principdl

nonconsoltdated affiliate all of which were reported in the Plastics segment through the date of the divestiture See Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information on this divestiture

For the Plastics segment there was no difference between actual and pro forms sales and EBITDA for 2009 and 2008

Plastics

Actual Results

In mtlltnnc 2010 2009 2008

Sales $11551 9925 $14240
Price change from comparative period

Volume change from comparative period

Volume change excluding dtvestttures

Equity earnings

EBITDA
Certain items impacting EBITDA

24%

8%
1%

$255

$2910

$7

27%
3%

N/A

$112

$1665

66

N/A

N/A

N/A

$115

$1746

194
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Plastics Sales Plastics EBITOA

in nsThnb in tittions

2008 Acm $14240 2X Arh

2009 Actual 2009 Actual

2OlOActual $j1551 2OiOActuaI

2010 Versus 2009

Plastics sales for 2010 were $11551 million up 16 percent from $9925 million in 2009 with price up 24 percent snd volume down percent Globsl

economic conditions began to improve during the second half of 2009 and this momentum carried over into 2010 Feedstock and energy costs were

significantly higher than in 2009 driving doubledigit price increases in all geographic areas The decline in volume for the segment reflected the

divestiture of the Styrenics and Polycarbonate and Compounds and Blends businesses as part of the June 17 2010 divestiture of Styron Sales volume

excluding the impact of the Styron divestiture was up percent from 2009 Sales volume during the first half of 2010 was negatively impacted by planned

maintenance turnarounds at the Companys polyethylene and polypropylene production facilities in North America and Europe Production was also

negatively impacted during the first half of the year by an unplanned site outage at the Companys polypropylene production facility
in Schkopau Germany

and by ethylene supply limitations at the Companys Bahia Blanca polyethylene facility in Argentina With the completion of the maintenance turnarounds

and resolution of the outages production returned to normal levels during the second hslf of 2010 and demand was strong Polypropylene volume was

significantly higher in North America and EMEA as demand in the consumer goods automotive and packaging sectors was particularly strong

EBITDA for 2010 was $2910 million up from $1665 mtllion in 2009 While feedstock and energy and other raw materials costs were significantly

higher than those of 2009 these increases were more than offset by higher prices and improved equity earnings from the Companys joint ventures in

Kuwait EBITDA for 2010 included $7 million net gain on the divestiture of Styron EBITDA in 2009 was impacted by $65 million of impairment charges

related to the Companys investment in Equipolymers nonconsolidated affiliate and $1 million of restructuring charges See Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for information on restructuring charges

2009 Versus 2008

Plastics sales for 2009 were $9925 million down 30 percent from $14240 million in 2008 Doubledigit price
declines were reported in ail geographic

areas during 2009 The decline in feedstock costs and the weak pricing environment that developed in late 2008 carried forward into 2009 resulting in

prices
that were 27 percent lower than those of 2008 After reaching low point during the first quarter of 2009 prices improved during the remainder of

the year Volume was negatively impacted by weak global economic conditions declining percent for the year Volume improved however in Asia

Pacific and Latin America and as the economic recovery began to gather momentum and demand increased Lower natural gas and other feedstock
prtces

in

North America as well as delays in the startup of new Middle East industry production capacity resulted in economic conditions that favored the export of

North American production into these geographic areas Volume in North America and EMEA was lower as weak economic condittons persisted

throughout the year The volume decline in North America also reflected the May 2008 formation of Americas Styrenics LLC

$1146
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EBITDA for 2009 was $1665 million down from $1746 million in 2008 While Plastics benefited from significant decline in feedsiock costs

lower raw material snd freight costs snd lower SGA expenses these favorable impacts were more than offset by the decline in prices Equity earnings

were down slightly from 2008 as improved earnings from Americas Styrenics LLC The Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C LG DOW Polycarbonate Limited

and Siani Polyethylene were more than offset by lower earnings from EQUATE EBITDA in 2009 was impacted by $65 million of impairment charges

related to the Companys investment in Equipolymers nonconsolidated affiliate and $1 million of
restructuring charges EBITDA in 2008 was reduced by

restructuring charges totaling
$148 million The 2008

restructuring charges reflect the writedown of the Companys investment in project to form joint

venture in Oman with the Oman Petrochemicals Industries Company LLC costs related to the shutdown of production facilities Terneuzen The

Netherlands Freeport Texas and Riverside Missouri as well as costs associated with the permanent shutdown of the operations of the Petromont and

Company Limited Partnership Petromont joint venture in Varennes Canada EBITDA in 2008 also included goodwill impairment loss of $30 million

associated with the polypropylene reporting unit see Note Ito the Consolidated Financial Statements as well as costs of $16 million related to the U.S

Gulf Coast hurricanes

Plastics Outlook for 2011

Feedstock and energy costs are expected to increase in 2011 as global economic conditions continue to improve In North America stable natural gas prices

are expected to help U.S Gulf Coast polyethylene production maintain competitive position globally The Company will continue to focus on higher

margin differentiated products and operating efficiencies to minimize the
potential impact of higher and volatile propylene costs Both polyethylene and

polypropylene are expected to face increased competition from new industry capacity that came on line in 2009 and 2010 and additional industry capacity

expected to come online during 2011 The segment is also expected to be favorably impacted by the SCGDow Groups solutions polyethylene plant
in

Thailand that came online in the fourth quarter of 2010 Equity earnings from the Companys joint
ventures in Kuwait and Univation Technologies LLC

are also expected to improve in 2011

CHEMICALS AND ENERGY
The Chemicals and Energy segment includes the tottowing businesses ChlorAlkatilChlnrVinyt Energy Ethylene Oxide/Ethylene Glycol and

Chlorinated Organics The ChlorAlkaliJChlor Vinyl business focuses on the production of chlorine for consumption by downstream Dow derivatives as

well as production marketing and supply of ethylene dichloride vinyl chloride monomer and caustic soda These products are used for applications such as

alumina production pulp and paper manufacturing soaps and detergents and building and construction The Energy business supplies power steam and

other utilities principally for use in Dows global operations The Ethylene Oxide/Ethylene Glycol business is the worlds largest producer of purified

ethylene oxide principally used in Dows downstream performance derivatives Dow is also key supplier of ethylene glycol to MEGlobal 5050
joint

venture Ethylene glycol is used in polyester fiber polyethylene terephthalate PET for food and beverage container applications polyester film and

aircraft and runway deicers Also included in the Chemicals and Energy segment are the results of MEGlobal and portion of the results of EQUATE
Petrochemical Company K.S.C The Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C and the OPTIMAL Group of Companies through the September 30 2009 divestiture

of this group of companies all joint ventures of the Company

For the Chemicals and Energy segment there was no difference between actual and pro forma sales and EBITDA for 2009 and 2008

Chemicals and Energy
Actual Results

tn mtlltnns 2010 2009 2008

Sales $3485 $2816 $4893
Price change from comparative period

Volume change from comparative period

Equity earnings

EBITDA

18%

6%
$344

$574

27%
l5%

$163

$103

N/A

N/A

$214

$278

Certain items impacting EBITDA $118 $l47
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Chemicals and Energy Sales Chemicals and Energy EBITDA

ii rnflcna rnltcinsj

2008 Actual 44893 Ajal I$278

2009 Actual 816 2009 Actual $103

2010 Actual $34$$ 2010 Actual $574

2010 Versus 2009

Chemicals and Energy sales were $3485 million in 2010 up 24 percent from $2816 million in 2009 Compared with last year price
was up 18 percent

with increases reported acroas all busineases and geographic areaa Volume improved percent for the segment as volume gains in the

Chlor AlkaliJChlorVinyl and Energy businesses more than offset declines in the Ethylene Oxide/Ethylene Clycol EO/EG business Sales for the

ChlorAlkalilChlorVinyl business increased 28 percent over 2009 driven by 19 percent increase in price and percent increase in volume Vinyl

chloride monomer VCM price and volume increased in response to higher ethylene costs and strong U.S polyvinyl chloride PVC export demand

Caustic soda volume improved due to increased demand in the alumina and pulp and paper industries Sales for the EO/EC business were down compared

with 2009 as 21 percent decrease in volume more than offset 19 percent increase in price EO/EC volume declined as expected due to the business

strategic shift to supply purified ethylene oxide to internal derivative businesses and the closure of the Companys Willon England facility in January 2010

Sales for the Chlorinated Organtcs business increased due to improved pricing in refrigerants fluoropolymers and solvent applications as well as an

improvement in volume Sales for the Energy business increased 34 percent compared with 2009 with volume up 31 percent and price up percent Sales

for the Energy business are primarily opportunistic merchant sales driven by market conditions and sales to customers located on Dow manufacturing sites

Sales fluctuate as the Company balances energy supply and demand at its manufacturing sites however the improving economy offered more opportunities

for merchant sales in 2010 The Energy business supplies Dows businesses at net cost resulting in EBITDA that is at or near breakeven for the business

EBITDA for 2010 was $574 million up signiftcanily from $103 million in 2009 which included $193 million gain on the sale of the Companys

ownership interest in OPTIMAL offset by $75 million of restructuring costs EBITDA in 2010 improved significantly
due to higher pikes and volume

improved operating rates and higher equity earnings from EQUATE MEGlobal and The Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C

2009 Versus 2008

Chemicals and Energy sales were $2816 million in 2009 down 42 percent from $4893 million in 2008 Both volume and
prices

were down across all

businesses primarily due to unfavorable supply/demand balances ChlorAlkali/ChlorVinyl sales decreased 41 percent compared with 2008 with

34 percent decrease in
prices

and percent decrease in volume Prices for VCM were down compared with 2008 on weak demand in the housing and

construction industries Volume for VCM was essentially unchanged as increased sales to customers exporting polyvtnyl chloride offset the decline in North

American domestic demand CaustIc soda sales were Impacted by weak demand in the alumina chemical processing and pulp and paper industries driving

both prices and volume down EO/EG sales decreased 55 percent versus 2008 with 32 percent decrease in volume and 23 percent decrease in prices

Compared with 2008 EG volume declined due to pressure from new industry capacity while prices declined due to lower ethylene prices and weak

demand

EBITDA for 2009 was $103 million compared with $278 million In 2008 EBITDA for 2009 was positively impacted by $193 million gain on the

sale of OPTIMAL offset by restructuring charges of $75 million EBITDA in 2008 was negatively impacted by hurricanerelated costs of $44 million and

resuuciurtng charges of $103 million related to the impairment of the ethylene oxide/ethylene glycol EO/EG plant at Wilton England the impaIrment of the

chlorinated organics plant in Aratu Brazil and the closure of the chloralkali plant in Oyster Creek Texas see Note to the Consolidated Pinancial

Statements for information on restructuring charges EBITDA declined in 2009 as the benefit of significantly lower feedstock and energy costs and

increased equity earnings from The Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C were more than offset by lower prices lower volume and declines in equity earnings

from EQUATE and OPTIMAL
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Chemicals and Energy Outlook for 2011

The Chemicals and Energy segment expects overall market conditions to be consistent with 2010 VCM sales are expected to decline in 2011 due to the

Companys planned reduction of North American VCM production capacity Additional chioralkali industry capacity is expected to come online during

the second half of 2011 but increasing global demand should keep supply and demand consistent with 2010 The EO/EC business is completing strategic

shift to produce purified
ED for the internal Dow derivative businesses this will result tn lower sales volume in 2011 Chlorinated Organics sales are

expected to decline in 2011 due to maintenance turnarounds scheduled for 2011 Equity earnings are anticipated to be in line with 2010

In the fourth quarter of 2010 Dow and Mitsui Co Ltd formed 5050 manufacturing joint venture to construct own and operate new membrane

chlnralkalt
facility

Incated at Dnws Freepnrt Texas integrated manufacturing complex Construction is slated to begin in early 2011 and operations are

expected to begin in.mtd 2013 The new facility
will have an annual capacity of approximately 800 kilotons Under contract to the jotnt venture Dow will

operate and maintain the
facility and the Joint venture is consolidated into Dows consolidated financial statements

HYDROCARBONS
The Hydrocarbons business encompasses the procurement of fuels natural gas liquids and crude otibased raw materials as well as the supply of

monomers principally for use in Dows global operations The business regularly sells its byproducts and buys and sells its products to balance regional

production capabilities and derivative requirements The business also sells products to certain Dow joint ventures The Hydrocarbons segment also includes

the results of Compania Mega S.A and portion of the results of The Kuwait Oleftns Company K.S.C and the SCGDow Group joint
ventures of the

Company

On March 2010 Dow announced the entry into definitive agreement to sell Styron to an affiliate of Batn Capital Partners the transaction closed

on June 17 2010 Businesses and products sold included certain styrene monomer assets which were reported in the Hydrocarbons segment through the

date of the divestiture See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional toformatton on this divestiture

For the Hydrocarbuns segment there was no diffeience between actual and pro fornia sales and EBITDA for 2009 and 2008

Hydrocarbons
Actual Results

t.. .10.-...flLLWo 2010 2009 2008

Sales $5442 $3892 $8340

Price change from comparative period

Volume change from comparative period

Volume change excluding divestitures

Equity earnings

EBITDA
Certain items impacting EBITDA

35%

5%
38%

$63

11

28%
25%

N/A

$33

$391

$392

N/A

N/A

N/A

$41

170

61

Hydrocarbons Sales

muons

2008 Actual

2009 Actual

20t0 Actual
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2010 Versus 2009

Hydrocarbons sales were $5442 million in 2010 up 40 percent from $3892 million in 2009 with
prices increasing 35 percent and volume increasing

percent The increase in
selling prices was result of higher feedstock and energy costs driven by demand improvements across the industry while the

Companys product supply agreements with Styron led to an increase in trsde sales volume compared with 2009

The Company uses derivatives of crude oil and natural gas as feedstock in its ethylene facilities The Companys cost of purchased feedstock and

energy increased $5.0 billion in 2010 Crude oil
prices increased and on average 2010 prices were $18 per barrel 29 percent higher than 2009 levels

North American natural gas prices
also increased in 2010 and were approximately $0.50 per million Btu higher than in 2009 an increase of 13 percent

The Hydrocarbons business transfers materials to Dows derivative businesses at net cost which results in EBITDA that is typically at or near

breakeven EBJTDA for 2010 was loss of $1 million compared with income of $391 million in 2009 EBITDA for 2009 included $457 million gain on

the sale of the Companys ownership interest in TEN and
restructuring charges of $65 million primarily related to the Companys decision to shut down an

ethylene manufacturing facility
in Hahnvile Louisiana

2009 Versus 2008

Hydrocarbons sales were $3892 million in 2009 down significantly from $8340 million in 2008 The decrease in selling prices to 2009 was driven by the

impact of the global economic recession and the unprecedented decline of crude oil and other commodity prices that began in the fourth quarter of 2008 and

continued tnto 2009 Volume declined sharply in 2009 due to lower ethylene cracker operating rates and lower rettnery sales as result of planned

maintenance turnaround at TRN and the September 2009 sale of the Companys ownership interest in TEN

The Companys cost of purchased feedstock and
energy declined $10.2 billion 40 percent in 2009 Crude oti prtces decreased and on average 2009

prices were $36 per barrel 37 percent lower than 2008 levels North Amertcan natural gas prices
also decreased significantly and were approximately

$5.04 per million Btu lower than in 2008 decrease of 56 percent

EBITDA for 2009 was $391 million driven by $457 million gain on the sale of the Companys interest in TEN and restructuring charges of

$65 million EBITDA for 2008 was loss of $70 million primarily due to hurricanerelated costs of $43 million and restructuring charges of $18 million

Hydrocarbons Outlook for 2011

Crude oil and feedstocks are expected to remain volatile and sensitive to external factors such as economic activity and geopolitical tensions In 2011 the

Company expects crude oil prices on average to be higher than 2010 Demand is expected to grow in line with or above gross domestic product Ethylene

margins are expected to fluctuate due to variability in economic recovery and new industry capacity

CORPORATE
Included in the results for Corporate are

results of insurance company operations

results of Morton Internattonal Inc through the October 2009 dtvesttture of this business see Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

gains and losses on sales of financial assets

stockbased compensation expense and severance costs

changes in the allowance for doubtful receivables

expenses related to Ventures

asbestos related defense and resolution costs

foreign exchange hedging results and

certain overhead and other cost recovery variances not allocated to the operating segments
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Corporate
Actual Results

Tn nfl1nnc-..--... 2010 2009 2008

Sales

EBITDA
$343

$l444
$705

$0133
$323

$0005

Corporate
2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

2009 Pro Forma Versus 2008 Pro Forma

In millions 2010 2009 2008

Sales

Equity earnings

EBITDA
Certain items impacting EBITDA

$343

$06
$0444

$230

$1095

$8
$0092

$623

$1539

$8
$0092

$784

2010 Actual Versus 2009 Pro Forma

Sales for Corporate which for 2010 primarily related to the Compsnys insurance operstions were $343 million in 2010 down from $1095 million in

2009 which also included the results of Morion International Inc Morton the Sslt business acquired with the Rohm and Hsas acquisition ihrough the

fourth quarter of 2009 divestiture of the business

EBITDA for 2010 wss loss of $1444 million compared with loss of $1092 million in the same period last yesr EBITDA for 2010 was lower due

to increased performancebased compensation including stockbased compensation and increased expense related to higher employee participation in the

Employees Stock Purchase Plan and the absence of earnings from Morton Additionally EBITDA was reduced by integration
costs of $143 million related

to the acquisition of Rohm and Haas $50 million of laborrelated litigation costs charge of $47 million for an obligation related to past divestiture and

$46 million loss on the
early extinguishment of debt EBITDA for 2010 was favorably impacted by $54 million reduction in the asbestosrelated

liability
and $2 million in net adjustments to

prior year restructuring plans

EBITDA for 2009 was reduced by costs related to the April 2009 acquisition of Rohm and Haas of $362 million including $166 million of other

transaction and
integration costs expensed in accordance with the accounting guidance for business combinations $60 million of acquisitionrelated

retention expenses $56 million loss on the early extinguishment of debt and $80 million of transaction and other
acquisition

costs incurred by Rohm and

Mass
prior to the April 2009 acquisition EBITDA was also impacted by $224 million of 2009

restructuring charges including employeerelated

severance expenses of $155 million environmental obligations of $64 million and $5 million of asset writeoffs plus $28 million in adjustments related to

prior year restructuring plans EBITDA for 2009 was further reduced by $7 million of IPRD writeoffs and $2 million of costs related to the 2008

hurricanes

2009 Versus 2008 Pro Forma Comparison
Sales for Corporate which for 2009 and 2008 primarily related to Morton and the Companys insurance operations were $1095 million in 2009 down

from $1539 million in 2008 reflecting the fourth quarter 2009 divestiture of Morton

EBITDA for 2009 was loss of $1092 million unchanged from 2008 EBITDA for 2009 was reduced by costs related to the April 2009

acquisition of Rohm and Mass of $362 million $224 million of 2009
restructuring charges and $28 million in adjustments related to prior year restructuring

plans EBITDA for 2009 was further reduced by $7 million of IPRD wrtteoffs and $2 million of costs related to the 2008 hurricanes

EBITDA for 2008 was negatively impacted by $594 million of 2008 restructuring charges including employee related severance expense of

$321 million pension curtailment costs and termination benefits of $88 mtllion asset writeoffs and environmental obligations of $21 million Rohm and

Mass restructuring charges of $162 million and net adjustments to prior year restructuring plans of $2 million EBITDA for 2008 was also negatively

impacted by legal expenses and other costs related to the KDow transaction of $69 million and the acquisition of Rohm and Mass of $103 million and

costs associated with the U.S Gulf Coast hurricanes of $18 million
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Sales Price and Volume by Operating Segment and Geographic Area

Pro Forma Comparison Excluding Divestitures

2010

Percent change from prinr year Volume Price Total

Operating Segments
Electronic and Specialty Materials 19% 19%

Coatings and Infrastructure

Health and Agricultural Sciences

Performance Systems

11

15

8% 12

21

Performance Products 14 17 31

Plastics 27 28

Chemicals and Energy

Hydrocarbons

Total

38

12%

18

46

14%

24

84

26%

Geographic Areas

United Stales

Europe Middle East and Africa

Rest of World
Total

12% 17%

12 15

10 13

12% 14%

Excludes sales of the Salt business of Rohm and Haas divested on October 2009 sales related to TRN
divested on September 2009 sales of the acrylic monomer business and portion of the specialty latex

business divested on January 25 2010 sales of the Powder Coatings business divested on June 2010

and sales of Styron dtvested on June 17 2010

Sales to customers in the Middle East and Africa previously reported with Rest of World are now

aligned with Europe Middle East and Africa prior pertod sales have been adjusted to reflect this

realignment

29%

27

23

26%
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Sales Price and Volume by Operating Segment and Geographic Area

Pro Forma Comparison

Percent rhanep from
prior year

Volume

2010

Price Total Volume

2009

Price Total

Operating Segments
Electronic and Specialty Materials 19%

Coatings and Infrastructure

Health and Agricultural Sciences 11

Performance Systems

Performance Products

Plastics

Chemicals and Energy

Hydrocarbons

7%

15

24

18

35

19%

13

20

16

24

40

16%
16

18
12

15
25

3%

11
18
27
27
28

19%
23

29
30
30
42
53

Total 2% 13% 15% 13% 17% 30%
Geographic Areas

United States 2%

Europe Mtddle East and Atrica

Rest of World

15%

13

12

17%

13

16

19%
15

14%
20
17

33%
35
21

Total 2% 13% 15% 13% l7% 30%
Sales to customers in the Middle East and Africa previously reported with Rest of World are now aligned with Europe Middle East and Africa prior

period sales have been adjusted to reflect this realignment
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The Companys cash flows from operating investing and financing activities as reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows are summarized in

the following table

Cash Flow Summary
In millions 2010 2009 2008

Cash provided by used in

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Cash assumed in initial consolidation of variable interest entities

$4102

135

178
88

46

2075

14767
12659

79

4711

2737
978

68

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $4193 46 $1064

Cash provided by operating activities in 2010 increased significantly compared with 2009 primarily due to increased earnings Cash provided by

operating activities in 2009 declined compared with 2008 due to an increase in working capital requirements primarily driven by an increase in trade

accounts receivable The increase in trade accounts receivable reflected the increase in sales toward the end of 2009 versus the end of 2008 primarily due to

the acquisition of Rohm and Haas in 2009

Cash provided by investing activities in 2010 reflected proceeds from the divestiture of Styron as well as other smaller diveslitures proceeds from

the change in restricted cash related to the consolidation of variable interest entity see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the usage of

cash for capital expenditures Cash used in investing activities in 2009 increased over 2008 reflecting the April 2009 acquisition
of Rohm and Haas for

$15681 million and the purchase of previously leased ethylene plant in Canada for $713 million partially offset by the proceeds from the sale of the

Companys interest in nonconsolidaled affiliates TEN for $742 million and OPTIMAL for $660 million net proceeds from the sale of Morton

$1576 million and lower capital expenditures

Cash used in financing activities in 2010 included payments on longterm debt and commercial paper payments on notes payable related to the

monetization of accounts receivable in Europe and the payment of dividends to stockholders partially offset by the proceeds from issuance of longterm
debt Cash provided by financing activities increased significantly in 2009 reflecting

the funding for the acquisition of Rohm and Haas as discussed in

further detail below partially offset by the redemption of the preferred partnership units and accrued dividends of Tornado Finance V.O.F of $520 million

Management expects that the Company will conitnue to have sufficient liquidity
and financial flexibility to meet all of its business obligations

The Company has undertaken several restructuring plans during the past three years as follows

On December 2008 the Board of Directors approved restructuring plan the 2008 Plan that included the shutdown of number of

facilities and global workforce reduction At the end of 2010 these
restructuring

activities were substantially complete with remaining

liabilities primarily related to penaton and environmental remediation to be paid over lime

Included in the liabilities assumed with the April 2009 acquisition of Rohm and Flaas was reserve of $122 million for severance and

employee benefits for the separation of 1255 employees associated wilh Rohm and Haaa 2008 restructuring initiatives The separations

resulted from plant shutdowns production schedule adjustments productivity improvements and reductions in support services These

restructuring activities are scheduled to be completed primarily by the third quarter of 2011

On June 30 2009 following the
acquisition

of Rohm and Haas the Board of Directors approved restructuring plan the 2009 Plan that

includes the elimination of approximately 2500 positions and the shutdown of number of manufacturing facilities These restructuring

activities are scheduled to be completed primarily by the end of 2011
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The
restructuring

activities related to the 2008 Plan the severance reserve assumed from Rohm and l-laas and the 2009 Plan are expected to result tn

addittonal cash expenditures of approximately $240 million related to severance costs contract termination fees asbestos abatement and environmental

remediation see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements The Company expects to incur future costs related to its restructuring activities as the

Company continually looks for ways to enhance the efficiency and cost effectiveness of its operations to ensure competitiveness across its businesses and

across geographic areas Future costs are expected to include demolition costs related to the closed facilities which will be recognized as incurred The

Company also expects to incur additional employeerelated costs including involuntary termination benefits and pension plan settlement costs related to its

other optimization activities These costs cannot be reasonably estimated at this time

Working Capital at December 31

In 2010 2009

Current assets $23781 $19542
Current liabilities 13896 13105

Working capilal 9885 6437

Current ratio 1.711 1.491

Working Capital at December 31

ml rtsitcas

Working capital
increased from December 31 2009 to December 31 2010

principally
due to increased cash and cash equivalents At December 31

2010 trade recetvables were $4.6 billion down from $5.7 billion at December 31 2009 primarily due to change in the way the sale of accounts

receivable facilities are being recorded see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements as well as the divestiture of Styron see Note to the

Consoltdated Financial Siatements Dayssalesoutstandinginreceivables excluding the impact of sales of receivables was 43 days at December 31

2010 compared with 45 days at December 31 2009 At December 31 2010 total inventories were $7.1 billion up from $6.8 biliton at December 31 2009

Days salesininventory at December 31 2010 was 62 days versus 64 days at December 31 2009

At the end of 2009 the Companys net debt as percent of total capitalization had risen to 48.0 percent due to increased financing related to the

acquisition of Rohm and Haas As shown in the following table net debt is equal to total debt minus Cash and cash equivalents As Dow continues to

strengthen its balance sheet and increase financial flexibility management is principally focused on net debt as Dow believes this is the best measure of the

Companys financial leverage By the end of 2010 net debt as percent of total capitalization
had been reduced to 42.6 percent

Total Debt at December 31

In millions

Notes payable

Longterm debt due within one year

Longterm debt

Gross debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Gross debt as percent of total capitalization

Net deht as nercent of total canitalization

2010 2009

1467

1755
20605

$23827

7039

$16788

1.3%

42.6%

$2139
1082

19152

$22373

2846

$19527

1.4%

48.0%
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Debt asa Percent of Total CapitalizatIon Net Debt asa Percent of Total Capitalization

at December 31 IpercenIl at December 31 percerdi

2006

2007 27Th

2019 48.0%

2010

Financing Activities

As part of its ongoing financing activities Dow has the
ability

to issue promissory notes under its U.S and Euromarket commercial paper programs At

December 31 2010 the Company had no commercial paper outstanding Through January 2011 the Company maintained access to the commercial paper

market at competitive rates

In the event Dow has shortterm liquidity needs and is unable to issue commercial paper under these programs for any reason Dow has the ability to

access liquidity through its committed and available $3 billion Three Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated June

2010 the Revolving Credit Facility with vartous U.S and toreign banks The Revolving Credit Facility
has maturity date in June 2013 and provides for

interest at LIBORplus rate or Base Rate as defined in the Agreement The Revolving Credit Facility replaces the previous facility
dated April 24 2006

On March 2009 the Company borrowed $3 billion under the previous facility and the Company used the funds to finance its daytoday operations to

repay indebtedness maturing in the ordinary course of business and for other general corporate purposes At December 31 2009 all outstanding balances

had been repaid At December 31 2010 the full $3 billion Revolving Credit
Facility was available to the Company

As wellknown seasoned issuer the Company filed an automatic shelf registration for an unspecified amount of mixed securities with the SEC on

February 19 2010 Under this shelf registration the Company may offer common stock preferred stock depositary shares debt securities warrants stock

purchase contracts and stock purchase units with pricing and availability dependent on market conditions and on February 19 2010 registered
an

unlimited amount of securities for issuance under the Companys U.S retail mediumterm note program InterNotes At December31 2010 the Company
had Euro billion approximately $6.7 billion available for issuance under the Companys Euro Medium Term Note Program as well as Japanese yen

50 billion approximately $600 million of securities available for issuance under shelf registration
renewed with the Tokyo Stock Exchange effective

September 2010 which will expire on September 2012

During 2010 the Company issued $537 million in InterNotes with varying maturities in 2015 2017 and 2020 at various interest rates averaging

4.70 percent

On September 2010 the Company concluded tender offer for any and all of $145 million of debentures acquired from Rohm and Mass due June

2020 As result of the tender offer the Company redeemed $123 million of the debentures and recognized $46 million pretax loss on this
early

extinguishment included in Sundry income net

On November 2010 the Company issued $2.5 billion of debt securities in public offering The offering included $750 million aggregate principal

amount of 2.50 percent notes due 2016 and $1.75 billion aggregate principal amount of 4.25 percent notes due 2020

On June 2009 the preferred partner of Tornado Finance V.O.F consolidated foreign subsidiary of the Company notified Tornado Finance

V.O.F that the preferred partnership units would be redeemed in full on July 2009 as permitted by the terms of the partnership agreement On July

2009 the preferred partnership units and accrued dividends were redeemed for total of $520 million See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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On August 21 2009 the Company executed buyback of Euro 175 million of private placement debt acquired from Rohm and Haas and recognized

$56 million pretax loss on early extinguishment included in Sundry income net

Between May and December 2009 the Company issued $640 million in InterNotes with varying maturities in 2014 2016 and 2019 at various

interest rates averaging 6.45 percent

Dows public debt insirumenis and documents for its private funding transactions contain among other provisions certain covenants and default

provisions The Companys most significant
debt covenant with regard to its financial position is the obligation to maintain the ratio of the Companys

consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization at no greater than 0.65 to 1.00 at any time the aggregate outstanding amount of loans under the

Revolving Credit
Facility

exceeds $500 million The ratio of the Companys consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization
as defined in the credit

agreements was 0.493 to 1.00 at December 31 2010 At December 31 2010 management believes the Company was in compliance with all covenants and

default provisions For information on Dows covenants and default provisions see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Companys credit
rating

is investment grade The Companys longterm credit ratings are BBB with
positive

outlook Standard Poors
Baa3 with stable outlook Moodys and BBB with stable outlook Fitch In the third quarter of 2010 Standard Poors upgraded the Companys
outlook from stable lo positive and in the fourth quarter of 2010 Moodys upgraded the Companys outlook from negative to stable The Companys
shortlerm credit

ratings are A3 Standard Poors P3 Moodys and F2 Fitch If the Companys ctedit
ratings are downgraded borrowing costs

will increase on certain indentures and it could have negative impact on the Companys ability to access credit markets

Financing Activities Related to the Acquisition of Rohm and Haas

On April 2009 the Company completed the acquisition of Rohm and Haas Pursuant to the July 10 2008 Agreement and Plan of Merger the Merger

Agreement Ramses Acquisition Corp direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company merged with and into Rohm and Haas the Merger with

Rohm and Haas continuing as the surviving corporation and direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company Financing for the April 2009 transaction

included debt of $9.2 billion obtained through Term Loan Agreement Term Loan as well as equity investments by Berkshire Hathaway Inc BHI
and the Kuwait Invesiment Authority KIA in the form of Cumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock Series of million shares for $3 billion

BHI and million shares for $1 billion KIA

In connection with the closing of the Merger the Company entered into an Invesimeni Agreement with certain trusts established by members of the

Haas family the Haas Trusts and Paulson Co Inc Paulson each of whom was significant
shareholder of Rohm and Haas common stock at the

time of the Merger Under the Investmenl Agreemeni the Haas Trusts and Paulson purchased from Ihe Company 2.5 million shares Flaas Trusts

1.5 million shares Paulson 1.0 million shares of Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Slock Series preferred series for an aggregale price of

$2.5 billion with $1.5 billion from the Haas Trusts and $1.0 btllion from Paulson The Haas Trusts made an additional investment in 0.5 million shares of

Cumulative Cunvertible Perpetual Piefejied Stuck Series preferred series fur an aggregate price
uf $500 million

In May 2009 the Company entered into purchase agreement with the Haas Trusts and Paulson whereby the Haas Trusts and Paulson agreed to sell

to the Company their shares of the preferred series in consideration for shares of the Companys common stock and/or notes at the discretion of the

Company

On May 2009 the Company launched public offering
of 150.0 million shares of its common stock Included in the 150.0 million shares offered to

the public were 83.3 million shares issued to the Haas Trusts and Paulson in
private

transaction in consideration for 1.2 million shares of preferred

series at par plus accrued dividends held by the Haas Trusts and Paulson Gross proceeds were $2250 million of which the Companys net proceeds

afler underwriting discounts and commissions were $966 million for the sale of the Companys 66.7 mIllion shares
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On May 2009 the Company issued $6 billion of debt securities in public offertng The offertng included $1.75 billion aggregate principal amount

of 7.6 percent notes due 2014 $3.25 billion aggregate principal amount of 8.55 percent notes due 2019 and $1 billion aggregate principal
amount of

9.4 percent notes due 2039 An aggregate principal amount of $1.35 billion of the 8.55 percent notes due 2019 were offered by accounts and funds managed

by Paulson and the Haas Trusts These investors received notes from the Company in payment for 1.3 million shares of preferred series at par plus

accrued dividends The Company used the net proceeds received from this offering for refinancing renewals replacements and refunding of outstanding

indebtedness including repayment of portion of the Term Loan

Upon the consummation of the above transactions all shares of preferred series were retired

On May 26 24309 the Company entered into an underwriting agreement and filed the corresponding shelf registration slalement to effect the

conversion of preferred series into the Companys common stock On June 2009 following the end of the sale period and determination of the share

conversion amount the Company issued 31.0 million shares of common stock lo the Haas Trusts and all shares of preferred series were retired

On August 2009 the Company issued $2.75 billion of debt securities in public offering The offering included $1.25 billion aggregate principal

amount of 4.85 percenl notes due 2012 $1.25 billion aggregate principal amount of 5.90 percent notes due 2015 and $0.25 billion aggregate principal

amount of
floating rate notes due 2011 The Company used the net proceeds received from this offering for refinancing renewals replacements and

refunding of outstanding indebtedness including repayment of portion of the Term Loan

On October 2009 the remaining balance of the Term Loan was fully repaid using proceeds from the sale of the Salt business See Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the divestiture of the Salt business

See Notes and to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the acquisition of Rohm and Nasa and the corresponding

financing aclivities

Capital Expenditures

Capital spending for the year was $2130 million including $548 million of capital spending by consolidated variable interest entities see Note lo the

Consolidated Financial Statements for information on variable interest entittes consolidated at January 12010 Capital spending in 2009 was $1683 million

including $273 million of capital spending by consolidated variable interest entity see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information

on variable interest
entity consolidated in 2009 Capital spending in 2008 was $2276 million In 2010 approximately 39 percent of the Companys capital

expenditures were directed toward additional capacity for new and existing products compared with 43 percent in 2009 and 40 percent in 2008 In 2010

approximately 17 percent was committed to projects related to environmental protection safety loss prevention and industrial hygiene compared with

20 percent in 2009 and 18 percent in 2008 The remaining capital was utilized to maintain the Companys existing asset base including projects related to

productivity improvements energy conservation and facilities support

Capftal Expenditures

fri nons

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010
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Major projects underway during 2010 included constructton of anew propylene oxtde production facility using hydrogen peroxide to propylene

oxide technology distribution terminal and related tnfrastructure and utilities in Thailand conversion of the St Charles Louisiana facility to produce only

ethylene oxide to support the Companys business
strategy

to supply purified ethylene oxide to internal derivative customers the design and ronstroction of

new chloralkali production facility to replace existing facilities to Freeport Texas the installation of two new steam boilers in Stade Germany and the

enhancement of caustic production assets in Freeport Texas Additional major projects
included construction of storage cavern for feedstock supply in

Canada new area headquarters and laboratory facilities in Brazil new brine wells in Brazil furnace rehabilitations to increase energy utilization in ethylene

production at Si Charles Louisiana new centrifugal ethylene compressor in Freeporl Texas to reduce spot purchases of ethylene and the design and

construction of the new Midland Business Process Service Center Because the Company designs and builds most of its capital projects tnhouse it had no

material capital commitments other than for the purchase of materials from fabricators and construction labor The Company expects capital spending in

2011 to be approximately $2.4 bitlton

Contractual Obligations

The foltowtng tables summarize the Companys contractual obligations commercial commitments and expected cash requirements for tnterest at

December 31 2010 Additional information related to these obligations can be found in Notes RandY to the Consolidated Financial Siatements

Contractual Obligations at December 31 2010 Payments floe by Year

2016 and

In millions 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 beyond Total

Longterm debt current and noncurrent

Deferred income tax liabilities noncurrent

Pension and other postretirement benefits

Other noncurrent obligations

Uncertain tax positions including interest and penalties

$1755

790

72

33

$2886

1007

292

$943

1001

320

$2548

1085
177

$1574

1035
151

$13112

1295
2481

2646
320

$22818

1295

7399

3658

353

Other contractual obligations

Minimum operating lease commitments

Purchase commitments lakeor pay and throughput obligations

Purchase commitments other

Expected cash requirements for interest

Total

202

3603
26

1382

$7863

163

3261

18

1332

$8959

149

2647
25

1187

$6272

126

2055
17

1061

$7069

115

1341
17

926

$5159

1796

8203
77

7659

$37589

2551

21110

180

13547

$72911

Excludes unamortized debt discount of $458 million

Deferred income tax liabilities may vary according to changes in tax laws tax rates and the operating results of the Company As result it is

impractical to determine whether there will be cash impact to an individual year All noncurrent deterred income tax liabilities have been reflected in

2016 and beyond
Annual payments to resolve asbestos litigation

will vary based on changes in defense
strategies changes in state and national law and claims

filing
and

resolution rates As result it is impractical to determine the
anticipated payments in any given year Therefore the majority of the noncurrent

asbestosrelated
liability

of $663 million has been reflected in 2016 and beyond
Due to uncertainties in the liming of the effective settlement of tax

positions
with the respective taxing authorities the Company is unable to determine

the liming of payments related to its uncertain lax positions including interest and penalties Amounts beyond the current year are therefore reflected in

2016 and beyond
Includes outstanding purchase orders and other commitments greater than $1 million obtained through survey conducted within the Company

OffBalance Sheet Arrangements
On January 2010 the Company adopted ASU 200917 Consolidations Topic 810 Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with

Variable Interest Entities ASU 200917 amends the consolidation guidance applicable to variable interest entities VIEs and requires
additional

disclosures concerning an enterprises continuing involvement with VIEs The Company evaluated the impact of this guidance and determined that the

adoption resulted in the january 2010 consolidation of two additional
joint ventures an owner trust and an entity that was used to monetize accounts

receivable The Company also holds variable interest in another joint venture accounted for under the equity method of accounting The Company is not

the primary beneficiary of the
joint

venlure and therefore ts not required to consolidate this entity See Notes and to the Consolidated Financial

Statements
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Guarantees arise during the ordinary course of business from
relationships with customers and nonconsolidated affiliates when the Company

undertakes an obligation to guarantee the performance of others if
specific triggering events occur The Company had outstanding guarantees at

December 31 2010 of $836 millton down from $1053 million at December 31 2009 The decrease in maximum future payments from yearend 2009 was

due to the consolidation of the Companys variable interest in an owner trust in the first quarter of 2010 with the adoption of ASU 200917 see Notes

and to the Consolidated Financial Statements Additional information related to these guarantees can be found in the Guarantees section of Note to

the Consolidated Financial Statements

See Note 010 the Consolidated Financial Statements for information regardtng the impact of adopting ASU 200916 Transfers and Servictng

Tupic 860 Accuunting for Transfers of Financial Assets on January 2010 and for additional information regarding the transfer of fin.nic..ial assets

Fair Value Measurements

The Companys assets and liabiltttes measured at fair value are classified in the fair value hierarchy Level or based on the inputs used for valuation

Assets and liabilities that are traded on an exchange with quoted price are classified as Level Assets and liabilities that are valued based on bid or bid

evaluation are classified as Level The custodian of the Companys debt and equity securtties uses multiple industryrecognized vendors for pricing

information and established processes for validation and verification to assist the Company in its process for determining and validating fair values for these

assets For pension or other post retirement benefit plan assets classified as Level the total fair value is based on significant unobservable inputs including

assumptions where there is little if any market
activity

for the investment The
sensitivity

of fair value estimates is immaterial relative to the assets and

liabilities measured at fair value as well as to the total equity of the Company See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Company
disclosures about fair value measurements

Portfolio managers and external investment managers regularly review all of the Companys holdings to determine if any investments are

otherthantemporarily impaired The analysts includes reviewing the amount of the temporary impairment as well as the length of time it has been

impaired In addition specific guidelines for each instrument type are followed to determine if an other thantemporary impairment has occurred For debt

securities the credit
rating

of the issuer current credit rating trends and the trends of the issuers overall sector are considered in determining whether

unrealized losses represent an otherthan temporary impairment For equity securities the Companys investments are primarily in Standard PoorsSF 500 companies however the Company also allows investments in companies outside of the SP 500 The Company considers the evidence to

support the recovery of the cost basis of
security including volatility

of the stock the length of lime the security has been in loss position value and

growth expectations and overall market and sector fundamentals as well as technical analysis in determining impairment In 2010 other thantemporary

impairment writedowns were $5 million $93 million in 2009

Dividends

On December 2010 the Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.15 per share payable January 28 2011 to stockholders of record on

December 31 2010 On February 2011 the Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.15 per share payable April 29 2011 to stockholders

of record on March 31 2011 Since 1912 the Company has paid cash dividend every quarter and in each instance
prior to February 12 2009 had

maintained or increased the amount of the dividend adjusted for stock splits During this 97year period Dow has increased the amount of the quarterly

dividend 47 times approximately 12 percent of the time and maintained the amount of the quarterly dividend approximately 88 percent of the time The

dividend was reduced in February 2009 for the first time in the 97year period due to uncertainty in the credit markets unprecedented lower demand for

chemical products and Ihe ongoing global recession The Company declared dividends of $0.60 per share in 2010 $0.60 per share in 2009 and $1.68 per

share in 2008

On December 2010 the Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $85 million to Cumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock

Series shareholders of record on December 15 2010 which was paid on January 2011 On February 2011 the Board of Directors declared

quarterly dividend of $85 million to these shareholders payable on April 2011 Ongoing dividends related to Cumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred

Stock Series will accrue at the rafe of $85 million per quarter and are payable quarterly subject to Board of Directors approval
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Outlook for 2011

In 2010 Dow and the chemical industry aa whole experienced another year of improving economic conditions Economies across much of the developed

world showed signs of ongoing rerovery in most endmarkets as the year progressed Meanwhile the emerging geographies continued to lead in economic

growth and as result were critical area of focus for new business opportunities and investments As the year came to close however some challeoges

remained such as high unemployment in developed geographies aod weakness in construction eodmarkets particularly in the Untied States and Europe lo

the face of these challenges Dow delivered reshaped and transformed business
portfolio

in 2010 one that is increasingly targeted to growing geographic

areas and endmarkets and wellbalanced to mitigate uncertainties Furthermore the Company continued to emphasize its commitment to financial

discipline completing capital
market transactions and divesting noncore assets to reduce financial expense and strengthen its balance sheet

Looking to 2011 Dow expects growth in the emerging geographies to continue driven by broad range of leading endmarkets The Company

projects that these geographic areas will continue their high rate of growth although year overyear comparisons will be subdued relative to recent years

Signs of improvement in industrial end markets in North America and Europe coupled wiih ongoing strength in highergrowth sectors such as electronics

agriculture and packaging give Dow
greater optimism that growth will continue in the developed geographies Despite these more favorable business

conditions the Company expects lingering challenges to remain particularly
slow employment growth in developed geographies Furthermore amid an

environment of improving economic conditions Dow expects feedstock and energy costs to remain at elevated levels and volatility to these costs to

continue Within the chemical industry the growing supply of natural gas liquids
is expected to continue to benefit the competitiveness of U.S chemical

assets Meanwhile the startup of new ethylene capacity outside of the United States and Europe remains challenge to supply fundamentals across the

ethylene chain and could put downward pressure on the
profitability

of highercost production assets within the industry

The Company will continue to implement its strategic transformation while remaining focused on strengthening its balance sheet and preferentially

investing in its Performance businesses and to emerging geographies The Companys plans do not assume an accelerated rebound in business conditions

Rather Dows success will continue to be driven by its transformed business portfolio balanced geographic presence and continued investments in

innovations aimed at the intersection of greatest societal need and business opportunity

The Company expects to generate positive
cash flow from operations in 2011 Capital spending is expected to increase approximately $300 million

from 2010 levels Research and development spending is projected to remain at approximately the same level as 2010 Equity in earnings of Dow

nonconsolidated affiliates is expected to improve above prerecessioo levels driven by robust fundamentals at the Companys principal joint ventures

particularly
Dow Corning EQUATE and The Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C

OTHER MATTERS

Recent Accounting Guidance

See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for summary of recent accounting guidance

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

U.S GAAP requires management to make judgments assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial

statements and accompanying notes Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the significant accounting policies
and methods used in the

preparation of the consolidated financial statements Following are the Companys critical accounting policies impacted by judgments assumptions and

estimates

Litigation

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims
arising

out of the normal course of business The Company routinely assesses the likelihood

of soy adverse outcomes to these matters as well as ranges of probable losses determination of the amount of the reserves required if any for

these contingencies is made after thoughtful analysis of each known claim Dow has so active risk management program consisting of numerous

insurance policies secured from many carriers These policies provide coverage that is utilized to minimize the financial impact if any of the legal

proceedings The required reserves may change in the future due to new developments in each matter For further discussion see Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements
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AsbestosRelated Matters of Union Carbide Corporation

Union Carbide Corporation Union Carbide wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and former Union Carbide subsidiary Amchem

Products Inc Amchem are and have been involved in large number of asbestosrelated suits filed primarily in stale courts during the
past

three

decades Based on study completed by Analysts Research Planning Corporation ARPC in January 2003 Union Carbide increased its

December 31 2002 asbestosrelated
liability

for pending and future claims for the 15year period ending in 2017 to $2.2 billion excluding future

defense and processing costs Union Carbide also increased the receivable for insurance recoveries related to its asbestos liability to $1.35 billion at

December 31 2002 Since then Union Carbide has compared current asbestos claim and resolution
activity

to the results of the most recent ARPC

study at each balance sheet date to determine whether the asbestosrelated liability
continues to be appropriate In addition Union Carbide has

requested ARPC to review Union Carbides historical asbestos claim and resolution activity each November since 2004 tu deteimine the

appropriatenes of updating the most recent ARPC study

In November 2010 Union Carbide requested ARPC to review Union Carbides historical asbestos claim and resolution activity and determine

the appropriateness of updating its then most recent study completed in December 2008 In response to that request ARPC reviewed and analyzed

data through October 31 2010 The resulting study completed by ARPC in December 2010 stated that the undiscounted cost of resolving pending

and future asbestosrelated claims against Union Carbide and Amchem excluding future defense and processing costs through 2025 was estimated

to be between $744 million and $835 million As in its earlier studies ARPC provided estimates for longer period of time in its December 2010

study but also reaffirmed its prior advice that forecasts for shorter periods of time are more accurate than those for longer periods of time

In Decemher 2010 based on ARPC December 2010 study and Union Carbides own review of asbestos claim and resolution activity Union

Carbide decreased its asbestosrelated
liability

for pending and future claims to $744 million The reduction was $54 million and is shown as

Asbestosrelated credits in the consolidated statements of income At December 31 2010 the asbestosrelated liability for pending and future

claims was $728 million

Union Carbides receivable for insurance recoveries related to its asbestos liability was $50 million at December 31 2010 At December 31

2010 all of the receivable for insurance recoveries was related to insurers that are not signatories to the Wellington Agreement and/or do not

otherwise have agreements in place regarding their asbestosrelated insurance coverage

The amounts recorded by Union Carbide for the asbestosrelated liability and related insurance receivable were based upon current known

facts However future events such as the number of new claims to be filed and/or received each year the average cost of disposing of each such

claim coverage issues among insurers and the continuing solvency of various insurance companies as well as the numerous uncertainties

surrounding asbestos
litigation

in the United States could cause the actual costs and insurance recoveries for Union Carbide to be higher or lower

than those projected or those recorded

For additional information see Legal Proceedings AsbestosRelated Matters of Union Carbide Corporation in Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Environmental Matters

The Company determines the costs of environmental remediation of its facilities and formerly owned factltties based on evaluations of current law

and existing technologies Inherent uncertainties exist in such evaluations primarily due to unknown environmental conditions changing

governmental regulations and legal standards regarding liability and emerging remedtatton technologies The recorded liabilities are adjusted

periodically as remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information becomes available In the case of landfills and other active

waste management facilities Dow recogntzes the costs over the useful life of the facility At December 31 2010 the Company had accrued

obligations of $607 million for probable environmental remediation and restoration costs including $59 million for the remediation of Superfund

sites This is managements best estimate of the costs for remediation and restoration with respect to environmental matters for which the Company
has accrued liabilities although the ultimate cost with respect to these particular matters could range up to approximately twice that amount The

Company had accrued obligations of
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$619 million at December 31 2009 for probable environmental remedialton and reatoration costa including $80 million for the remediation of

Superfund aitea For further discussion aee Environmental Matters in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and Notes and to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Goodwill

The Company assesses goodwill recoverability through business financial performance reviews enterprise valuation analysis and impairment tests

Annual goodwill impairment teats are completed during the Companys fourth quarter of the year in accordance with the subsequent

measurement provisions of the accounting guidance for goodwill The teats are performed at the reporting unit level which is defined as one level

below operating segment with the exception of Health and Agricultural Sciences which ia both an operating segment and reporting unit Reporting

units are the level at which discrete financial information is available and reviewed by business management on regular basis The Company has

defined eight operating segments and 29 reporting units Goodwill is carried by 17 of the Companys 29 reporting units

In addition to the annual goodwill impairment teats the Company reviewa the financial performance of its reporting units over the course of the

year to aaaeas whether circumstances have changed that would more likely than not indicate that the fair value of reporting unit has declined below

ha carrying value In cases where an indication of impairment is determined to exist the Company completes an interim goodwill impairment teal

specifically for that reporting unit

The Company ulilizea discounted cash flow methodology to calculate the fair value of its reporting units This valuation technique has been

selected by management as the moat meaningful valuation method due to the limited number of market comparablea for the Companys reporting

unita However where market comparablea are available the Company includea EBIT/EBITDA multiples as part
of the reporting unit valuation

analysis

The diacounted cash flow valualiona are completed with the uae of key assumptions including projected revenue growth rate discount rate tax

rate currency exchange rates terminal value and longterm hydrocarbons and energy prices These key assumptions are reevaluated with each

annual impairment teat and updated based on current facta and circumstances Currency exchange rates and longterm hydrocarbons and energy

prices are established for the Company as whole and applied consistently to all reporting units while tax rates revenue growth rates terminal values

calculated using the key value driver implementation of the Gordon growth model and discount rates are established by reporting unit to account for

differences in business fundamentals and industry risk

For the 2010 annual impairment teat currency exchange rates were projected by year for 66 currencies and longterm hydrocarbons and

energy prices
were forecast by geographic area by year and included all key feedatocka as welt as natural gas and crude oil due to the correlation to

naphtha Tax rates varied by reporting unit with the average rate being 27 percent Discount rates ranged from 8.1 percent to 10.5 percent based on an

assessment of likely market participants and relative industry risk of each reporting unit Terminal values were differentiated based on the cash flow

projectiona of each reporting unit and the projected Net Operating Profit After Tax NOFAT growth rate which ranged from negative 2.2 percent

to positive 4.5 percent Revenue growth ratea or Compounded Annual Growth Rates CAGR over tenyear cash flow forecast period varied by

reporting unit based on underlying business fundamentals and future expectations with rates ranging from percent to 15 percent

Changes in key assumptions can affect the results of goodwill impairment teats The changes made to key aaaumptiona in 2010 did not result in

significant change in the impairment analysis conclusion The key assumptions with the moat significant impact on reporting unit fair value

calculations include the discount rate and terminal value NOPAT growth rate For the 2010 impairment teat management completed sensitivity

analyses on both of theae key assumptions An increase of 100 basis points in the discount rate would have resulted in fair value based on

discounted caah flows which exceeded the carrying value for all of the Companys reporting units that carry goodwill For the terminal value NOPAT

growth rate decrease of 100 basis points would have resulted in fair value based on discounted cash flowa which exceeded the carrying value for

all of the Companys reporting units thai carry goodwill Additional aenaitivity analysis was completed on the combined impact of 100 basis point

increase in the discount rate and 100 basis point decrease in the terminal value NOPAT growth rate This analysis resulted in fair values based on

discounted cash flows that exceeded carrying values for all reporting units that carry goodwill
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In completing the annual impairment test for 2010 management evaluated the reasonableness of differences noted between the fair value and

carrying value of each reporting unit All differences were determined to be reasonable

Based on the fair value
analysis completed by the Company in the fourth quarter of 2010 using the key assumptions defined for the Company

as well as the key assumptions defined
specifically

for each reporting unit management concluded that fair value exceeded carrying value for all

reporting uniis that carry goodwill

The same analysis was completed by the Company in the fourth quarter of 2009 and management concluded that the fair value exceeded

carrying value for all reporting units that carry goodwill except the Dow Haltermann reporting unit As result the Company recorded goodwill

impairment charge of $7 million in the fourth quarter of 2009 which represented the total amount of goodwill carried by the Dow l-Ialtermann

reporting unit Due to the conclusion that the goodwill associated with the Dow Haltermann reporting unit was impaired management also initiated

review of the underlying assets of the reporting unit to assess whether or not any additional asset impairment existed Based on the undiscounted cash

flow analysis completed in accordance with ASC Topic 360 Property Plant and Equipment no further impairment existed

The Company also monitors and evaluates its market capitalizalion relative to book value When the market
capitalization

of the Company falls

below book value management undertakes process to evaluate whether change in circumstances has occurred that would indicate it is more likely

than not that the fatr value of any of its reporting units has declined below carrying value This evaluation process includes the use of third party

marketbased valuations and internal discounted cash flow analysis As part of the annual goodwill impairment test the Company also compares

market capitalization with the total estimated fair value of its reporting units to ensure that significant differences are understood At December 31

2010 and December 31 2009 Dows market capitalization exceeded book value

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements related to pension and other postretirement benefits are determined from actuarial

valuations Inherent in these valuations are assumptions including expected return on plan assets discount rates at which the liabilities could have

been settled at December 31 2010 rate of increase in future compensation levels mortality rates and health care cost irend rates These assumptions

are updated annually and are disclosed in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements In accordance with U.S CAAP actual results that differ

from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore affect expense recognized and obligations recorded in future

periods The U.S pension plans represent approximately 71 percent of the Companys pension plan assets and 72 percent of the pension obligations

The following information relates to the U.S plans only similar approach is used for the Companys nonU.S plans

The Company determines the expected longterm rate of return on assets by performing detailed analysis of historical and expected returns

based on the sirategic asset allocation approved by the Board of Directors and the underlying return fundamentals of each asset class The Companys
historical experience with the pension fund asset performance is also considered The expected return of each asset class is derived from forecasted

future return confirmed by historical experience The expected longterm rate of return is an assumption and not what is expected to be earned in any

one particular year The weightedaverage longterm rate of return assumption used for determining net periodic pension expense for 2010 was
8.16 percent This assumption was unchanged for determining 2011 net periodic pension expense Future actual pension expense will depend on

future investment performance changes in future discount rates and various other factors related to the population of
participants

in the Companys

pension plans

The discount rates utilized to measure the pension and other postretirement obligations of the U.S qualified plans are based on the yield on

highquality fixed income instruments at the measurement date Puture expected actuarially determined cash flows of Dows major U.S plans are

matched against the Towers Watson RATELink yield curve based on 60th to 90th percentile bond yields to arrive at single discount rate by plan

The weighted average discount rate was 5.51 percent at December 31 2010 and 5.97 percent at December 31 2009
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At December 31 2010 the U.S qualtfied plans were underfunded on projected beneftt obligation basts by $3.3 biliton The underfunded

amount increased by approximately $100 million compared with December 31 2009 The increase was primarily due to lower discount rates partially

offset by favorable plan asset returns and contributions during the year The Company contributed $435 million to the U.S qualified plans in 2010

The assumption for the longterm rate of increase in compensation levels for the
principal

U.S
qualified plans was 4.50 percent Since 2002

the Company has used generational mortality table to determine the duration of its pension and other postretirement obligations

The following discussion relates to all of the Companys pension plans

The Company bases the determination of pension expense or income on marketrelated valuation of plan assets that reduces year to year

volatility This marketrelated valuation recognizes investment gains or losses over fiveyear period from the year in which they occur Investment

gains or lossea for this purpose represent the difference between the expected return calculated using the marketrelated value of plan assets and the

actual return based on the market value of plan assets Since the marketrelated value of plan assets recognizes gains or losses over fiveyear

period the future value of plan assets will be impacted when previously deferred gains or losses are recorded Over the life of the plan both gains and

losses have been recognized and amortized Al December31 2010 net losses of $827 million remain to be recognized in the calculation of the

market related value of plan assets These net losses will result in increases in future pension expense as they are recognized in the marketrelated

value of assets and are component of the total net loss of $6696 million for 2010 shown under Pretax amounts recognized in AOCI at

December31 in the table entitled Change in Projected Benefit Obligations Plan Assets and Punded Status of All
Significant

Plans included in

Note to the Consolidated Pinancial Statements The other $5869 million of net losses represents cumulative changes in plan experience and

actuarial assumptions The net decrease or increase in the marketrelated value of assets due to the recognition of
prior gains and lusses is presented

in the following table

Net Decrease Increase in MarketRelated Asset

Value Due to Recognition of Prior Gains and Losses

In millions

2011 566

2012 628

2013 271

2014 96
Total 827

Based on the 2011 pension assumptions and the changes in the marketrelated value of assets due to the recognition of
prior

asset losses the

Company expects net periodic benefit costs In increase by approximately $60 million for all pension and other postretirement benefits in 2011

compared with 2010

25 basis point increase or decrease in the longterm return on assets assumption would change the Companys tutal pension expense for 2011

by approximately $41 million 25 basis point increase or decrease in the discount rate assumption would change the Companys total pension

expense for 2011 by approximately $50 million 25 basis point change in the longterm return and discount rate assumptions would have an

immaterial impact on the other postretirement benefit expense for 2011

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities

applying enacted tax rates expected to be in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse Based on the evaluation of available

evidence both
positive

and negative the Company recognizes future tax benefits such as net operating loss carryforwards and tax credit

carryforwards to the extent that realizing these benefits is considered to be more likely
than not

At December 31 2010 the Company had net deferred tax asset balance of $1290 million after valuation allowances of $682 million
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In evaluating the ability to realize the deferred tax assets the Company relies on in order of increastng subjectivity taxable income in prior

carryback years the future reversals of
extsting

taxable temporary differences tax planning strategtes
and forecasted taxable income using historical

and projected future operating results

At December 31 2010 the Company had deferred tax assets for tax loss and tax credit carryforwards of $1957 million $62 million of which is

subject to expiration in Ihe years 20112015 In order to realize these deferred tax assets for tax loss and tax credit carryforwards the Company needs

taxable income of approximately $6790 million across multiple jurisdictions The taxable income needed to realize the deferred tax assets for tax loss

and tax credit carryforwards that are subject to expiration between 20112015 is approximately $469 million

The Company recognizes the financial statement effeus of an uncertain income tax position when it is more likely
than not based on technical

merits that the position will be sustained upon examination At December 31 2010 the Company had uncertain tax positions
for both domestic and

foreign issues of $319 million

The Company accrues for nonincome lax contingencies when it is probable that liability to taxing authority
has been incurred and the

amount of the contingency can be reasonably estimated At December 31 2010 the Company had non income tax contingency reserve for both

domestic and foreign issues of $156 million

For additional information see Notes and to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Environmental Matters

Environmental Policies

Dow is committed to worldclass
environmentalhealth

and safety EHS performance as demonstrated by industryleading performance

longstanding commitment to Responsible Care and strong commitment to achieve the Companys 2015 Sustainability
Coals goals that set the

standard for sustainability in the chemical industry by focusing on improvements in Dows local corporate citizenship and product stewardship and by

actively pursuing methods to reduce the Companys environmental impact

To meet the Companys public commitments as well as the stringent laws and government regulations related to environmental protection and

remedialion to which its global operations are subject Dow has welldefined policies requirements and management systems Dows EHS Management

System EMS defines the who what when and how needed for the businesses to achieve the Companys policies requirements performance

objectives leadership expectations and public commitments To ensure effective utilization the EMS is integrated into companywide management

system for EHS Operations Quality and Human Resources

Ii is Dows policy to adhere to waste managemenihierarchy that minimizes the impact of wastes and emissions on the environment First Dow
works to eliminate or minimize the generation of waste and emissions at Ihe source through research process design plant operations and maintenance

Second Dow finds ways to reuse and recycle materials Finally unusable or nonrecyclable hazardous waste is treated before disposal to eliminate or

reduce the hazardous nature and volume of the waste Treatment may include destruction by chemical physical biological or thermal means Disposal of

waste materials in landfills is considered only after all other options have been thoroughly evaluated Dow has specific requirements for waste that is

transferred to nonDow facilities including the periodic auditing of these facilities

Dow believes thirdparty verification and transparent public reporting are cornerstones of worldclass EHS performance and building public trust

As such
numerou

Dow sites in Europe Latin America Asia Facific and North America have received thirdparty verification of Dws compliance with

Responsible Care and with outside
specifications

such ISO14001 Dow continues to be global champion of Responsible Care and has worked to

broaden the application and impact of Responsible Care around the world through engagement with suppliers customers and joint venture partners
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Dows EHS policies helped the Company achieve excellent EHS performance in 2010 In recognition the Company was presented the esteemed

National Safety Councils Robert Campbell Award for 2010 Dows injury/illness rates and process safety performance were excellent in 2010 and the

Company is favorably positioned to achieve its 2015
suslainability goals in these key areas Further improvement in these areas as well as environmental

cumpliance remeins top management priority
with initiatives underway to further improve performance and

coiiipliance
in 2011

Detailed information on Dows performance regarding environmental matters and goals can be found online on Dows Sostainability webpage at

www dow corn

Chemical Security

Public and political attention continues to be placed on the
protection

of critical infrastructure including the chemical industry from security
threats

Terrorist attacks and natural disasters have increased concern about the
security

and safety of chemical production and distribution Many including Dow

and the American Chemistry Council have called for uniform riskbased and performancebased national standards for securing the U.S chemical

industry The Maritime Transportation Security Act MTSA of 2002 and its regulations further set forth riskbased and performancebased standards

that most be met at U.S Coast Cuardregulated facilities U.S Chemical Plant Security legislation was passed in 2006 and the Department of Homeland

Security DHS is now implementing the regulations known as the Chemical Facility AntiTerrorism Standards The Company is complying with the

requirements of the Rail Transportation Security Rule issued by the U.S Transportation Security Administration TSA Dow continues to support

uniform riskbased national standards for securing Ihe chemical industry

The focus on security is not new to Dow comprehensive multilevel security plan for the Company has been maintained since 1988 This plan

which has been activated in response to significant world and national events since then is reviewed on an annual basis Dow continues to improve its

security plans placing emphasis on the safety of Dow communities and people by being prepared to meet risks at any level and to address both internal and

external identifiable risks The security plan includes regular vulnerability assessments security audits mitigation efforts and physical security upgrades

designed to reduce vulnerability Dows security plans also are developed to avert interruptions of normal business work operations that could materially

and adversely affect the Companys results of operations liquidity and financial condition

Dow played key role in the development and implementation of the American Chemistry Councils Responsible Care Security Code which

requires
that all aspects of security including facility transportation

and cyberspace be assessed and gaps addressed Through the Company global

implementation of the Security Code Dow has permanently heightened the level of
security noijust in the United States but worldwide Dow employs

several hundred employees and contractors in its Emergency Services and Security department worldwide

Through the implementation of the Security Code including voluntary security enhancements and upgrades made since 2002 Dow is wellpositioned

to comply with the new U.S chemical facility regulations and other regulatory security frameworks In addition Dow was the first chemical company to

receive coverage under the Support Antilerrorism by Fostering Effeclive Technologies Act SAFETY Act from the DHS in 2007 for the Company
MTSA regulated sites and the tirst to receive coverage under SAFETY Act in ZOOS for the Companys Rail Transportation Security Services This

unprecedented certification helps validate Dows efforts and provides additional
liability coverage in the event of terrorist attack

Dow continues to work collaboralively across the supply chain on Responsible Care Supply Chain Design Emergency Preparedness Shipment

Visibility
and

transportation
of hazardous materials Dow is cooperating with public and private

entities to lead the implementation of advanced tank car

design and track and trace technologies Further Dows Distribution Risk Review process that has been in place for decades was expanded to address

potential threats in all modes of
transportation across the Companys supply chain To reduce vulnerabilities Dow maintains security measures that meet or

exceed regulatory and industry security standards in all areas in which the Company operates

Dow continually works to strengthen partnerships with local responders law enforcement and
security agencies and to enhance confidence in the

integrity
of the Companys security

and risk management program as well as strengthen its preparedness and response capabilities Dow also works closely

with its supply chain
partners

and strives to educate lawmakers regulators
and communities about the Companys resolve and actions to dale that mitigate

security
and crisis threats

69



Table of Contents

Climate Change
Dow is committed to reducing its greenhouse gas CRC intensity pounds of CRC per pound of product developing climatefriendly products and

processes and over the longer term implementing technology solutions to achieve even greater climate change tmprovements Since 1990 Dow has

reduced its absolute Cl-IC emissions by more than 20 percent more rapid reduction than required by Kyolo Protocol
targets

Since 1994 Dow has

achieved 22 percent improvement in energy intensity the amount of energy required to produce one pound of product In doing so it has avoided

consuming more than 1700 trillion Btus savings that when converted to electricity would more than supply the residential electrical energy needs of

California for one year Through its energy savings Dow has prevented approximately 90 million metric tons of carbon dioxide from entering the

atmosphere This trend could change depending on business growth capacity utilization and the pace of new technology development

Dow through1ts science and technology capabilities is committed to bringing solutions to the challenge of climate change by producing products

that help others reduce CHG emissions such as lightweight plastics for automobiles and insulation for energy efficient homes and appliances For example

Dows building insulation materials and airsealing products can save up to 20 percent on heating and cooling costs and significantly
reduce GHC

emissions The Companys STYROFOAM insulation is installed in over 20 million buildings worldwide saving over $10 billion in energy costs

annually Dows DOWTHERMTM heal transfer fluids are used in 14 large concentrating solar power plants with total capacity of over 700 megawatts
These plants will provide power for the equivalent of approximately 415000 homes and save 1.6 million metric tons of carbon dioxide emissions per year

Cams made toward Dows Energy Efficiency goal will directly impact progress in reducing CRC intensity Dow is studying the life cycle impact of

its products on climate change and additional global projects that could offset the Companys overall CRC emissions through carbon dioxide reduction

Although the Company has some units subject to the European Unions Emissions Trading Scheme EU ETS the Company has not experienced any

considerable impact in regard to regulated Cl-IC emissions from the EU ETS Dow will continue to evaluate and monitor future developments that may
affect operations in the region

Dows Energy Climate Change Policy and Issue Management Team is tasked with developing and implementing comprehensive strategy
that

addresses the challenges of climate change and energy security and is advocating an international framework that establishes clear pathways to help slow

stop and reverse the rate of Cl-IC emissions globally

Environmental Remediation

Dow accrues the costs of remediation of its facilities and formerly owned facilities based on current law and existing technologies The nature of such

remediatton includes for example the management of soil and groundwater contamination and the closure of contaminated landfills and other waste

management facilities In the case of landfills and other active waste management facilities Dow recognizes the costs over the useful life of the facility The

accounting policies adopted to properly reflect the monetary impacts of environmental matters are discussed in Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements To assess the impact on the financial statements environmental experts review currently available facts to evaluate the
probability

and scope of

potential liabilities Inherent uncertainties exist in such evaluations primarily due to unknown environmental conditions changing governmental regulations

and legal standards regarding liability and emerging remediation technologies These liabilities are adjusted periodically as remediation efforts progress or

as additional technical or legal information becomes available Dow had an accrued liability
of $548 million at December 31 2010 related to the

remediation of current or former Dow owned sites At December 31 2009 the liability
related to remedlatlon was $539 million

In addition to current and former Dowowned sites under the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act and

equivalent state laws hereafter refex ted tu culleutively as Superfund Law Duw is liable fur reutediation of other hazardous waste sites where Dow

allegedly disposed of or arranged for the treatment or disposal of hazardous substances Because Superfund Law imposes joint
and several liability upon

each party at site Dow has evaluated its
potential liability

in
light

of the number of other companies that also have been named potentially responsible

parties PRPs at each site the estimated apportionment of costs among all FRFs and the financial ability and commitment of each to pay its expected

share The Companys remaining liability
for the remediation of Superfund sites was $59 million at December 31 2010 $80 million at December 31

2009 The Company has not recorded any thirdparty recovery related to these sites as receivable
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Dowmined Sites

2010 QQ2

252

42

291

Number of sites at January

Sites acquired from Rohm and Haas

Sties added during year

Sties closed during year

Number of sites at December31

291

289 120 124

Dowowned sites are sttes currently or formerly owned by Dow where remediatton obligations are imposed in the

United States by the Resource Conservation Recovery Act or analogous state law 152 of these sites were formerly

owned by Dowell Schiumberger Inc group of companies in which the Company previously owned 50percent
interest Dow sold its interest in Dowell Schlumberger to 1992

Superfund sties are sties including sites not owned by Dow where remediatton obligations are imposed by Superfund

Law

Additional information is provided below for the Companys manuiaciurtng sites in Freeport Texas Midland Michigan and Philadelphia

Pennsylvania ihe sites for which the Company has the largest environmenial remediation accruals as well as Superfund site in WoodRidge New Jersey

From the start of operations at the Freepori site in the 1940s until the mid1970s manufacturing wastes were typically placed in on sue pits
and

landfills The resulting soil and groundwater contamination is being assessed and remediated under the provisions of the Resource Conservation Recovery

Act RCRA in concert with the state of Texas At December31 2010 the Company had an accrual of $28 million $29 million at December 31 2009

related to environmental remediatton at the Freepori manufacturing site In 2010 $3 million $3 million in 2009 was spent on environmental remediatton at

the Freeport site

Similar to the Freeport site in the early days of operations at the Midland site manufacturing wastes were usually disposed of onsite resulting in

soil and groundwater contamination which has been contained and managed on site under series of RCRA permits and regulatory agreements The most

recent Hazardous Wasie Operating License for the Midland sue issued in 2003 also included provisions for the Company to conduct an investigation to

determine the nature and extent of offsite contamination from historic Midland site operations The scope of the
investigation

includes Midland area soils

the Tittabawassee and Saginaw River sediment and floodplain soils and Saginaw Bay and requires the Company to conduct interim response actions In

January 2010 the Company entered into Federal Comprehensive Environmenial Response Compensation and Ltabiltiy Act Administrative Order on

Consent to perform Remedial Investigation Feasibility Study and Remedial Design for the Tititabawassee and Saginaw River sediment and floodplain

soils and Saginaw Bay See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information At December 31 2010 the Company had an

accrual of $71 million $64 million at December 31 2009 for environmental remedtaiton and investigation eTssociated with the Midland site In 2010 the

Company spent $16 million $19 million in 2009 on environmenial remedlaiton at the Midland site

On April 2009 the Company acquired Rohm and Haas Fhiladelphia Plant which has been an industrial site since the early 1700s end since the

1920s used by Rohm and fleas for the manufacture of wide range of chemical producis Chemical disposal practices in ihe early years resulted in soil and

groundwater contamination at ihe site end in ihe sediments of the edjscent Frsnkford Inlet The site has undergone number of
investigations

end interim

cleanup measures under the RCRA Corrective Action Program end in 2009 was transferred to the regulatory management of the Pennsylvania One

Cleanup Program At December 31 2010 the Company had an accrual of $56 million $58 million et December 31 2009 for environmental remedietion at

the Philadelphia Plant In 2010 the Company spent $1 million $1 million in 2009 following the April 2009 acquisition on environmental remediatton at

the Philadelphia Plant

Rohm end flees is lead PRP at the Wood Ridge New Jersey Veniron/Velsicol Superfund Site end the edjecent Berrys Creek Study Aree Rohm
end Hess is successor in interest to compeny that owned end opersied mercury processing facility where wasieweter end wesie handling resulted in

contamination of soils end adjacent creek sediments The Ventron/Velsicol site is currently undergoing remedietion The Berrys Creek Study Ares is under

the preliminary remedial
investigetion phase end the PRP group is conducting en investigation of sediment contamination in Berrys Creek Sediment

removal was underieken by the PRP group in 2009 in connection with an unrelated
project

to replace flood control tidegete
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Informetion regarding environmental sites is provided below

Environmental Sites Superfund Sites

.QLQ_ 2009

124 85

39
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in the creek At December 31 2010 the Company had an accrual of $9 million $25 million at December 31 2009 for environmental remediation at the

two WoodRidge sites In 2010 the Company spent $22 million $24 million in 2009 following the April 2009 acquisition on environmental

remediation at the two WoodRidge sites

In total the Companys accrued liability for probable environmental remediation and restoration costs was $607 million at December31 2010

compared with $619 million at the end of 2009 This is managements best estimate of the costs for remediation and restoration with respect to

environmental matters for which the Company has accrued liabilities although the ultimate cost with respect to these particular matters could range up to

approximately twice that amount Consequently it is reasonably possible that environmental remediation and restoration costs in excess of amounts accrued

could have rnateual adveise impact on the Companys reaults of operations financial condition and cash flows It is the opinion of the Company

management howeier that the
possibility

is remote that costs in excess of the range disclosed will have material adverse impact on the Companys results

of operations financial condition and cash flows

The amounts charged to income on pretax basis related to environmental remediation totaled $158 million in 2010 $269 million in 2009 and

$140 million in 2008 The amounts charged to income on pretax basis related to operating the Companys current pollution abatement facilities totaled

$706 million in 2010 $675 million in 2009 and $723 million in 2008 Capital expenditures for environmental protection were $173 million in 2010

$219 million in 2009 and $193 million in 2008

AsbestosRelated Matters of Union Carbide Corporation

Introduction

Union Carbide Corporation Union Carbide wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is and has been involved in
large

number of asbestosrelated

suits filed primarily in state courts during the
past

three decades These suits principally allege personal injury resulting
from exposure to

asbestoscontaining products and frequently seek both actual and punitive damages The alleged claims primarily relate to products that Union Carbide sold

in the past alleged exposure to asbestoscontaining products located on Union Carbides premises and Union Carbides responsibility for esbestoa antis

filed against former Union Carbide subsidiary Amchem Products Inc Amchem In many cases plaintiffs are unable to demonstrate that they have

suffered any compensable loss as result of such exposure or that
injuries

incurred in fact resulted from exposure to Union Carbides products

Influenced by the bankruptcy filings of numerous defendants in asbestosrelated litigation and the prospects of various forms of state and national

legislative reform the rate at which plaintiffs filed asbestosrelated suits against various companies including Union Carbide and Amchem increased in

2001 2002 and the first half of 2003 Since then the rate of filing has significantly abated Union Carbide expects more asbestos related suits to be filed

against Union Carbide and Amchem in the future and will aggressively defend or reasonably resolve as appropriate both pending and future claims

The table below provides information regarding asbestosrelated claims filed against Union Carbide and Amchem

2010 2009 2008

Claims unresolved at january

Claims filed

Claims settled dismissed or otherwise resolved

75030
7731

20179

75706

8455

9131

90322

10922

25538

Claims unresolved at December 31 62582 75.030 75706

Claimants with claims against both UCC and Amchem
Individual claimants at December31

18890
43692

24146
50884

24213

51493

Plaintiffs lawyers often sue numerous defendants in individual lawsuits or on behalf of numerous claimants As result the damages alleged are not

expressly identified as to Union Carbide Amchem or any other particular defendant even when specific damages are alleged with respect to specific

disease or injury In fact there are no personal injury cases in which only Union Carbide and/or Amchem are the sole named defendants For these reasons

and based upon Union Carbides litigation
and settlement experience Union Carbide does not consider the damages alleged against Union Carbide and

Amchem to be meaningful factor in its determination of any potential asbestosrelated liability
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Estimating the Liability

Based on study completed by Analysis Research Planning Corporation ARPC in January 2003 Union Carbide increased its December 31 2002

asbeatos related liability for pending and future claims for the 15 year period ending in 2017 to $2.2 billion excluding future defense and processing costs

Since then Union Carbide has compared current asbestos claim and resolution
activity to the results of the most recent ARPC study at each balance sheet

date to determine whether the accrual continues to be appropriate In addition Union Carbide has requested ARPC to review Union Carbides historical

asbestos claim and resolution
activity

each November since 2004 to determine the appropriateness of updating the most recent ARPC study

In November 2008 Union Carbide requested ARPC to review Unton Carbides historical asbestos claim and resolution activity and determine the

appropriateness of updating its then most recent study completed in December 2006 In response to that request ARPC reviewed and analyzed data through

October 31 2008 The resulting study completed by ARPC in December 2008 stated that the undiscounted cost of resolving pending and future

asbestosrelated claims
against

Union Carbide and Amchem excluding future defense and processing costs through 2023 was estimated to be between

$952 million and $1.2 billion As in its earlier studies ARPC provided estimates for longer period of time in its December 2008 study but also reaffirmed

its prior advice that forecasts for shorter periods of time are more accurate than those for longer periods of time

In December 2008 based on ARPCs December 2008 study and Union Carbides own review of the asbestos claim and resolution activity Union

Carbide decreased its asbestosrelated liability for pending and future claims to $952 million which covered the 15year period ending 2023 excluding

future defense and processing costs The reduction was $54 million and is shown as Asbestos related credits in the consolidated statements of income At

December 31 2008 the asbestosrelated liability for pending and future claims was $934 million

In November 2009 Union Carbide requested ARPC to review Union Carbides 2009 asbestos claim and resolution activity
and determine the

appropriateness of updating its December 2008 study In response to that request ARPC reviewed and analyzed data through October 31 2009 Tn

December 2009 ARPC stated that an update of Its study would not provide more likely estimate of future events than the estimate reflected in its study of

the prevtous year and therefore the estimate in that study remained applicable Based on Union Carbides own review of the asbestos claim and resolution

activity and ARPC response Union Carbide determined that no change to the accrual was required At December 31 2009 Union Carbides

asbestosrelated
liability

for pending and future claims was $839 million

In November 2010 Union Carbide requested ARPC to review Union Carbides htstortcal asbestos claim and resolution activity and determine the

appropriateness of updating its December 2008 study In response to that request ARPC reviewed and analyzed data through October 31 2010 The

resulting study completed by ARPC in December 2010 stated that the undiscounted cost of resolving pending and future asbestosrelated claims against

Union Carbide and Amchem excluding future defense and processing costs through 2025 was estimated to be between $744 million and $835 millton As

in its earlier studies ARPC provided estimates for longer period of time in its December 2010 study but also reaffirmed its prior
advice that forecasts for

shorter periods of lime are more accurale than those for longer periods of time

In December 2010 based on ARPCs December 2010 study and Union Carbides own review of the asbestos claim and resolution activity Union

Carbide decreased its asbestosrelated liability for pending and future claims to $744 million which covered the 15year period ending 2025 excluding

future defense and processing costs The reduction was $54 million and was shown as Asbestosrelated credits in the consolidated statements of income

At December 31 2010 the asbestos related liability for pending and future claims was $728 million

At December 31 2010 approximately 21 percent of the recorded
liability

related to pending claims and approximately 79 percent related to future

claims At December 31 2009 approximately 23 percent of the recorded
liability

related to pending claims and approximately 77 percent related to future

claims
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Defense and Resolution Costs

The following table provides information regarding defense and resolution costs related to asbestosrelated claims filed against
Union Carbide and

Amchem

Defense and Resolution Costs Aggregate Costs

to Date as of

In millions 2010 2009 2008 Dec 31 2010

Defense costs 87 62 60 774

Resolutioncosts 43 94 $116 1523

The average resolution payment per asbestos claimant and the rate of new claim filings has fluctuated both up and down since the beginning of 2001

Union Carbides management expects such fluctuations to continue in the future based upon number of faciors including the number and type of claims

settled in particular period the jurisdictions in which such claims arose and the extent to which any proposed legislative
reform related to asbestos

litigation is being considered

Union Carbide expenses defense costs as incurred The pretax impact for defense and resolution costs net of insurance was $73 million in 2010

$58 million in 2009 and $53 million in 2008 and was reflected in Cost of sales in the consolidated statements of income

Insurance Receivables

Al December 31 2002 Union Carbide increased the receivable for insurance recoveries relaled to its asbestos liability to $1.35 billion substantially

exhausling its asbestos product liability coverage The insurance receivable related lo the asbestos liability was determined by Union Carbide after

thorough review of applicable insurance policies and the 1985 Wellington Agreement to which Union Carbide and many of its liability insurers are

signatury parties as well as other insurance settlements with due consideration given to applicable deductibles retentiuns and pulicy limits and taking into

account the solvency and historical payment experience of various insurance carriers The Wellington Agreement and other agreements with insurers are

designed In facilitate an orderly resolution and collection of Union Carbides insurance policies and to resolve issues thai the insurance carriers may raise

In September 2003 Union Carbide filed comprehensive insurance coverage case now proceeding in the Supreme Court of the Slate of New York

County of New York seeking to confirm its rights to insurance for various asbestos claims and to facilitate an orderly and timely collection of insurance

proceeds the Insurance Litigation The Insurance Litigation was filed against insurers that are not signatories In the Wellington Agreement and/or do not

otherwise have agreements in place wtth Union Carbide regarding their asbestosrelated insurance coverage in order io facilitate an orderly resolution and

collection of such insurance policies and to resolve issues thai the insurance carriers may raise Since the filing of Ihe case Union Carbide has reached

settlements with several of the carriers involved in Ihe Insurance Litigation including settlements reached with two significant
carriers in the fourth quarter

of 2009 The Insurance Litigation is ongoing

Union Carbides receivable for insurance recoveries related to its asbestos liability was $50 million at December 31 2010 and $84 million at

December 31 2009 At December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 all of the receivable for insurance recoveries was related to insurers thai are not

signatories to the Wellington Agreement and/or do not otherwise have agreements in place regarding their asbestosrelated insurance coverage

In addition to the receivable for insurance recoveries related to its asbestos
liabtlity

Union Carbide had receivables for defense and resolution costs

submitted to insurance carriers thai have settlement agreements in place regarding their asbestos related insurance coverage The following table

summarizes Union Carbides receivables related to its asbestosrelated liability

Receivables for AsbestosRelated Costs at December 31
fl .11...
in 1iiua 2010 2009

Receivables for defense costs carriers with settlement agreements 12 91

Receivables for resolution coals carriers with settlement agreements 236 357

Receivables for insurance recoveries carriers without settlement agreements

Total

50

$298

84

$532
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After review of its tnsurance policies with due consideration given to applicable deductibles retentions and policy limits after taking into account

the solvency and historical payment experience of various insurance carriers existing insurance settlements and the advice of outside counsel with respect

to the applicable inaurance coverage law
relating to the terms and conditions of its insurance policies Union Carbide continues to believe that its recorded

receivable for insurance recoveries from all insurance carriers is probable of collection

Summary
The amounts recorded by Union Carbide for the asbestosrelated liability and related insurance receivable described above were based upon current known

facts However future events such as the number of new claims to be filed and/or received each year the average cost of disposing of each such claim

coverage issues among insurers and the continuing solvency of various insurance companies as well as the numerous uncertainties surrounding asbestos

litigation in the United States could cause the actual costs and insurance recoveries for Union Carbide to be higher or lower than those projected or those

recorded

Because of the uncertainties described shove Union Carbides management cannot estimate the full range of the cost of resolving pending and future

asbestos related claims facing Union Carbide and Amchem Union Carbides management believes that it is reasonably possible that the cost of disposing

of Union Carbides asbestosrelated claims including future defense costs could have material adverse impact on Union Carbides results of operations

sod cash flows for
particular period and on the consolidated financial position

of Union Carbide

Ii is the opinion of Dows management that it is reasonably possible
that the cost of Union Carbide disposing of its asbestos related claims including

future defense costs could have material adverse impact on the Companys results of operations and cash flows for particular period and on the

consolidated financial position of the Company

Matters Involving the Formation of KDow Petrochemicals

Introduction

On December 13 2007 the Company and Petrochemical Industries Company K.S.C PlC of Kuwait wholly owned subsidiary of Kuwait Petroleum

Corporation KPC announced plans to form 5050 global petrochemicals joint venture The proposed joint venture KDow Petrochemicals

KDow was expected to have revenues of more than $11 billion and employ more than 5000 people worldwide

On November 28 2008 the Company entered into Joint Venture Formation Agreement the JVPA with PlC that provided for the establishment

of KDow To form the joint venture the Company would transfer by way of contribution and sale to KDow assets used in the research development

manufacture dtstribution marketing and sale of polyethylene polypropylene polycsrbonste polycsrbonste compounds and blends ethyleneamines

ethanoismines and related licensing and catalyst technologies and Dow would assume certain related tiabilities PlC would receive 50percent equity

interest in KDow in exchange for the payment by FTC of the initial purchase price estimated to be $7.5 billion The purchase price
was subject to certain

post closing adjustments

Failure to Close

On December 31 2008 the Company received written notice from PlC with respect to the jVPA advising the Company of PlCs position that certain

conditions to closing were not satisfied and therefore FTC was not obligated to close the transaction On January 2009 PlC refused to close the KDow
transaction in accordance with the JVPA The Company disagrees with the characterizations and conclusions expressed by PlC in the written notice and the

Company has informed PlC that it breached the JVFA On January 2009 the Company announced that it would seek to fully enforce its rights under the

terms of the JVFA and various related agreements

4rbltratlon

The Companys claims against PlC are subject to an arbitration agreement between the parties which provides for arbitration under the Rules of Arbitration

of the International Chamber of Commerce On February 18 2009 the Company initiated arbitration proceedings against PlC
alleging

that FTC breached

the JVFA by failing to close the transaction on January 2009 The Company is seeking damages in excess of $2.5 billion in the arbitration proceeding
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

PART II Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Dows business operstions give rise to market risk exposure due to chsnges in foreign exchsnge rates interest rates commodity prices and other market

factors such as equity prices To manage such risks effectively the Company enters intu hedging transactions pursuant to established guidelines and

policies which enable it to mitigate the adverse effecis of financial market risk Derivatives used for this purpose are designated as hedges per the

accounting guidance related to derivatives and hedging activities where appropriate secondary objective is to add value by creating additional

nonspecific exposure within established limits and policies derivatives used for this purpose are not designated as hedges The potential impact of creating

such additional exposures is not material to the Companys results

The global nature of Dows business requires active participation in the foreign exchange markets As result of investments production facilities

and other operations on global basis the Company has assets liabilities and cash flows in currencies other than the U.S dollar The primary objective of

the Companys foreign exchange risk management is to optimize the U.S dollar value of net assets and cash flows keeping the adverse impact of currency

movements to minimum To achieve this objective the Company hedges on net exposure basis using foreign currency forward contracts

overthe counter option contracts crosscurrency swaps and nonderivative instruments in foreign currencies Exposures primarily relate lo assets

liabilities and bonds denominated in foreign currencies as well as economic exposure which is derived from the risk that currency fluctuations could affect

the dollar value of future cash flows related to operating activities The largest exposures are denominated in European currencies the Japanese yen and the

Canadian dollar although exposures also exist in other currencies of Asia Pacific Latin America and India Middle East and Africa

The main objective of interest rate risk management is to reduce the total funding coal to the Company and to alter the interest rate exposure to the

desired risk profile Dow uses interest rate swaps swaptions and exchangetraded instruments to accomplish this objective The Company primary

exposure is to the U.S dollar yield curve

Dow has
portfolio

of equity securities derived primarily from the investment activities of its insurance subsidiaries This exposure is managed in

manner consistent with the Companys market risk
policies

and procedures

Inherent in Dows business is exposure to
price changes for several commodities Some exposures can be hedged effectively through liquid

tradable

financial instruments Feedatocks for ethylene production and natural gas constitute the main commodity exposures Overthecounter and exchange traded

instruments are used to hedge these risks when feasible

Dow uses value at risk VAR stress testing
and scenario analysis

for risk measurement and control purposes VAR estimates the maximum

potential loss in fair market values given certain move in
prices over certain period of time using specified confidence levels The VAR methodology

used by the Company is historical simulation model which captures comovements in market rates across different instruments and market risk exposure

categories The historical simulation model uses 97.5 percent confidence level and the historical scenario period includes at least six months of historical

data The 2010 and 2009 yearend and average daily VAR for the aggregate of all positions are shown below These amounts are immaterial relative to the

total equity of the Company

Total Daily VAR at December 31

In millions

2010

Yearend Average

2009

Yearend Average

Poreign exchange

Interest rate 251 211 257 250

Equities 15 12 14

Commodities

Composite 252 218 254 251

The Companys daily VAR for the aggregate of all positions decreased slightly from composite VAR of $254 million at December 31 2009 to

composite of $252 million at December 31 2010

See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further disclosure regarding market risk
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

PART II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

The Dow Chemical Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Dow Chemical Company and aubsidiariea the Company as of December 31

2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income equity comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements and

financial statement schedule are the
responsibility

of the Companys management Our
responsibility

is to express an opinion on the financial statements

and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit tn nhtain reasonahle assuranre ahnut whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial
position

of The Dow Chemical Company and

subsidiaries at December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion such financial

statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the

information set forth therein

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the Companys internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 18 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company

internal control over financial reporting

Is DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Deloilte Touche LLP

Midland Michigan

February 18 2011
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

In millions
except per

share nmonntsl For the
years

ended Derember 31 20/0 200.9 2008

Net Sales 53674 44875 $57361

Cost of sales 45780 39148 51913

Research and development expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses

Amortization of intangibles

Goodwill impairment losses

Restructuring charges

Purchased inprocess research and development charges

Acquisition and integration related expenses

Asbestos related credits

1660

2609
509

26

143

54

1492

2487

399

689

166

1310

1966
92

239

839

44

49

54

Equity in earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates

Sundry income net

Interest income

1112
125

37

630

891

39

787

89

86

Interest expense and amortization of debt discount 1473 1571 648

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 2802 469 1277

Provision Credit for income taxes 481 97 651

Net Income from Continuing Operations 2321 566 626

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 110 28

Net Income 2321 676 654

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 11 28 75

Net Income Attributable to The Dow Chemical Company 2310 648 579

Preferred stock dividends 340 312

Net Income Available for The Dow Chemical Company Common Stockholders 1970 336 579

Per Common Share Daia

Net income from continuing operations available for common stockholders

Discontinued operations attributable to common stockholders

1.75 0.22

0.10

0.59

0.03

Earnings per common share basic 1.75 0.32 0.62

Net income from continuing operations available for common stockholders

Discontinued operations attributable to common stockholders

1.72 0.22

0.10

0.59

0.03

Earnings per common share diluted 1.72 0.32 0.62

Common stock dividends declared per share of common stock

Weightedaverage common shares outstanding basic

Weightedaverage common shares outstanding dtiuted

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

0.60

1125.9

1143.8

0.60

1043.2

1053.9

1.68

930.4

939.0
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

In millions except shore amounts At December 31 2010 2009

Assets

Curreni Asseis

Cash and cash equivalents variable interest entities restricted 2010 $145 7039 2846

Accounts and notes receivable

Trade net of allowance for doubtful receivables 2010 $128 2009 $160
Other

4616

4428

5656

3539

Inventories 7087 6847
Deferred income tax asxets current 611 654

Total current assets 23.781 19.542

Investments

Investment in nonconsolidated affiliates 3453 3224

Other investments investments carried at fair value 2010 $2064 2009 $2136
Nnnnrrent recetvables

Total investments

2542
388

2561
210

6.383 5.995

Property

Property

Less accumulated denreciatlon

Net property variable tnterest entities restricted 2010 $1388

Other Assets

51648
33.980

53567

35.426

17.668 12.141

Goodwill 12967 13213

Other intangible assets net of accumulated amortization 2010 $1805 2009 $1302
Deferred income tax assets noncurrent

5530

2079

5966

2039

Asbestosrelated insurance receivables noncurrent 220 330

Deferred charges and other assets 960 792

Total other assets 21.756 22.340

Total Assets $69588 $66018

Liabilities and Equity

Current Liabilities

Notes payable

Longterm debt due within one year

Accounts payable

Trade

1467

1755

4356

2139

1082

4153

Other 2249 2014

Income taxes payable

Deferred income tax liabilities current

349

105

176

78

Dividends payable

Accmed and other current liabtltttes

Total current Itahilities

LongTerm Debt

257

3.358

254

3.209

13.896 13.105

20.605 19152

Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities noncurrent 1295 1367

Pension and other postretirement benefits noncurrent

Asbestosrelated liabilities noncurrent

7492
663

7242
734

Other noncurrent obligations

Total other noncurrent ltahtltttes

2.995 3.294

12.445 12.637

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock series $1.00 par $1000 liquidation preference 4000000 shares

Common stock authorized 1500000000 shares of $2.50 par value each issued 2010 1172354054 shares 2009

1162375462 shares

4000

2931

4000

2906

Additional paidin capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Unearned ESOP shares

Treasury stock st cost 2010 5.137.039 shares 2009 12 158.605 shares

2286

17736

4399
476
2391

1913

16704

3892
519
5571

The Dow Chemical Companys stockholders equity

Noncontrolline interests

21.839 20.555

803 569

Total equity 22642 21124

Total Ltabiltiies and Equity $69588 $66018

See Notes to the Consolidated Finaiscial Statements
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PART II

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the eod of the pertod covered by thts Annual Report on Form 10K the Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the

participation
of the Companys Disclosure Committee and the Companys management including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chtet Financial

Officer of the effedfiveness of the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to paragraph of Exchange Act

Rules l3a 15 and Sd 15 Based upon that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded thai the Companys
disclosure controls and procedures were effective

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph of

Exchange Act Rules 13a15 or 15d15 that was conducted during the last fiscal quarter that have materially affected or are reasonably likely
to malerially

affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for
establishing

and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting The Companys internal control framework

and processes are designed to provide reasonable assurance to management and the Board of Directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of the Companys consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

The Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain
to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

Company
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded properly to allow for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles and .that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and Directors of the Company
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys assets

that could have material effect on the consolidated financial statements and

provide reasonable assurance as to the detection of fraud

Because of its inherent limitations any system of internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance and may not prevent

or detect misstatements

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over tinancial reporting and concluded that as of December 31 2010 such

internal control is effective In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework

The Companys independent auditors Deloitte Touche LLP with direct access to the Companys Board of Directors through its Audit Committee

have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Company Their report on the consolidated financial statements is included in Part II

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Deloitte Touche LLPs report on the Companys internal control over financial reporting is

included herein

Is ANDREW LIVERIS Is WILLIAM I-I WEIDEMAN

Andrew Liveris William Weideman

President Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Chairman of the Board

Is RONALD EDMONDS

Ronald Edmonds

Vice President and Controller

February 18 2011
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PART II

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

The Dow Chemical Company

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of The Dow Chemical Company and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2010

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for us assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the companys principal
executive and principal

financial officers or persons performing similar functions and effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparalion of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions

of the assets of the company provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial slatemenis in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizalions of management and

directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of

the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of

controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the

effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because uf

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated financial

statements and financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 as of and for the year ended December 31 2010 of the Company and our

report dated February 18 201 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements end financial statement schedule

Is DELOIflE TOUCHE LLP

Deloitte Touche LLF

Midland Michigan

February 18 2011
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PART II

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information relating to Directors certain executive officers and certain corporate governance matters including identification of Audit Committee members

and financial experts is contained in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to beheld

on May 12 2011 and is incorporated herein by reference See also the information regarding executive officers of the
registrant

set forth in Part Item

Business under the caption Executive Officers of the Registrant in reliance on Ceneral Instruction to Form 10

On July 10 2003 the Board of Directors of the Company adopted code of ethics that applies to its principal executive officer principal
financial

officer and
principal accounting officer and is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10K for the year

ended December 31 2003

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information relating to executive compensation and the Companys equity compensation plans is contained in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual

Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to be held on May 12 2011 and is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MAnERS

Information with respect to beneficial ownership of Dow common stock by each Director and all Directors and executive officers of the Company as

group is contained in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to be on held May 12 2011

and is incorporated herein by reference

Information relating to any person who beneficially owns in excess of percent of the total outstanding shares of Dow common stock is contained in

the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to be on held May 12 2011 and is incorporated

herein by reference

Information with
respect

to compensation plans under which equity securities are authorized for issuance is contained in the definitive Proxy

Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to be held on May 12 20.11 and is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Reportable relationships and related transactions if any as well as information relating to director independence are contained in the definitive Proxy

Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to be held on May 12 2011 and are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information with
respect

to fees and services related to the Companys independent auditors Deloitle Touche LLP and the disclosure of the Audit

Committees preapproval policies and procedures are contained in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow

Chemical Company to be held on May 12 2011 and are incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this report

The Companys 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements and the Report of Independent Registered Fublic Accounting Firm are

included in Fart II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Ftnancial Statement Schedules The following Financial Statement Schedule ahould he read in conjunction with the Consolidated

Financial Statements and Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm included in Fart II Item Financial Statements

and Supplementary Data

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules other than the one listed above are omitted due to the absence of conditions under which they are required or because the

information called for is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Exhibits See the Exhibit Index on pages 167173 for exhtbtts ftled with this Annual Report on Form 10K or tncorporsted by
reference The following exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10K

Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
21 Subsidiartes of The Dow Chemical Company
23a Consent of Independent Registered Fublic Accounting Firm

23b Analysis Research Flanning Corporations Consent

23c Consent of Independent Registered Fubltc Accounting Firm

31a Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

1b Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbsnesOxley Act of 2002

32s Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

32b Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

l0l.INS XBRL Instance Document

10l.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

lOl.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101 .DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101 .FRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation this interactive data file ts deemed not filed or part
of registration statement or

prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections

copy of any exhibit can be obtained via the Internet through the Companys Investor Relations webpage on www.dow.com or the

Company will provide copy of any exhibit upon receipt of written request for the particular
exhibit or exhibits desired All requests

should be addressed to the Vice President and Controller of the Company at the address of the Companys principal executive offices

The consolidated financial statements of Dow Corning Corporation and Subsidiaries for the period ended December 31 2010 are presented

pursuant to Rule 309 of Regulation SX

164



2010
RESERVES DEDUCTED FROM ASSETS TO WHICH THEY AFFLY

For doubtful recetvables

Other tnvestments and noncurrent recetvables

2009

RESERVES DEDUCTED FROM ASSETS TO WHICH THEY APFLY
For doubtful receivables

Other investments and noncurrent recetvables

2008

RESERVES DEDUCTED FROM ASSETS TO WHICH THEY APFLY
For doubtful receivables

Other investments and noncurrent receivables

2010 2009 2008

Deductions represent

Notes and accounts receivable written off

Credits to profit and loss

Sale of trade accounts receivable see Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Miscellaneous other

$29 $21 $23

27

$61 $23 $33

Table of Contents

Schedule II

The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
For the Years Ended December 31

In millions

COLUMN

Description

COLUMN COLUMN
Balance

at Beginning Additions to

of Year Reserves

COLUMN
Deductions

from

Reserves

COLUMN
Balance

at End

of Year

$160 29 611 $128

$552 73 107 $518

$124 59 23 $160

$442 162 52 $552

$118 39 330 $124

$473 20 51 $442
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

THE DOW CHEMICAL COMPAY

By ______ /s/ C.EDMONDS

Edmonds Vice President snd Controller

Date February 10 2011

Pursusnt to the requirements of the Securities Exchsnge Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant

and in the
capacities

and on the dates indicated

By Is ALLEMANG By Is LIVERIS

Allemang Director Ltveris Director President Chief Executive Officer and

Date February 10 2011 Chairman of the Board

Date February 10 2011

By /5 BARTON By Is POLMAN
Barton Director Polman Director

Date February 10 2011 Date February 10 2011

By Is/I BELL By laiD REILI.EY

Bell Director Reilley Director

Date February 10 2011 Date February 10 2011

By Is EDMONDS By Is RINCLER

Edmonds Vice President and Controller Rtngler Director

Date February 10 2011 Date February 10 2011

By is FEITIC By _______________ is SHAW

Fettig Director Shaw Director

Date February 10 2011 Date February 10 2011

By is FRANKLIN By Is/P STERN

Franklin Director Stern Presiding Director

Date February 10 2011 Date February 10 2011

By is HESS By IsIW WEIDEMAN
Hess Director Weideman Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Date February 10 2011 Officer

Date February 10 2011
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Exhibit Index

EXHIBIT NO DESCRIPTION

2a Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 1999 among Union Carbide Corporation The Oow Chemical Company and

Transition Sub Inc incorporated by reference to Annex to the proxy statement1prospectus included in The Dow Chemical

Companys Registration Statement on Form File No 33388443 filed October 1999

2b Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of July 10 2008 among The Dow Chemical Company Ramses Acquisition Corp and Rohm

and Haas Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on

July 10 2008

2c Joint Venture Pormation Agreement dated November 28 2008 between The Dow Chemical Company and Petroleum Industries

Company K.S.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on

February 19 2009

2d Stock Furchase Agreement dated as of April 2009 between Rohm and Haas Company and KS Aktiengesellschaft tnrnrporatd hy

reference to Exhibit 2.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Porm 8K filed on April 2009

2di Amendment No dated as of October 2009 to the Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of April 2009 between Rohm and Haas

Company and KS Aktiengesellschaft incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2d to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report

for the quarter ended September 30 2009

3i The Restated Certificate of Incorporation of The Dow Chemical Company as filed with the Secretary of State State of Delaware on

May 17 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3i to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Porm 10 for the

quarter ended September 30 2010

3i Certificate of Designations for the Cumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock Series as originally
filed with the Secretary of

State State of Delaware on March 31 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report

on Porm 8K filed on April 12009 and as refiled whh the Secretary of State State of Delaware on May 17 2010

3u The Bylaws of The Dow Chemical Company as amended and readopted in full on February 10 2010 effective February 10 2010

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on February 12 2010

Indenture dated as of April 1992 between The Dow Chemical Company and the Ftrst National Bank of Chicago as trustee

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to The Dow Chemical Companys Registration Statement on Form S3 File No 333 88617

the Registration Statement as amended by the Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 1994 between The Dow

Chemical Company and The First National Bank of Chicago as trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the S3
Registration Statement as amended by the Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1999 between The Dow Chemical

Company and Bank One Trust Company N.A formerly The First National Bank of Chicago as trustee incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.3 to the S3 Registration Statement as amended by the Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 15 2001 between

The Dow Chemical Company and Bank One Trust Company N.A formerly The First National Bank of Chicago as trustee

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to The Dow Chemical Companys Registration Statement on Form File No
33367368 and all other such indentures that define the rights of holders of longterm debt of The Dow Chemical Company and its

consolidated subsidiaries as shall be requested to be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Item

601 b4 iii of Regulation SK
4a Indenture dated May 2008 between The Dow Chemical Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company NA as trustee

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to PostEffective Amendment No Ito The Dow Chemical Companys Registration

Statement on Form S3 File No j33l40859
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10a The Dow Chemical Company Executives Supplemental Retirement Plan as amended restated and effective as of April 14 2010

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Porm 8K filed on May 2010

10a An Amendment to The Dow Chemical Company Executives Supplemental Retirement Plan effecttve as of April 14 2010 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Porm 8K filed on May 2010

10b The Dow Chemical Company 1979 Award and Option Plan as amended and restated on May 13 1983 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10b to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Porm 10Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009

10b resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of The Dow Chemical Company on April 12 1984 amending The Dow Chemical

Company 1979 Award and Option Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibtt 10b to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report

on Porm 10Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009

10b ii resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of The Dow Chemical Company on April 18 1985 amending The Dow Chemical

Company 1979 Award and Option Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10b ii to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report

on Porm 10Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009

10b iii resolution adopted by the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors of The Dow Chemical Company on October 30 1987

amending The Dow Chemical Company 1979 Award and Option Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10b iii to The Dow

Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Form 10 for the quarter ended March 31 2009

10c The Dow Chemical Company Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan for Outside Directors for deferrals made through December 31

2004 as amended effective as of July 1994 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 101 to The Dow Chemical Company Annual

Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 1994 as amended in the manner described in the definitive Proxy Statement for

the Annual Meeting of Sluckholders of The Dow Chemical Company held on May 14 1998 incorporated by reference

10d Rohm and Haas Company NonQualified Retirement Plan as amended and restated effective as of January 2009 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on February 17 2011

10e The Dow Chemical Company Dividend Unit Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10e to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly

Report on Porm 10Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009

10f The Dow Chemical Company 1988 AWard and Option Plan as amended and restated on December 10 2008 effective as of January

2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10f to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended

December 31 2008

10g Intentionally left blank

10h The Dow Chemical Company 1994 Executive Performance Plan as amended and restated on December 10 2008 effective as of

January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10h to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form 10 for the year

ended December 31 2008

100 The Dow Chemical Company 1994 Non Employee Directors Stock Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10i to The Dow

Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Porm 10Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009

100 Intentionally
left blank
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10k written description of the 1998 NonEmployee Directors Stock Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to the definittve Proxy

Statemeni for the Annuat Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company held on May t4 189b

101 wrttten deacrtption of compensatton for Directors of The Dow Chemical Company incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy

Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to be held on May 12 2011

10m written description of the manner in which compensation is set for the Executive Officers of The Dow Chemical Company incorporated

by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to be held on

May 12 2011

10n resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of The Dow Chemical Company on May 1971 and most recently amended on July

1998 describing the employee compensation program for decelerating Directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10p to The Dow
Chemical Company Annual Report on Form 10 for the year ended December 31 1998 as amended readopted in full and restated on

March 21 2003 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10n to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Form l0Q for the

quarter
ended March 31 2003 as amended readopted in full and restated on February 10 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10n to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Form 10Q for the quarter ended March 31 2005

10o The template used for The Dow Chemical Cumpany Key Employee Insurance Program KElP which provides benefits using insurance

policies that replace beneftts otherwise payable under The Dow Chemtcal Company Executives Supplemental Retirement Plan and

CompanyPaid Life Insurance Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10o to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form

10K for the year ended December 31 2002 KElP is component of the annual pension benefits listed in and incorporated by reference

to the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Dow Chemical Company to be held on May 12 2011

10p The Dow Chemical Company Elective Deferral Plan for deferrals made through December 31 2004 as amended restated and effective

as of April 14 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on

May 2010

10p An Amendment to The Dow Chemical Company Elective Deferral Plan for deferrals made through December 31 2004 effective as of

April 14 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on May
2010

10q The Rohm and Haas Company NonQualified Savings Plan for deferrals made through December 31 2004 amended and restated

effective as of January 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K
filed nn February 18 2010

10r The Rohm and Haas Company NonQualified Savings Plan for deferrals made after January 2005 amended and restated effective as

of January 2010 tncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on

February 18 2010

10s The Summary Plan Description for The Dow Chemical Company CompanyPaid Life Insurance Plan EmployeePaid Life Insurance

Plan and Dependent Life Insurance Plan amended and restated on December 23 2010 effective as of January 2011 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form filed on February 17 2011

10t The Summaiy Plan Description for The Dow Chemical Company Retiree CompanyPaid Life Insurance Plan Retiree Optional Life

Insurance Plan and Retiree Dependent Life Insurance Plan amended and restated on December 23 2010 effective as of January 2011

incorporated by reference to Exhtbit 10.3 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form filed on February 17 2011
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10u Amended and Restated 2003 NonEmployee Dtrectors Stock Incentive Plan adopted by the Board of Directors of The Dow Chemical

Company on December 10 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10u to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form

10K for the year ended December 31 2007

10v NonQualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company 1994 NonEmployee Directors Stock Plan

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on September 2004

10w Nnn Qualified Stork
flptinn Agreement Pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company 21103 Non Emplnyee Directors Stock Incentive

Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10w to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Form 10Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2004

10x The Performance Shares Deferred Stock Agreement Pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company 1988 Award and Option Plan as

amended restated and effective as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10x to The Dow Chemical Company

Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2008

10y The Deferred Stock Agreement Pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company 1988 Award and Option Plan as amended restated and

effective as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10y to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form

10K for the year ended December 31 2008

10z The NonQualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company 1988 Award and Option Plan as amended

restated and effective as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10z to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report

on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2008

lOaa Settlement Agreement and Ceneral Release between Richard Manetta and The Dow Chemical Company dated December 10 2004

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on lorm 8K filed on December 16 2004

l0bb Deferred Compensation Agreement between Richard Manetta and The Dow Chemical Company dated December 10 2004

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on December 16 2004

lOcc The Dow Chemical Company Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan for NonEmployee Directors effective for deferrals after January

2005 as amended and restated on December 10 2008 effective as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit lOcc to

The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2008

l0dd The Dow Chemical Company Elective Deferral Plan effective for deferrals after January 2005 as amended restated and effective as

of April 14 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on

May 2010

10dd fl An Amendment to The Dow Chemical Company Elective Deferral Plan effective for deferrals after January 2005 effective as of

April 14 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on May

lOee The template for communication to employee Directors who are decelerating pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company Retirement

Policy for Employee Directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit lOee to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Form

10 for the quarter ended June 30 2005
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10ff Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of September 30 2005 between Catalysis Adsorbents and Process Systems Inc and Honeywell

Specialty Materials LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1011 to The Dow Chemical Company Quarterly Report on Form l0Q
for the

quarter
ended September 30 2005

l0gg Employment agreement with Geoffery Merszei Executtve Vice President and Chief Financial Officer incorporated by reference to

Exhibit l0gg to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form 10K for the yesr ended December 31 2005

10hh Employment agreement dated June 18 2005 between William Banhoizer and The Dow Chemical Company incorporated by

reference to the Current Report on Form 8K filed on March 16 2006

10E Employment agreement dated February 14 2006 between Heinz Hailer and The Dow Chemical Company incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10E to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2008

100j Change in Control Executive Severance Agreement Tier incorporated by reference to Exhibit lOffi to The Dow Chemical

Company Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2007

10kk Change in Control Executive Severance Agreement Tier incorporsled by reference to Exhibit 10kk to The Dow Chemical

Company Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2007

1001 Voting Agreement dated as of July 10 2008 by and among Rohm and Hass Company The Dow Chemical Company and each of the

persons and entities listed on Schedule thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current

Report on Form 8K filed on July 10 2008

10mm Term Loan Agreement dated as of September 2008 among The Dow Chemical Company as borrower the lenders party thereto and

Citibank NA as administrative agent for the lenders incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to The Dow Chemical Company
Current Report on Form 8K filed on September 2008

l0mm First Amendment to the Term Loan Agreement dated as of March 2009 among The Dow Chemical Company the lenders
party

to

the Term Loan Agreement dated as of September 2008 Citibank N.A as administrative agent and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner

Smith Incorporated and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding Inc as cosyndication agents incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on March 2009

10nn Investment Agreemeni daled as of October 27 2008 between The Dow Chemical Company and Berkshire Hathaway Inc

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form filed on October 27 2008

10oo Investment Agreement dated as of October 27 2008 between The Dow Chemical Company and The Kuwait Investment Authority

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 lo The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on October 27 2008

lOpp Securities Issuance Letter dated March 2009 among The Dow Chemical Company Citigroup Global Markets Inc Merrill Lynch

Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to The Dow

Chemical Company Current Report on Form filed on March 2009

10qq Commitment to Close dated March 2009 among The Dow Chemical Company Ramses Acquisition Corp and Rohm and Haas

Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on March 12

2009
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10rr Investment Agreement dated March 2009 among ThQ cal Company Paulson Co Inc and the Haas Family Trusts

tncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to The Dow tJ rent Report on Porm 8K filed on March 12 2009

10ss Letter Agreement dated March 2009 among The Dow Ramses Acquisition Corp and the Haas Family Trusts

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to The Dow Chemtcal Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on March 12 2009

l0tt Letter Agreement dated March 2009 among The DofJWemJÆiliL1çy Ramses Acquisition Corp and Paulson Co Inc

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 In The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form filed nn March 12 2009

l0uu Ptikhase Agreement dated May 2009 among The Paulson Co Inc and the I-lass Family Trusts

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Dow ic rrent Report on Porm 8K filed on May 11 2009

10w Stock Purchase Agreement dated May 11 2009 between The hemical Company and
Fidelity Management Trust Services as

trustee of trust established under The Dow Chemical Company Employees Savings Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to The

Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on May 14 2009

l0ww The Deferred Stock Units Agreement Pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company 1988 Award and Option Plan as amended restated and

effective as of January 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form 8K
filed on February 18 2010

l0xx The Special Deferred Stock Agreement Pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company 1988 Award and Option Plan as amended restated and

effective as of January 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Form

filed on February 18 2010

l0yy Th Performdnce Shaies Defeiied Stuck Units Agreement Fuisuent lu The Dow Chemical Cumpany 1988 Award and Option Plan as

amended restated and effective as of January 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to The Dow Chemical Company Current

Report on Form filed on February 18 2010

l0zz The Special Performance Shares Deferred Stock Agreement Pursuant to The Dow Chemical Company 1988 Award and Option Plan as

amended restated and effective as of January 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to The Dow Chemical Company Current

Report on Form 8K filed on February 18 2010

lOaaa The Stock Appreciation Rights Agreemeit Relating to Stock Option Cranied Under The Dow Chemical Company 1988 Award and

Option Plan as amended restated and effective as of January 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to The Dow Chemical

Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on Fehruary 18 2010

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

14 Code of Ethics for
Principal Executive Officer Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 14 to The Dow Chemical Company Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2003

21 Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemtcal Company

23a Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

23b Analysis Research Planning Corporations Consent
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23c Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounttng Firm

31a Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

31b Certtftcatton Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

32a Certification Purauant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

32h Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

99.1 Replacement Capital Covenant dated April 2009 relating to the Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.2 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Porm 8K filed on April 2009

99.2 Replacement Capital Covenant dated April 2009 relating to the Cumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock Series

incorporated by reference to Exhibtt 99.3 to The Dow Chemical Company Current Report on Porm 8K filed on April 2009

99.3 Cuarantee relating to the 5.60% Notes of Rohm and Haas Company incorporated by reference to Exhtbit 99.4 to The Dow Chemical

Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on April 2009

99.4 Cuarantee
relating

to the 6.00% Notes of Rohm and Haas Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to The Dow Chemical

Company Current Report on Form 8K filed on April 2009

99.5 Cuarantee relating to the 9.80% Debentures of Rohm and Haas Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.6 to The Dow
Chemical Company Current Report on Porm filed on April 2009

lOl.INS XBRL Instance Document

lOl.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEP XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

lOl.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbaae Document

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation ST this interactive data file is deemed not filed or part
of

registration
statement or prospectus for purposes

of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

otherwise is not subject to liability
under these sections
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries

Trademark Listing

The following trademarks or service marks of The Dow Chemical Company and certain affiliated companies of Dow appear in this report ACRYSOL
ACUDYNE ACULYN ACUMER ACuPLANE ACUSOL ADCDTE ADVASTAB AERIFY AFFINITY AIRSTONE AMBERCHROM
AMBERJET AMBERLITE AMBERLYST AMBITROL AMPLIFY ANGUS AQUA-LAM AQUASET AQUCAR AR ASC METATIN ASPUN
ATTANE AUROLECTROLESS AUTOMATE AVANSE BETAPOAM BETAMATE BETASEAL BIOBAN CARBITOL CARBOWAX
CARBOWAX SENTRY CELLOSIZE CELLOSOLVE CLEARSTABLE CONTINUUM COFFER GLEAM CYCLOTENE D.E.H DEN D.E.R

DOW DOWANOL DOWEX DOWFAX DOWFROST DOWLEX DOWTHERM DUOLITE DURAGREEN DURAMAX DURAPLUS
DURAPOSIT ECHELON ECOSMOOTH ECOSOPT ECOSURF ELASTENE ELITE ENDURANCE ENFORCER ENGAGE ENHANCER
ENLIGHT EPIC ETHOCEL FILMTEC FORTEGRA FROTH-FAK GLUTEX GREAT STUFF HYPERKOTE HYPOL IMPAXX INFUSE

INSPIRE INSTA-STIK INTEGRAL INTERVIA ISONATE KATHON KLARIX LITHOJET METEOR METHOCEL MONOTHANE
MOR FREE NEOLONE NORDEL NORKOOL NYLOPAK OPTICITE OPTIDOSE OPTOGRADE OPULYN OROTAN PAPI PARALOID

POLYOX POWERHOUSE PRIMACOR PRIMAL PRIMENE PROCITE FROGLYDE REDI LINK RENUVA RHOFLEX ROBOND ROMAX
ROPAQUE SARAN SARANEX SATISFIT SERFENE SHAC SI LINK SILVADUR SMARTFRESH SOLTERRA SOFTCAT SOLTEX

SPECFIL SPECFLEX SPECTRIM STYROFOAM SUNSPHERES SYNALOX TAMOL TERGITOL THERMAX TILE BOND TRAFFIDECK

TRENCHCOAT TRITON TRYCITE TUFLIN TYBRITE TYMOR TYRIN UCAR UCARE UCARHIDE UCON UNIGARD UNIPOL UNIVAL

VENPURE VERDISEAL VERSENE VERSIFY VINYZENE VISIONPAD VORACOR VORACTIV VORALAST VORAMER VORANATE
VORANOL VORASTAR WALOCEL WALSRODER WEATHERMATE XITRACK

The following trademarks or service marks of Dow AgroSciences LLC and certain affiliated companies of Dow AgroSciences LLC appear in this report

BRODBECK CLINCHER DAIRYLAND DELEGATE DITHANE FORTRESS GARLON GLYFHOMAX GRANITE HERCULEX KEYSTONE
LAREDO LONTREL LORSBAN MILESTONE MUSTANG MYCOGEN NEXERA PHYTOGEN PROFUME Refuge Advanced RENZE
SENTRICON SIMPLICITY STARANE TELONE TORDON TRACER NATURALYTE TRIUMPH VIKANE WIDESTRIKE

The following trademark of Agromen Semenies Agricolas Ltda appears in this report AGROMEN

The following registered
service mark of American Chemistry Council appears in this report Responsible Care

The following trademark of Antaria Limited appears in this report ZinClear

The following trademark of the Financial Accounting Standards Board appears in this report FASB Accounting Standards Codification

The following trademark of Lubrizol Advanced Materials Inc appears in this report PELLETHANE

The following trademark of Monsanto Technology LLC appears in this reporl SmariStax SmariStax multievent technology developed by Dow

AgroSciences and Monsanto

The following trademarks of Styron LLC appear in this report STYRON STYRON ATECH STYRON CTECH
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and

Board of Directors of

Dow Corning Corporation

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income cash flows and equity present fairly in all

material respects the financial position of Dow Corning Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America These financial statements are the
responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audits We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United Stales Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

February 2011
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DOW CORNING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

in millions of U.S dollars except for per shsre amounts

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Net Sales $59973 $5092.5 $5450.0

Operating Costs and Expenses

Cust of sales 3862.7 3332.1 3496.7

Marketing and administrative expenses 699.7 580.3 542.5

Restructuring expenses net 4.7 101.6

Total operating costs and expenses 4557.7 4014.0 4039.2

Operating Income 1439.6 1078.5 1410.8

Interest income 12.7 17.4 74.2

Other nonoperating expenses net 35.6 10.8 66.4

Income before Income Taxes 1416.7 1085.1 1418.6

Income tax provision 338.9 331.1 495.9

Net Income 1077.8 754.0 922.7

Less Noncontrolling interests share in net income 211.8 155.9 184.0

Net Income Attributable to Dow Corning Corporation 866.0 598.1 738.7

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding

basic and diluted 2.5 2.5 2.5

Net Income per Share basic and diluted 346.40 239.24 295.48

Dividends Declared per Common Share $177.60 $177.60 $164.80

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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DOW CORNING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in millinns nf ITS dnltsrs

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash snd cssh equivalents 2360.0 1716.1

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful sccounts of $8.5 in 2010 snd

$9.8 in 2009 784.5 679.8

Notes and other receivables 282.5 204.4

Inventories 923.0 706.3

Deferred income taxes 166.7 205.2

Other current assets 107.9 67.4

Total current assets 4624.6 3579.2

Properry Plant and Equipment 10447.0 9180.5

Less Accumulated Depreciation 4326.3 4130.7

Net property plant
and equipment 6120.7 5049.8

Other Assets

Marketable securities 544.0 1072.9

Deferred income taxes 642.7 724.5

Intangtble assets net of accumolated amortizatton of $52.4 in 2010 and $37.9 in

2009 98.8 72.2

Goodwill 70.0 75.0

Other noncurrent assets 547.6 249.7

Total other assets 1903.1 2194.3

Total Assets 12648.4 l0S23.3

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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DOW CORNING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in millions of U.S dollars

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EOUITY
Current Liabilittes

Shortterm borrowings and current maturities of longterm debt 842.1 682.8

Trade accounts payable 668.4 527.1

Accrued payrolls and employee benetits 209.0 184.2

Accrued taxes 91.2 85.5

Accrued interest 82.5 78.1

Current deferred revenue 266.0 209.1

Other current liabilities 128.6 159.2

Total curreni liabilities 2287.8 1926.0

Other Liabilities

Long term debt 866.8 742.0

Implant reserve 1566.8 1580.3

Employee benefits 1129.2 1084.3

Deferred revenue 3130.7 2324.3

Other noncurrent liabilities 169.3 119.9

Total other liabilities 6862.8 5850.8

Equity

Slockholders equity

Common stock $5.00 par value 2500000 shares authorized issued and

oulslanding 12.5 12.5

Retained earnings 3336.4 2914.4

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Cumulative translation adjuslment 217.4 204.8

Pension and other poslretirement benefit adjustments 659.9 617.6

Other equity adjustments 33.5 25.4

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss 476.0 438.2

Dow Corning Corporations stockholders equity 2872.9 2488.7

Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 624.9 557.8

Total equity 3497.8 3046.5

Total Liabililies and Equity 12648.4 10823.3

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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DOW CORNING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in millions of IS dnllars

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income $1077.8 754.0 922.7

Depreciation and amortization 301.3 198.9 223.5

Changes tn deferred revenue net 863.3 876.7 763.0

Taxrelated bond deposits 145.0

Changes in deferred taxes net 151.9 82.7 90.8

Changes in restructuring accrual 20.9 20.9

Other net 38.6 46.1 59.0

Changes in operating assets and ltabtlittes

Changes tn accounts and notes receivable 170.1 73.5 25.2

Changes in accounts payable 85.8 61.7 83.2

Changes in inventory 214 232.8 214.1

Changes in other operattng assets and liabtlittes 5.7 1.5 102.3

Cash flows related to reorganization net 7.9 5.5 8.4

Cash provided by operating acttvittes 1877.8 2101.1 1676.2

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Capital expenditures 1340.3 1465.1 1370.2

Acquisition of business interests 40.3 158.6

Proceeds from sales maturities and redemptions of securtties 498.5 135.4 1226.7

Purchases of securities 0.5 1.6 938.1

Other net 0.6 51.8 45.3

Cash used in investing acttvtttes 883.2 1541.7 1036.3

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Increase in longterm debt 194.6 681.4 20.8

Payments of longterm debt 3.1 26.7 1.7

Change in shortterm borrowings 58.3 213.2 869.8

Distributions to shareholders of noncontrolling interests 156.8 177.1 91.5

Cash recetved from noncontrolling shareholders 46.5 41.0

Dividends paid to stockholders 444.0 444.0 412.0

Cash used tn/provtded by financing activities 351.0 133.1 426.4

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 0.3 8.1 10.0

Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net tncrease in cash and cash equivalents 643.9 434.4 1056.3

Cash and cash equivalents at begtnning of period 1716.1 1281.7 225.4

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2360.0 $1716.1 $1281.7

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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DOW CORNING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

in millions of U.s dollars

Dow Corning Corporation Stockholders Eoeitv

Comprehensive Reteined Common Noocootrolling

....IolsL.. Income/ILotol Famines AOCI1 Stock Interest

Balance at December 31 2007 $2743.5 2433.3 85.6 12.5 383.3

Adoption of Uncertain Tax Positions Guldasce 0.3 0.3 0.3

Net Income 922.7 922.7 738.7
184.0

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Foreign currency
translation

adjustments
32.2 32.2 14.1 18.1

Unrealized net lbsn on available far sale secorities 115.8 115.8 88.0 27.8

Net loss on cash flow hedges 17.7 17.7 17.7

Pension and other postretirement benefit adjustments 363.3 363.3 365.1 1.8

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax 464.6 464.6

Comprehensive income 458.4 458.4

Cash received from nsncontrolling shareholders 41.0
41.0

Dividends declared on common stock 503.5 412.0 91.5

Balance at December 31 2008 2739.4 2760.3 542.3 12.5 508.9

Net Income 754.0 754.0 598.1 155.9

Other comprehensive income loss net of sex

Foreign currency translation adjustments a.1 9.1 9.6 0.5

Unrealized net gain on available for aale securities 96.0 96.0 71.5
24.5

Net gain on cash flow hedges 11.0 11.0 11.0

Pension and other posiretirement benefit adjustments 11.6 11.6 12.0 0.4

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax 127.7 127.7

Comprehensive income 881.7 881.7

Cash received from noncontrolling shareholders 46.5
46.5

Dividends declared on comnson stock 621.1 444.0 177.1

Balance at December 31 2009 3046.5 2914.4 438.2 12.5 557.8

Net Income 1077.8 1077.8 866.0 211.8

Otlser
comprehensive

income loss net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments 28.5 28.5 128 15.9

Unrealized net loss on available for sale securities 16.7 16.7 12.3 4.4

Net gain on cash flow hedges 4.2 4.2 4.2

Pension and other postretirement benefit adjustments 41.7 41.7 42.3 0.6

Other comprehensive
income loss net of tnx 25.7 25.7

Comprehensive income 1052.1 1052.1

Dividends declared on common stock 600.8 444.0 156.8

Balance at December 31 2010 $3497.8 3336.4 476.0 12.5 624.9

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Slatements

Accomulatod Other Comprehensive Income/Loss AOCI
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DOW CORNING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in millions of U.S dollars except where noted

NOTE 1- BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Dow Corning Corporation Dow Corntng was incorporated in 1943 by Corning Glass Works now Corning Incorporated Corning and The

Dow Chemical Company Dow Chemical for the purpose of developing and producing polymers and other materials based on silicon chemistry Dow

Corning operates in various countries around the world through numerous wholly owned or majority owned subsidiary corporations hereinafter the

consolidated operations ot Dow Corning and its subsidiaries may be referred to as the Company

Dow Corning built its business based on silicon chemistry Silicon is one of the most abundant elements in the world Most of Dow Cornings

products are based on polymers known as silicones which have siliconoxygensilicon backbone Through various chemical processes Dow Corning

manufactures silicones thai have an extremely wide variety of characteristics in forms ranging from fluids gels greases and elastomeric materials to resins

and other rigid materials Silicones combine the temperature and chemical resistance of glass with the versatility of plasltcs Regardless of form or

application silicones generally possess such qualities as electrical resistance resistance to extreme temperatures resistance to deterioration from aging

water repellency lubricating characteristics relative chemical and physiological inertness and resistance to ultraviolet radiation

The Company engages primarily in the discovery development manufacturing marketing and distribution of siliconbased materials and offers

related services Since its inception Dow Corning has been engaged in continuous program of basic and applied research on siliconbased materials to

develop new products and processes to improve and refine
exisling products and processes and to develop new applicalions for existing products The

Company manufactures over 7000 products and serves approximalely 25000 customers worldwide with no single customer accounting for more than five

percent of the Companys sales in any of the
past

three years Principal United Slates manufacturing plants
are located in Kentucky and Michigan Principal

foreign manufacturing plants are located in Belgium Brazil Chins France Germany Japan South Korea and the United Kingdom The Company operates

iesearch and develupment facilities and/ur technical service cenlers in the Uniled Slates Belgium Brazil China Geimany Japan South Korea Taiwan and

the United Kingdom

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ihe Company snd its subsidiaries Management has evaluated subsequent events

through February 2011 the date the financial statements were available to be issued Certain prior period items have been reclassified to conform to the

current presentation

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Dow Corning and all of its wholly owned and majority owned domestic and foreign

subsidiaries The Companys interests in 20% to 50% owned subsidiaries are carried on the equity basis and are included in Other noncurrent assets in the

consolidated balance sheets Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation The Companys policy is to include the

accounts of entities in which the Company holds controlling interest based on exposure to economic risks and
potential

rewards variable interests and

for which it is the primary beneficiary in the Companys consolidated financial statements

10
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates requires management to

make estimates and assumptions that affect the
repui

ted amounts uf assets and liabilities the
repoi

ted amuants uf revenues and expenses during the

reporting period and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements Actual results could differ from those estimates

Fair Value Measurements

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified in their
entirety

based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value

measurement Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants Level inputs are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets Level inputs are quoted prices not included in

Level that are either directly or indirectly observable including quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted prices

for

identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets Level
inputs are unobservable inputs and include the Companys assumptions that may be used by market

participants

Cash and Cash Eouivalents

Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of ninety days or less The carrying amounts for cash equivalents

approximate their fair values Cash equivalents are measured at fair value using Level inputs

Accounts Receivable

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts that reduces receivables to amounts that are expected to be collected In estimating the

allowance management considers factors such as current overall geographic and industryspecific economic conditions statutory requirements historical

and anticipated customer performance historical experience with writeoffs and the level of pastdue amounts Changes in these conditions may result in

additional allowances After all attempts to collect receivable have failed and local legal requirements are met the receivable is written off against the

allowance

Inventories

The value of inventories is determined using lower of cost or market as the basis Produced goods are valued using firstin firstout cost flow

methodology while purchased materials and supplies are valued using an average cost flow methodology

Pruneztv and Deorecialiun

Property plant and equipment are carried at cost less any impairment and are depreciated over estimated useful lives using the straightline method

The Company periodically monitors actual experience to determine whether events and circumstances have occurred that may warrant revision of the

estimated useful lives of property plant
and equipment Engineering and other costs directly related to the construction of property plant and equipment are

capitalized as construction in progress until construction is complete and such property plant and equipment is ready and available to perform its

specifically assigned function Upon retirement or other disposal the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the

net amount less any proceeds is charged or credited to income If an asset is determined to be impaired the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its

fair value and the difference is charged to income in the period incurred

The Company capitalizes the costs of internaluse software as intangibles Amounts
capitalized during the years ended December31 2010 and 2009

were $12.1 and $11.0 respectively As of December 31 2010 and 2009 unamortized sofiware costs were $11.8 and $10.7 respectively Amortization

expense of $10.9 $10.5 and $10.5 were recognized during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively related to such
capitalized

software costs

11



Table of Contents

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged against income as incurred Expenditures that significantly
increase asset value extend useful

asset lives or adapt property to new or different use are capitalized

The Company capitalizes interest as component of the cost of capital assets constructed for its own use The Company includes interest expense

incurred on all liabilities including interest related to commercial creditor obligations in the amount of interest expense subject to capitalization See Note

16 for additional details on interest payable to the Companys commercial creditors

The Company accounts for asset retirement obligations by recording an asset and related liability for the costs associated with the retirement of

long lived tangible assets when
legal liability to retire the assets exists These obligations may result from acquisition construction or the normal

operation of longlived asset The Company records asset retirement obligations at fair value in the period in which they are incurred

In addition the Company has identified conditional asset retirement obligations such as for the removal of asbestos and records such obligations

when there are plans in place to undertake major renovations or plans to exit facility Due to the nature of the Companys operations the Company

believes that there is an indeterminate settlement date for the
existing

conditional asset retirement obligations as the range of time over which the Company

may settle the obligation is unknown or cannot be estimated Therefore the Company cannot reasonably estimate the fair value of the
liability

Marketable Securities

The Company accounts for investments in debt and equity securities at fair value for
trading or available for sale securities The amortized cost

method is used to account for investments in debt securities that the Company has the
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity Investments in debt and

equity securities are included in Marketable securities and Other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets All such investments are considered

to be available for sale Because the Company does not intend to sell nor is it likely
to be forced to sell its availableforsale securities declines in fair

value are considered temporary tn addition the Company regularly evaluates available evidence to determine if it will be able to recover the cost of these

securities If the Company is unable to recover the cost of the securities an other thantemporary impairment has occurred and credit losses are charged to

income in the period incurred Temporary declines in the fair value of investments are included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss For the

purpose of computing realized gain or loss on the disposition of investments the
specific

identification method is used The Company policy is to

purchase investment grade securities

Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash investments derivative

financial instruments and trade receivables The Companys policies limit the amount of credit exposure to any single counterparty for cash and

investments The Company uses major financial institutioiis with high credit
ratings

to engage in transactions involving investments and derivative

instruments The Company minimizes credit risk in its receivables from customers through its sale of products to wide variety
of customers and markets in

locations throughout the world The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require
collateral The Company

maintains reserves for potential credit losses and historically such losses have been within expectations

Intaneibles

Intangible assets of the Company include goodwill patents and licenses and other assets acquired by the Compeny thai are separable and measurable

apart
from goodwill Goodwill representing the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired is tested at least annually for

impairment The Company completed its tests for impairment of goodwill during the three month period ended September 30 2010 Other intangible
assets

with finite lives are amortized on
straight

line basis over their estimated useful lives
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Revenue

The Company recognizea revenue only when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services have been rendered the

price
to the customer is fixed or determinable and collectabilitv is reasonably assured Revenue is recognized when title and risk of loss transfer to the

customer for products and as work is performed for professional services Amounts billed to customer in sale transaction related to shipping costs are

classified as revenue The Company reduces revenue for product returns allowances and price discounts at the time the sale is recognized Amounts billed

to customers in excess of amounts recognized as revenue are reported as deferred revenue in the consolidated balance sheets

Shiooinu Costs

Shipping costs are primarily comprised of payments to third party shippers The Company records shipping costs incurred as component of Cost of

sales in the consolidated statements of income Shipping costs were $168.9 $138.3 and $151.0 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

Research and Develnoment Costs

Research and development costs are charged to operations when incurred and are included in Cost of sales in the consolidated statements of

income These costs are comprised of primarily labor costs outside services and depreciation Research and development costs were $251.8 $216.6 and

$227.6 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Income Taxes

The Company records deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future lax consequences of events that have been recognized in the

Companys financial statements or lax returns Under this method deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the

financial statement carrying amounts and lax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences are expected

to reverse The Company records valuation allowance on deferred tax assets when it is more likely
than not the expected future tax benefits will not be

realized In determining the appropriate valuation allowance certain judgments are made
relating

to recoverability of deferred lax assets use of tax loss

carryforwards level of expected future taxable income and available tax planning strategies These judgments are routinely reviewed by management

Further the Company recognizes tax liabilities stemming from uncertain tax positions As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company had net deferred

lax asset balances of $808.2 and $928.6 respectively after valuation allowances of $55.7 and $85.9 respectively

Currency Translation

The value of the U.S dollar fluctuates against foreign currencies Because the Company conducts business in many countries these fluctuations affect

the Cumpanys cunsulidaled financial
pusitiun

and results uf uperatiuns

Subsidiaries in Europe Japan and China translate their assets and liabilities slated in their functional currency into U.S dollars at exchange rates in

effect at the end of the current period The
resulting gains or losses are reflected in Cumulative translation adjustment in the stockholders equity section

of the consolidated balance sheets Changes in the functional currency value of monetary assels and liabilities denominaied in foreign currencies are

recognized in Other nonoperating income/expenses in Ihe consolidated slatemenis of income The revenues and expenses of these nonU.S subsidiariee

are translated into U.S dollars at the average exchange rates that prevailed during the period Therefore the reported U.S dollar results included in the

consolidated statements of income fluctuate from period to period depending on the value of the U.S dollar against foreign currencies
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For nonU.S subsidiaries outside of Europe Japan and China where the U.S dollar is the functional currency inventories property plant and

equipment and other nonmonetary assets together with their related elements of expense are translated at historical rates of exchange All other assets snd

liabilities are translated at current exchange rates All other revenues snd expenses are translated at average exchange rates Translation gains and losses for

these subsidiaries are recogoized in Other nonoperating income/expenses in the consolidated statements of income

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company measures derivative financial instruments at fair value and classifies them as Other current assets Other noncurrent assets Other

current liabilities or Other noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets On the date the derivative instrument is entered into if the Company
is designating the instrument as hedge the Company designates the derivative as either hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of

recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment fair value hedge hedge of the exposure to variability
in cash flows of forecasted

transaction cash flow hedge or hedge of the foreign currency exposure of net investment in foreign operation Changes in the fair value of

derivative that is designated as and meets all the required criteria for fair value hedge along with the gain or loss on the hedged asset or liability that is

attributable to the hedged risk are recorded in current period earnings Changes in the fair value of derivative that is designated as and meets all the

required criteria for cash flow hedge are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss and reclassified into earnings as the underlying hedged item

affects earnings Changes in the fair value of derivative or nonderivative that is designated as and meets all the required criteria for hedge of net

investment are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss Changes in the fair value of derivative that is not designated as hedge are recorded

immediately in earnings Cash flows from derivatives designated as hedges are classified in the same category of the consolidated statements of cash flows

as the items being hedged Cash flows from derivatives not designated as hedging instruments are classified in the investing activities section of the

consolidated statements of cash flows

Where an instrument is designated as hedge the Company formally documents all relationships
between the hedging instruments and hedged items

as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions This process includes relating all derivatives that are

designated as fair value or cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions

The Company also formally assesses both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis whether each derivative is highly effective in offsetting

changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item If it is determined that derivative is not highly effective as hedge or if derivative ceases to be

highly effective hedge the Company will discontinue hedge accounting with respect to that derivative prospectively

Litteation

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims
arising

out of the normal course of business The Company routinely assesses the likelihood

of any adverse judgments or outcomes to these matters as well as ranges of probable losses determination of the amount of the reserves required if any
for these contingencies is made afier analysis of each known issue and an analysis of historical claims experience for incurred but not reported matters The

Company expenses legal costs including those expected to be incurred in connection with loss contingency as incurred The Company has an active risk

management program consisting of numerous insurance policies secured from many carriers These policies provide coverage that is utilized to mitigate the

impact if any of certain of the legal proceedings The required reserves may change in the future due to new developments in each matter

Environmental Matters

The Crimpany determines the costs of environmental remediation for its faciltties facilities formerly owned by the Company and third party waste

disposal facilities based on evaluations of current law and existing technologies Inherent uncertainties exist in these evaluations primarily due to unknown

conditions changing governmental regulations and legal standards regarding liability and evolving technologies The Company records charge to earnings

for environmental matters when it is probable that
liability

has been incurred and the Companys costs can be reasonably estimated The recorded

liabilities are adjusted periodically as remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal
information becomes available
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New Accounting Standards

In January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued guidance requiiing disclosures about fair value measurements included

ins companys financial statements The Company adopted the guidance effective January 2010 The adoption did not impact the Company financial

position and results of operations

In December 2009 the FASB issued guidance related to the accounting and disclosure requirements for transfers of financial assets This guidance

requires greater transparency and additional disclosures for transfers of financial assets and the entitys continuing involvement with them The guidance

also changed the requirements for derecognizing the transferred assets and eliminates the concept of qualifying special purpose entity The Company

adopted the new guidance effective January 2010 The adoption did not impact the Companys financial position
and results of operations

In December 2009 the FASB issued guidance related to the accounting and disclosure requirements for the consolidation of variable interest entities

VIEs This guidance requires an enterprise to perform qualitative analysis on continual basis to determine whether or not it must consolidate VIE

Additionally the guidance requires enhanced disclosures about an enterprises involvement with VIEs as well as disclosure of any significant assumptions

and Judgments used to determine whether or not to consolidate VIE The Company adopted the new guidance effective January 2010 The adoption did

not impact the Companys financial position and results of operations

In October 2009 the FASB issued new guidance related to revenue recognition for multipledeliverable revenue arrangements expanding the

disclosure requirements related to such arrangements The guidance is effective for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years

beginning on or after June 15 2010 The adoption is not expected to impact the Companys financial
position

and results of operations

NOTE ADVANCED ENERGY MANUFACTURING TAX CREDITS

On January 2010 the Company was approved to receive Advanced Energy Manufacturing Tax Credits of $169.0 The tax credits were granted as

part of the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 2009 and are focused on job creation from increased domestic manufacturing capacity supplying

clean and renewable energy projects The credits granted to the Company are related to the Companys manufacturing expansion projects supporting the

solar industry The Company accounts for investment tax credits under the flowthrough method which results in the recognition of the credit as

reduction of federal income taxes in the year in which the credit arises During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company recognized $141.9 of the

credits resulting in reduction of the tax liability reduction in the income lax provision of $92.2 and an increase in deferred lax liabilities of $49.7 The

income tax benefit of $92.2 included $69.9 as discrete benefit as it related to qualifying expenditures through December 31 2009 The impact of these tax

credits on net income for the year ended December 31 2010 was $58.3 net of the noncontrolling interests share
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NOTE 4- RESTRUCTURINGI

In February 2009 in response to economic challenges Dow Corning snnounced it would reduce its workforce through reductioninforce programs

and site closures globally These actions were part
of broader costsaving measures taken by the Company including efforts to maximize operational

efficiency and
tightly control expenses The Company recorded restructuring expenses of $101.6 during the year ended December 31 2009 This amount

was comprised of approximately $95.6 for employeerelated costs associated with ongoing benefit arrangements and onelime termination benefits and

$6.0 for lease terminations asset disposals and demolttions As of December 31 2010 the program was complete

The following tables summarize activities related to restructuring

Year Ended December 31 2010

Severance

Costs

Accrued
liability at January 12010

Adjustment to liability

Cash payments

Foreign currency impact

20.9

6.7

14.1

0.1

Accrued
liability

at December 31 2010

Year Ended December 31 2009

Severance

Coats

Accrued
liability

at January 2009

Accrual of
restructuring expenses 96.6

Adjustment to liability 4.2
Cash payments 74.1

Foreign currency impact 2.6

Accrued
liability at December 31 2009 20.9

NOTE 5- ACOUISITIONS OF BUSINESS INTERESTS

Globe Metais Industrta Comercio S.A and West Viratnia Alloy

On November 2009 the Company paid $174.9 and acquired 100% of the equity of Globe Metais Indusiria Comercio S.A Metais silicon

metal producer with manufacturing operations tn Brazil and 49% equity interest of Globe Metallurgical Inc.s silicon manufacturing operation WVA
Manufacturing LLC WVA silicon metal producer with manufacturing operations in West Virginia collectivety the Transaction Direct coats

related to the Transaction were approximately $3.6 primarily for legal and advisory services The Company believes that the Transaction enhances both the

security
of supply and cost effectiveness of key raw material

The acquisition of the controlling interest of Metais was accounted for as business combination The results of operations of Metais were included in

the Companys consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition The investment in WVA was accounted for by the equity method of

accounting for investments and was included in Other noncurrent assets in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2010 and 2009

The results of operations of Metais and the equity results of WVA were not material to the consolidated statement of income

The Companys initial estimates for the Transaction resulted in fair value of assets and liabilities which exceeded the purchase price by $14.8 This

amount was recorded as bargain purchase gain in Other nonoperattng income/expenses of the consolidated statement of income for the year ended

December 31 2009 The gain was primarily related to access to stable and favorably priced supply of electricity under alongterm contract the relative

condition of property plant and equipment in relation to replacement cost and the benefit of net operating loss carryforward that the Company expects to

be able to utilize based on its strategic plans for this business

The fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on Nuveiuber 2009 related tu the Transaction were as shown in the table below Since the

acquisition net adjusiments of $18.5 were made to the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed with corresponding adjustment to the

bargain purchase gain as summarized in the table below The adjustments were primarily due to the completed valuation of forestry assets the final

evaluation of contingent liabilities and the related deferred lax impacts The December 31 2009 financial statement balances and disclosures impacted by

these adjustments have been retrospectively adjusted
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Initial Valuations Adjustment Adjusted Values

Cash and marketable securities 16.7 16.7

Other current assets 15.3 9.5 24.8

Property plant and equipment 30.4 31.3 61.7

Other intangible assets 35.3 353

Other assets 155.3 57.2 98.1

Current and noncurrent liabilities 47.2 34.9 12.3

Debt 16.1 16.1

Total fair value of net assets acquired 189.7 18.5 208.2

Purchase
price including cash received 174.9 174.9

Gain on bargain purchase 14.8 18.5 33.3

Ouebec Silicon Limited Partnershio

On October 2010 the Company acquired 49% of the equity of Quebec Silicon Limited Partnership Quebec Silicon LP silicon metal manufacturing

company with operations in Canada The Company paid $40.3 in exchange for the equity interests in Quebec Silicon LP The Company believes that this

transaction enhances both the
security

of supply and cost effectiveness of key raw material The investment in Quebec Silicon LP was accounted for by

the equity method of accounting for investments and included in Other noncurrent assets in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31

2010 The results of operations from Quebec Silicon LP were not material to the consolidated statement of income

NOTE 6-INVESTMENTS

Investments reflected in Other current assets and Marketable securities in the consolidated balance sheets at December31 2010 and 2009 were

$544.3 and $1075.5 respectively These investments have been classified as available for sale

The cost gross unrealized gains gross unrealized losses and fair value of the investments were as follows

December 31 2010

Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Debt Securities

Auction rate securities backed by student loans $493.8 28.2 $465.6

Auction rate preferred securities 76.9 8.0 68.9

Total Debt Securities $570.7 36.2 $534.5

Foreign Equity Securities 2.3 1.7 4.0

Other 5.8 5.8

Total Marketable Securities $578.8 1.7 36.2 $544.3

As of DeLember 31 2010 secutities iii an uiiiealited loss position for 12 months Or more weie valued at $172.0 net of unrealized losses of $22.0
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The cost gross unrealized gains gross unrealized losses and fair value of the investments were as follows

December 31 2009

Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cosi Gains Losses Value

Debt Securities

Auction rate securities hacked by student loans $1006.2 11.4 994.8

Auction rate preferred secutities and other 79.2 0.8 8.8 71.2

Total Debt Securities $1085.4 0.8 20.2 $1066.0

Foreign Equity Securities 2.0 1.3 3.3

Other 6.2 6.2

Total Marketable Securities $1093.6 2.1 20.2 $1075.5

As of December 31 2009 all debt securities with fair value less than cost were in an unrealized loss
position

for 12 months or more

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified in their
entirety

based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to the fair value

measurement The classifications as of the balance sheet dates were as follows

December 31 December 31

Fair Value

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Levell 9.8 11.8

Level 534.5 1063.7

Total 544.3 1075.5

The changes in fair value of Level assets were as follows

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

Beginning balance January 1063.7 1100.6

Change in unrealized losses in other comprehensive loss 16.9 94.3

Realized losses tncluded in earnings 16.1

Sales/redemptions of assets classtfied as Level 496.2 131.2

Ending balance at December31 534.5 1063.7

Level available for sale securities with par value of $512.4 were redeemed or sold during the year ended December 31 2010 These redempttons

were related to securities backed by student loans and were redeemed or sold at weighted average price of 96.8% of par

Subsequent to December 31 2010 the Company received an unsolicited offer to purchase certain of its auction rate securities backed by student loans

that had par value of $134.7 The sale will result in an immaterial loss that will be included in the income statement for the three months ended March 31

2011

As uf December 31 2010 the debt securities with fair value of $465.6 excluding aucttun rate pieferred securittes have maturities greater than five

years
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Level Assets

Auction Rate Securities

As of December 31 2010 the Compeny held auction rate securhies of $534.5 included in the consolidated balance sheet These securities consisted

principally of revenue bonds backed by student loans that are guaranteed by the U.S Covernmeni revenue bonds backed by insured student loans and

bundled preferred equity securities

Historically the cost of the auction rate securities approximated fair value The Company had experienced long history
of successful auctions

However in mid February 2008 auctions began to fail and continued to fail for virtually all of these securities because there were an insufficient number of

buy bids Upon failure of an auction the Company is required to hold the security until the next auction date at contractually predetermined interest rate

generally higher than the rtskfree
treasury

rate failed auction reduces the immediate liquidity available to the Company since there are currently no

secondary markets for the auction rate securities held by the Company Securities valued at $534.5 were classified as noncurrent assets as of December 31

2010 Management believes the Company has suffictent sources of
liquidity

to fund its operations capital expenditure plan breast implant settlement

liabilities and shareholder dividends through cash on hand cash generated by operations or access to credit markets

Due to the absence of observable prices in an active market for the same or similar securittes the fair value of $534.5 of the securities was based on

discounted cash flow analysis using forecasts of future cash flows and interest rates The data used for the forecasts included benchmark interest rates such

as LIBOR and U.S Treasury rates commercial paper rates and other interest rate indices reflecting market required rates of return The valuation

considered variable coupon payments the restriction in liquidity due to failed auctions the credit risk related to each group of securities and the probability

of recovery or replacement of the auction rate securities market Dther considerations also included the nature of the collateralizations guarantees

contractual structures of the securities and issuers indication of intent to redeem In accordance with fair value measurement guidance the auction rate

securities were included in Level at December 31 2010 because certain of the cash flow model inputs were not readily
observable

Auclton Rate Securities backed by Student Loans

The Company held auctton rate securides backed by student loans valued at $465.6 included in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31

2010 The securities had credit ratings sbove investment grade for 95% of the portfolio These auction rate securities were variable rate debt instruments

with underlying securities that have contractual maturities that range from 14 to 36 years and whose interest rates are reset every 28 to 35 days through an

auction process Since the auctions have failed default interest rates are applicable and each issuer has continued to pay required interest payments Because

the fair value of these securtties was lower than the cost an unrealized loss of $21.2 net of the nonconlrolling interests share of $7.0 was recorded in

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31 2010

Auction Rate Preferred Securittes

The Company held auction rate securtties backed by preferred equity securities valued at $68.9 included in the consolidated balance sheets as of

December 31 2010 The interest rates reset on these variable rate equity instruments every 45 to 90 days through an auction process Since the auctions

have failed default dividend allocation methods are in effect While 72% of the securities were rated below investment grade the issuers of the underlying

preferred equity securittes have continued to remit dividends consistent with historical practices Because the fair value of these securities was lower than

the cost an unrealized loss of $7.4 net of the noncontrolling interests share of $0.6 was recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive loss at

December 31 2010
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Classification of Unrealized Losses

As of December 31 2010 the Company was not
actively marketing had no intent to sell nor was expected to be required to sell auction rate

securities backed by student loans and auction rate preferred securities before the anticipated recovery in market value In determining that the unrealized

losses related to these securities were not other thantemporary the Company considered several other factors These factors included the financial

condition and prospects of the issuers expected continuation of interest and dividend payments the magnitude of losses compared with the cost of the

investments the length of time the investments have been in an unrealized loss position and the credit
rating

of the security Management believes the

decline in fair value is primarily related to the current interest rate environment and market inefficiencies and not to the credit deterioration of the individual

issuers Total unrealized losses of $28.6 net of $7.6 for the noncontrolling interests share related to auction rate securities were included in Accumulated

other comprehenstve loss in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31 2010 The fair value of these securities could be subject to further adjustments

tn the future if indicated by either observable prices in an acttve market or change in the results nfvaluattonc

NOTE 7-INVENTORIES

The value of inventories is determined using the lower of cost or market as the basis Produced goods were valued using firstin firstout FIFO
cost flow methodology while purchased materials and supplies were valued using an average cost flow methodology The components of inventories were

as follows

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Produced goods 727.8 547.6

Purchased materials 97.3 76.9

Matntenance and supplies 97.9 81.8

Total Inventory 923.0 706.3

Produced goods include both work in process and finished goods Due to the nature of the Companys operations it is impractical to
classify

inventory between worktnprocess and fintshed goods as such classifications can be interchangeable for certain inventoriable items Purchased materials

primarily consist of the Companys raw material inventories Maintenance and supplies included in inventory primarily represent spare component parts
that

are critical to the Companys manufacturing processes

20



Table of Contents

NOTE 8-INCOME TAXES

The components of income before tncome tsxes snd noncontrolling tnterests for the yesr ended December31 were ss follows

2010 2009 2008

Domestic $1134.8 964.3 $1219.1

Foretgn 281.9 120.8 199.5

Total $1416.7 $1085.1 $1418.6

The components of the income tax provision for the year ended December31 were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total

Domestic 85.5 203.4 $288.9 172.9 92.9 $265.8 328.8 89.3 $418.1

Foreign 107.2 57.2 50.0 75.5 10.2 65.3 76.3 1.5 77.8

Total $192.7 146.2 $338.9 248.4 82.7 $331.1 405.1 90.8 $495.9

The tax effects of the
principal temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 were as follows

2010 2009

Deferred Tax Assets

Implant costs 568.6 572.4

Fostretirement benefit obligattons 401.0 409.0

Tax loss carryforwards 176.8 159.2

Tax credit carryforwards 153.0 47.0

Accruals and other 165.3 163.0

Inventories 61.8 80.0

Longterm debt 34.2 33.8

Total deferred tax assets $1560.7 $1464.4

Deferred tax liabilities

Froperty plant and equipment 696.8 449.9

Net deferred tax asset prior to valuation allowance 863.9 $1014.5

Less Valuation allowance 55.7 85.9

Net Deferred Tax Asset 808.2 928.6

The Company believes that it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax asset will be realized The criteria that management considered in

making this determination were historical and projected operating results the ability to utilize tax planning strategies and the period of time over which the

tax benefits can be utilized

Tax ettected operating loss carryforwards as 01 December 31 2010 were $17b.8 and $159.2 as of December 31 2009 Of the tax effected operating

loss carryforwards $142.3 are subject to an indefinite carryforward period and were generated by the Companys subsidiaries in Brazil and the United

Kingdom Substantially all of the remaining operating loss carryforwards relate to the Companys subsidiaries in China The carryforward period of net

operating losses in China is five years The Company has determined that no valuation allowance is needed for the net operating losses

The valuation allowance as of December 31 2010 was $55.7 Of this amount $39.0 is attributable to realized and unrealized capital losses on

marketable securities and $14.9 from outside basis differences in the Companys joint ventures
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Tax credit carryforwards of $153.0 as of December 31 2010 are attributable to foreign tax credtls of $72.7 and general business credits of $80.3 The

foreign tax credits expire in 2019 The general business credits are related to the advanced energy manufacturing credit and expire in 2030 The Company
believes that these credits will be uttlized before the expiration period based on future foreign source income and taxable income

Cash paid during the year for income taxes net of refunds received was $191.1 in 2010 $234.4 in 2009 and $399.8 in 2008

The income tax provtsion at the effective rate may differ from the income tax provision at the United States federal statutory tax rate reconciliation

of the tax rate for the years ended December 3lis illustrated in the following table

2010 2009 2008

Income Tax Provision at Statutory Rate $495.9 $379.8 $496.5

Increase /Decrease in Income Tax Provision due to

Foreign provisions and related items 12.7 9.1 6.8

Change in foreign tax rates 4.9 0.5

China joint venture losses 9.3 28.4 15.9

China valuation allowance release 44.0
Domestic

joint venture dividends 18.9 18.0 11.0

Domestic manufacturing deduction 18.1 15.6 21.1
Advanced energy manufacturing credits 92.2
U.S lax effect of foreign earnings and dividends 30.9 68.9 1.3

State income taxes 9.1 5.9 13.1

Tax exempt interest income 1.5 3.3 19.0
Audit settlement 8.3 7.0

Valuation allowance on capital losses 5.8 0.6 19.4

Other net 2.7 4.7 7.9

Total Income Tax Provision at Effective Rate $338.9 $331.1 $495.9

Effective Rate 23.9% 30.5% 35.0%

As of December 31 2009 the Company had valuation allowance of $44.0 on the deferred tax assets of China subsidiary During 2010 the

allowance was increased by $24.4 As of December31 2010 management concluded that the weight of all available evidence both
positive

and negative

warranted the release of the valuation allowance of $68.4 when the China subsidiary achieved operational performance

Also during 2010 the Company was approved to receive Advanced Energy Manufacturing Tax Credits of approximately $169.0 that resulted in

$92.2 reduction in the income tax provision for the year ended December 31 2010

During 2009 the Companys subsidiary in the Netherlands paid dividend to the United States that resulted in reduction in the income tax provision

for Ihe year ended December 31 2009 and 2010 Substantially all of the reduction in the income tax provision from the U.S lax effect of foreign earnings

and dividends in 2009 and 2010 relates to this dividend

As of December 31 2010 income and remittance taxes have not been recorded on $413.4 of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries either

because any taxes on dividends would be offset substantially by foreign tax credits or because the Company intends to reinvest those earoings indefinitely
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The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federal
jurisdiction

and various state local and foreign jurisdictions With few exceptions the

Company is no longer subject to U.S federal slate local or nonU.S income lax examination by tax authorities for years before 2005

The following table indicates for each
significant jurisdiction the earliest tax year that remains subject to examination

XaL
United Kingdom 2009 Japan 2006

Belgium 2008 Brazil 2005

France 2007 United States 2005

Germany 2007 China 2002

Korea 2007

The Company is participating in the IRS Compliance Assurance Frocess for the 2009 and 2010 tax years In addition certain foreign jurisdictions and

certain states have commenced examinations of returns filed by the Company and some of its foreign subsidiaries Management anticipates
that none of

these audits will be closed before 2012 As of December 31 2010 no jurisdiction has proposed any significant adjustments to the Company lax returns

that management believes would be sustained and would materially affect the Companys financial position In addition the Company does not anticipate

that any material adjustments will result from settlements closing of tax examinations or expiration of applicable statutes of limitation in various

jurisdictions within the next 12 months

During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company received proposed adjustments from the IRS related to the Companys consolidated federal

income tax returns for the 2006 2007 2008 and 2009 calendar years The Company filed
protests

and appeals in response to the proposed adjustments for

the years 2006 through 2008 Management believes that the deficiencies asserted by the IRS will not be sustained and is vigorously conlesttng the IRS
claims However if the IRS prevails the

resulting tax deficiency would be approximately $206.1 Management believes that the resolution of the issues will

not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations In July 2010 the Company made voluntary protective

bond deposits of $1 45.0 to the IRS related to these lax positions for the earlier lax years Addtttonal lax payments of $61.0 were made for the 2008 through

2010 lax years to cover anticipated adjustments for these years The deposits and the additional payments were made to alleviate the potential for interest

expense and penalties as well as to generate competitive interest income on the funds

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized gross tax benefits exclusive of the federal benefit of stale items interest and

penalties as of December 31 were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Unrecognized tax benefits as of January $15.1 $16.7 $18.8

Additions based on tax
positions

related to the current year 4.7 0.4 1.6

Reductions based on tax
positions

related to the current year 0.8

Additions for tax positions of
prior years

1.4

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 2.6 1.0 1.3

Settlements 6.6 0.2 3.8

Balance as ofDecember 31 $10.6 $15.1 $16.7

As outlined above the Company had approximately $10.6 of total gross unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2010 Df this total $9.0 net of

the federal benefit on slate issues represents the amounts of the unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would affect the effective income lax rate in

any future periods

23



Table of Contents

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax beneftis and penalties
in income tax expeose During the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company recognized approximately $1.8 and $0.1 respectively of benefit from interest and penalties During the year

ended December 31 2008 the Company recognized $1.0 of expense related to interest and penalties The Company had approximately $1.7 and $3.5

accrued for the payment of interest and penalties as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respecttvely

Tax Effect of Other Comorehenstve Income

The following table details the tax expense benefit of other comprehensive income amounts recognized during the year ended December 31

2010 2009 20118

Net gain/loss on cash flow hedges 2.3 5.0 10.3

Pension and other postrettrement benefit adjustments 33.1 3.4 210.8

NOTE 9- DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS ANDJIEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on its earnings cash flows and fair

values of assets and liabilities In addition the Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce the impact of changes in natural gas and other

commodity prices on its earnings and cash flows The Company enters into dertvattve financial contracts based on analysis of specific and known economtc

exposures The Companys policy prohibits holding or issuing dertvattve financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes The types of instruments

typically
used are forward contracts but may also include option combinattons and purchased option contracts

Cash Plow Hedees

The Company uses forward contracts and options to hedge the exposure to changes in the prices
of commodities primarily natural gas Net unrealized

gatna sod tnsses on these contracts are recnrded component of Accumulated nther comprehensive loss tn the Cnmpanya consolidated balance sheets

and are reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during whtch the underlying hedged item impacts earnings Gains or losses on the derivatives

representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are recognized in current earnings As

of December 31 2010 the Company had outstanding commodity forward contracts and options to hedge forecasted purchases of 3.9 million mmbtu of

natural gas Net losses of $5.4 $3.4 after tax are expected to be reclassified from Accumulated other comprehenstve loss to the consolidated statements

of income and included as part
of Cost of sales in the next 12 months The forward contracts and options outstanding at December 31 2010 hedge

forecasted transactions expected to occur within the next 24 months

Poreign exchange options are also used to hedge specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions by locktng in exchange rates for such

anticipated cash flows Gatos and losses on these instruments are recorded as component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss in the consolidated

balance sheets until the forecasted transaction occurs As of December 31 2010 the total notional amount of the Companys foreign currency cash flow

hedges was $59.5 expressed as U.s dollars Net gains of $0.7 $0.4 after tax are expected to be reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive loss

to the consolidated statements of income and included as part
of Other nonoperating income/expenses during the next 12 months The options outstanding

as of December 31 2010 hedge forecasted transactions expected to occur within the next 17 months

Economic Hedees

Contracts used to hedge the economic exposure to foreign currency fluctuations associated with certain monetary assets and liabilities are not

designated as hedging instrumenis Changes in the fair value of these items are recorded in earnings to offset the foreign exchange gains and losses of the

monetary assets and liabilities As of December 31 2010 the total notional amount of the Companys non designated foreign currency fair value hedges

was $714.5 expressed as U.S dollars
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The location and amounts of derivative fair values in the Companys statement of financial position were as follows

December 31 2010

Derivative Assets Derivattve Liabilities

Balance Sheet Fair Fair

Location Value Balance Sheet Location Value

Designated hedging instruments

Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 1.7 Other current liabilities

Commodity contracts Other current assets Other current liabilities 5.2

Commodity contracts 12 months Other noncurrent assets Other noncurrent liabilities 0.2

Economic hedges not designated

Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 1.1 Other current liabilities 1.8

Total derivatives 2.8 7.2

Detember 31 2009

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities

Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair

Location Value Location Value

Designated hedging instruments

Commodity contracts Other current assets 0.7 Other current liabilities 9.8

Commodity contracts 12 months Other noncurrent assets Other noncurrent liabilities 0.2

Economic hedges not designated

Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 4.0 Other current liabilities

Total derivatives 47 810.0

The location and amounts of derivative gains and losses recognized in the Companys income statement were as follows

Year Ended

Location of Amount

Recognized in Income 2010 2009

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Other nonoperating

Foreign exchange contracts tncome/expenses 0.7 3.8

Commodity contracts Cost of sales 14.7 19.7

Total derivatives designated as hedges 15.4 23.5

Economic hedges not designated

Other nonopersting

Foreign exchange contracts income/expenses 0.7 34.8

Tax hedging contracts Tax provision 2.2 4.1

Total dertvatives not designated as hedges 2.9 30.7

Total derivative impact on income statement $12.5 $54.2

The tables below detail gains and losses recognized in Other comprehensive income/loss OCI and gains and losses reclassified from

Accumulated other comprehensive loss related to derivatives that were designated as cash flow hedges The amount of ineffectiveness related to existing

cash flow hedges during the periods ending December 31 2010 and 2009 was immaterial
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Foreign exchange contracta

Commodity contracts

Total

Cain/Loss
Reclasaified from

AOCI into Income

3.8

19.7

23.5

Location of Cain/Loss
Reclassified

Other nonoperating

income/expenses

Cost of sales

Locatton of Gain/Loss
Reclassified

Other nonoperating

income/expenses

Cost of sales

Derivative options held by the Company as of December 31 2010 were valued uaing observable market inputs and the BlackScholes model

Forward contracts were also valued using observable market inputs The inpuls used in valuation were considered Level because the inputs are readily

observable for the derivative asset or liability

The amounts below represent fair value classifications of derivative instruments held as of the balance sheet dates and are prior
to consideration of

counterparty netting arrangements

The net assets and liabilities were recorded in the consolidated balance sheets accordingly

December 31 2010

Assets Liabilities

2.8 7.2

December 31 2009

Assets Liabilities

4.7 10.0

NOTE 10- VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

2.8 7.2 4.7 10.0

The Company holds minority voting interests in certain
joint ventures that produce key raw material inputs for the Company These

joint
ventures

operate under supply agreements that sell inventory to the equity owners using pricing mechanisms that guarantee return therefore shielding the
joint

ventures from the right or ability to absorb expected gains or losses As result of the pricing mechanisms of these agreements these entities are determined

to be variable interest entities As the Company does not hold the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of

Ihese entities ii is not the primary beneficiary and therefore does not consolidate the results of these entities

The Company accounts for its investment in these entities under the equity method of accounting The Companys maximum exposure to loss as

result of its involvement with these variable interest entities is determined to be the carrying value of the investment in these entities plus the maximum
amount of

potential
future payments under the Companys guarantee of nonconsolidated subsidiarys debt As of December 31 2010 the maximum

exposure to loss was $211.9

Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Total

December 31 2010

Gain/Loss

Cain/Loss Reclassified from

in OCT AOCI into Income

1.7 0.7

10.5 14.7

s.8 15.4

December 31 2009

Cain/Loss
in OCT

7.5

15.0

7.5

Level

Level

Level
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NOTE 11- PROPERTY PLANT AND EOUIPMENT

The components of property plant and equtpment as of December 31 were as follows

Total property plant and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

$10447.0 9180.5

4326.3 4130.7

Net property plant and equipment 6120.7 5049.8

The Company recorded depreciation expense of $291.6 $192.7 and $218.4 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Effective October 2008 the Company changed the useful lives of certain property plant and equipment as result of the Companys historical

experience which demonstrated longer useful lives for certain classes of assets The change was accounted for as change in estimate and applied

prospectively The effect of the change to depreciation expense increased pretax income by $21.7 and increased net income by $13.7 for the year ended

December 31 2008

The amount of interest capitalized as component of the cost of capital assets constructed for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was

$71.2 $49.1 and $32.8 respectively

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company had noncurrent liabilities of $9.9 and $8.7 respectively for asset retirement obligations primarily

related to landfill closure costs recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as Other noncurrent liabilities

Total

2010

Car

Gross

rying Amount
Accumulated

Amortization Carr

Net

ying Amount

11.7

24.1

19.6

95.8

3.3

21.3
12.6

15.2

8.4

2.8

7.0

80.6

151.2 52.4 98.8

Gross

Carrying Amount

15.2

21.1

17.2

56.6

110.1

2009

Accumulated

Amortization

5.4

15.6

9.3

7.6

Net

Carrying Amount

9.8

5.5

7.9

49.0

37.9 72.2

Land

Land improvements

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Construction inprogress

Estimated Useful

Life Years

1120
18 33

25

2010

217.7

328.0

1964.9

6960.8

975.6

2009

194.7

276.7

1717.6

5414.6

1576.9

NOTE 12- GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross and net amounts of
intangible assets excluding goodwill as of December 31 were as follows

Patents and licenses

Customer/Distributor
relationships

Completed technology

Other

Total

Patents and licenses

Customer/Distributor relationships

Completed technology

Other
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The Company recorded amortization expense related to these tntangtble assets of $9.6 $6.2 and $5.1 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively The estimated aggregate amortizatton expense to be recorded in each of the next ftve years is as follows

2011 $9.3

2012 9.3

2013 8.1

2014 6.9

2015 7.2

The changea in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended Deremher 31 were aa follows

2010 2009

Beginning balance $75.0 $72.6

Translation and other 5.0 2.4

Total ending balance $70.0 $75.0

NOTE 13- NOTES PAYABLE AND CREDIT FACILITIES

Short Term Borrowioes

The Company has $500.0 revolvtog credit arraogemeot which exptres to 2011 The revolving credtt agreement allows for borrowtog to various

currenctes for general corporate purposes of the Company and its substdiartes and requires the payment of commitment fees The credit arrangement sets the

interest rate at LIBOR at the ttme of borrowing plus margio represeotiog credit apread which is reset quarterly The Company is to compliance wtth tta

debt coveoaots tocluding leverage and ioterest coverage ratios related to thia credit arrangement As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the tiompaoy had

borrowed the maximum amount allowed under this credit arrangement The Compaoy also had outstaodiog shortterm debt of $232.5 and $169.1 in Asia at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The borrowiogs in Asta consisted of $30.0 denomioated in U.S dollars with an ioterest rate of LIBOR plus 250

basis points The remaining borrowiogs in Asia are primartly denominated in Renmtobi with an ioterest rate generally set by the Peoples Bank of China at

the time of borrowing The weighted average interest rate for the outstanding shortterm borrowings was 2.1% as of December 31 2010

In additioo the Compaoy had unused sod committed credit facilities for use by foreigo subsidiaries at December 31 2010 aod 2009 with various U.S

and foreign banks
totaling $216.0 and $416.2 respectively These credit facilities require the payment of commitment fees The Company intends to renew

these facilities at their respective maturities These facilities are available to support of working capital requirements

Since the iolerest rates for the borrowings io the U.S aod Asia are reset regularly based 00 market conditions maoagemeol believes the carrytog

value of the debt approximates its fair value

28



Table of Contents

Lone Term Debt

In April 2009 majority owned subaidiary of the Company entered into an unsecured five year term loan facility with syndicate of commercial

banks in China The amount of the
facility

was 4.2 billion Renmtnbi $626.7 U.S dollars The facility permits borrowing in various currencies with

lepaymeiLt jequired tu begin two yeais after the drawduwn date The subsidiary had borrowed the ulaximum ainuuiit undcr the facility as of December 2010

and 2009 Repayment will begin in April 2011 The subsidiary is in compliance with its debt covenants including interest coverage ratio and tangible net

worth related to this credit arrangement

In October 2009 majority owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an unsecured term loan
facility

with syndtcate of commercial banks in

China that will expire in 4.5 years The amount of the
facility was 1.6 billion Renminbi $241.6 U.S dollars and permits borrowing in Renminbi only The

subsidiary had borrowed $241.6 amount and $73.2 under the facility as of December 2010 and 2009 respectively Repayment will begin in April 2011 The

subsidiary is in compliance with its debt covenants including interest coverage ratio and tangible net worth related to this credit arrangement

In August 2010 majority owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an unsecured term loan with bank in China The amount of the loan was

193.5 Renminbi $29.2 U.S dollars and permits borrowing in Renminbt only As of December 31 2010 the subsidiary had borrowed the maximum

amount under the loan Repayment will begin in December 2011 The subsidiary is in compliance with its debt covenants including interest coverage ratio

and tangible net worth related to this credit arrangement

Since the interest rates for the borrowings in the U.S and Asia are reset regularly based on market conditions management believes the carrying

value of the debt approximates its faii value

Longterm debt as of December31 consisted of the following

2010 Rates 2009 Rates

Longterm debt

Variable rate notes due 20112014 $868.3 5.2 5.4% $681.0 5.25.4%

Variable rate notes due 20112015 29.2 5.2%

Variable rate bonds due 2019 4.2 0.4% 4.2 1.0%

Other obligations and
capital

leases 59.8 3.86.4% 60.8 3.86.4%

Total longterm debt 961.5 746.0

Less payments due within one year 94.7 4.0

Total longterm debt due after one year 866.8 742.0

Annual aggregate maturities of the tongterm debt of the Company are $94.7 in 2011 $185.4 in 2012 $185.6 in 2013 $450.5 in 2014 $45.3

thereafter

Cash paid during the year for interest was $66.8 in 2010 $51.7 in 2009 and $24.1 in 2008

Sales of Accounts Receivable

Dow Corning Toray DCT maintains an accounts receivable
facility

with its primary bank The discount rate under this facility is the equivalent of

TIBOR plus 0.25% DCT sold accounts receivable in the amount of $275.5 and $201.3 to this bank in exchange for cash proceeds of $275.3 and $201.2

during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Under the facility DCT continues to collect the receivables from the customer but

retains no interest in the accounts receivable The facility agreement does not permit DCT to transfer the accounts receivable to any other institution and

DCT is not permitted to repurchase the transferred receivables The transfer of receivables provides additional liquidity to DCT The counterparty for the

accounts receivables facility is financial institution that specializes in receivables securittzation transactions and is financed through the issuance of

commercial paper
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Additionally the Company has access to short term borrowing facility securitized by accounts receivable in the U.S which expires in 2011 The

interest rate under this
facility

is based on commercial paper pool rates The
facility requires

the payment of commitment fees on the unused portion The

Company is in compliance with its debt covenants including leverage and interest coverage ratios related to this credit arrangement As of December 31

2010 and 2009 there were no outstanding amounts under this agreement

NOTE 14- DEFERRED REVENUE

The Company enters into longterm product sales agreements with certain customers Under certain agreements customers are obligated to purchase

minimum quantities of product and make specified payments The product sales agreements extend over various periods and the revenue associated with the

agreements is recognized using the average sales
price over the life of the agreements Differences between amounts invoiced to customers under the

agreements and ampunts recognized using the average price methodology are reported as deferred revenue in the consolidated balance sheets

Under certain agreements customers were required to make initial nonrefundable advanced cash payments During the years ended December 31

2010 and 2009 advanced payments of $981.8 and $946.7 respectively were received by the Company These amounts are recorded as deferred revenue

and are recognized as income ratably on per kilogram basis as products are shipped over the life of the agreements The Company expects to receive

advanced payments of $572.4 in the next twelve months and $178.7 in periods thereafter In the event that certain product delivery ttmeltnes are not met

subject to specific
conditions outlined in the agreements customers may be entitled to damages up to the amount of the advanced cash payments

Deferred revenue included in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 was $3396.7 and $2533.4 respectively The current

portion of $266.0 and $209.1 was recorded as Current deferred revenue in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively The remaining amounts were included in the consolidated balance sheets as Deferred revenue in noncurrent liabilities The advanced

payments received are reported as cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows
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NOTE 15- PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Net Pertodic Benefit Cnst

Service cost

Interest cost on projected benefit obligations

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization of net transition obligation

Amortization of net
prior

service costs

Amortizatton of net losses

Other adjustments

38.0 37.3 31.1 21.7 $19.4

86.4 81.6 76.0 32.7 30.4

67.4 77.0 83.2 33.1 27.9
0.2

2.8 3.1 4.4 0.9 0.8

37.7 30.9 13.5 7.0 2.3

12.0 0.5 4.8

Total 97.5 75.9 $53.8 29.7 30.0 34.2 $127.2 $105.9 88.0

Due to corrections of employee demographic data pension expense for the year ended December 31 2008 included an adjustment of $12.0 and the

projected benefit obligation at December 31 2008 included an adjustment of $29.0

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations that were recognized in or reclassified from other comprehensive income as of December 31 were

as follows

The Companys defined benefit employee retirement plans have measurement date of December 31 of the applicable year The prnjected benefit

obligation accumulated benefit obligation sod fair value of plan assets for defined benefit plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan

assets as of December 31 were as follows

Projected benefit obligation

Accumulated benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

U.S Plans

2010 2009

$1632.6 $1454.8

1363.0 1238.6

986.4 870.3

NonU.S Plans

2010 2009

$592.0 $576.6

537.5 523.3

417.5 367.0

Total

2010 2009

$2224.6 $2031.4

1900.5 1761.9

1403.9 1237.3

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The Company maintains defined benefit employee retirement plans covering most domestic and certain nonU.S employees The components of

pension expense for the Companys U.S and nonU.S plans were as follows

U.S Plans NonU.S Plans Total

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

$25.1 59.7 56.7 56.2

34.2 119.1 112.0 110.2

32.1
0.3

100.5 104.9
0.2

115.3
0.3

1.2 3.7 3.9 5.6

5.3 44.7 33.2 18.8

0.2 0.5 4.8 12.2

U.S Plans NonU.S Plans Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Amortization of net prior service costs

Amortization of transition obligation

Amortization of net losses or settlement recognition

Net loss gain arising during the year

2.8

37.7
119.9

3.1

30.9

56.2

0.6

7.0
25.2

0.5
0.1

6.6
54.6

3.4

44.7
94.7

3.6
0.1

37.5

1.6

Total 79.4 $90.2 $32.8 $47.6 46.6 $42.6
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The following table provides reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of the projected benefit obligation beginning and ending balances of

the fair value of plan assets and the funded status of the plans as of December 31

Projected benefit obligation end of year $1632.6 $1454.8 681.6 $666.1 $2314.2 $2120.9

Fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets

Foreign currency exchange rate changes

Employer contributions

Benefits patd and settlements

Fair value of plan assets end of year

Funded status of plans

Accumulated benefit obligation

870.3 666.3

82.5 168.9

115.3 109.8

81.7 74.7

441.0 317.9 $1311.3 984.2

51.0 66.2 133.5 235.1

16.8
40.8

23.1

32.4

57.7

33.2

16.8
156.1

104.8

32.4

167.5

107.9

986.4 870.3 492.9 441.0 $1479.3 $1311.3

646.1 584.5 $188.7 $225.1 834.8 809.6

1363.0 1238.6 596.3 583.2 1959.3 1821.8

The following table represents assets by category and fair value level of the U.S and nonU.S defined benefit employee retirement plans as of

December 31

Total

Level

1.8

93.1

26.5

86.4

8.8

832.9

25.3

Total

14.3

199.0

93.2

39.4

86.4

9.2

844.5

25.3

$224.8 $1074.8 11.7 $1311.3

U.S Plans

2010 2009

NonU.S

2010

Plans Total

2009 2010 2009

Change in benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation beginning of year
Service cost

$1454.8

38.0

$1374.9
37.3

666.1

21.7

$527.6

19.4

$2120.9

59.7

$1902.5

56.7

Interest cost 86.4 81.6 32.7 30.4 119.1 112.0

Actuarial gctiiis losses

Foreign currency exchange rate changes

Benefits paid and settlements

135.1

81.7

35.7

74.7

1.4

14.4

23.1

82.3

41.1

34.7

133.7

14.4

104.8

118.0

41.1

109.4

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

Corporate debt securities

U.S government debt securities

U.S government guaranteed mortgage backed securities

Other governmental debt securities

Investment funds

Other

Total

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

Corporate debt securities

U.S government debt securities

U.S government guaranteed mortgage backed securities

Other governmental debt securities

Investment funds

Other

2010

Level Level Level Total

10.1 10.1

203.3 3.0 206.3

0.1 217.3

137.2

4.1 0.7

217.4

137.2

4.8

0.4 33.7 34.1

25.8 823.0

13.0

7.6 856.4

13.0

239.7 $1231.3 8.3 $1479.3

2009

Level

14.3

197.2

0.1

12.9

0.3

Level

0.1

11.6
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The changes in fair value of Level assets for the year ended December 31 2010 were as follows

Beginning balance January 2010 $11.7

Actual return on assets 0.9

Purchases 0.7

Sales 5.0

Ending value December 31 2010 8.3

Level assets were valued based on quoted prices in active markets Level assets were primarily comprised of assets held in investment funds The

value of these funds was determined based on quoted prices in active markets for assets that are identical to the underlying assets held by the funds

Level assets were investments in long term property lease fund Due to the absence of observable
prices

in an active market for the same or similar

securities the fair value of the securities was based on the last available market price for the underlying assets

The following table represents amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31

U.S Plans NonU.S Plans Tntal

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Current benefit liabilities 5.0 4.9 4.1 6.1 9.1 11.0

Noncurrent benefit liabilities 641.1 579.6 184.6 219.0 825.7 798.6

Total recognized liabilities $646.l $584.5 $088.7 $225.1 $834.8 $809.6
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Prior service cost 18.5 21.2 10.8 7.9 29.3 29.1

Net loss 787.0 704.8 152.2 181.9 939.2 886.7

Accumulated other comprehenstve loss 805.5 726.0 $163.0 $189.8 968.5 915.8

Net amounts recognized $159.4 $141.5 25.7 35.3 $133.7 $106.2

The Company expects to recognize $57.4 of net loss and $3.5 of net prior service cost as component of net periodic pension cost in 2011 for its

defined benefit pension plans

The expected return on plan assets is longterm assumption based on projected returns for assets and the approved asset allocations of the plan For

the purpose of pension expense recognition the Company uses market related value of assets that amortizes the difference between the expected return

and the actual return on plan assets over threeyear period The Company had approxtmatety $40.7 of net unrecogntzed asset losses assoctated wtth tts

U.S pension plans as of December 31 2010 that will be recognized in the calculation of the marketrelated value of assets and subject to amortization in

future periods

Por the United States defined benefit plan as of December 31 2010 and 2009 the fair value of plan assets included 54% of equity securities and 46%

of debt securities The plan targets an asset allocation of 50% equity securities and 50% debt securities The plans expected longterm rate of return is

based on the asset allocation and expected future rates of return on equity and fixed income securities based on the investment outlook provided by the

Companys actuary
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Given the relatively long horizon of the Companys aggregate obligation its investment strategy is to improve and maintain the funded status of its

U.S and nonU.S plans over time without exposure to excessive asset value
volatility

The Company manages this risk primarily by maintaining actual

asset allocations between equity and fixed income securities for the plans within
specified range of its target asset allocation In addition the Company

ensures that diversification across various investment subcategories within each plan are maintained within specified ranges

All of the Companys pension assets are managed by outside investment managers and held in trust by thirdparty custodians The selection and

oversight of these outside service providers is the
responsibility of investment committees The selection of specific securities is at the discretion of the

investment manager and is subject to the provisions set forth by written investment management agreements and related policy guidelines regarding

permissible investments and risk control practices

The Companys funding policy is to contribute to defined benefit plans when pension laws and economics either require or encourage funding

Contributions of approximately $155.1 are planned for the U.S plans in 2011 Contributions of approximately $29.0 are planned for non U.S plans in

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation and to determine the net benefit costs are shown in the following table

Discount rates and rates of increase in future compensation are weighted based upon the projected benefit obligations of the respective plans The expected

longterm rate of return on plan assets is weighted based on total plan assets for each plan at year end The longterm rate of return on plan assets

assumption is determined considering historical returns and expected future asset allocation and returns for each plan

Benefit Obligations at December 31

U.S Plans NonU.S Plans Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.5% 6.0% 4.9% 5.2% 5.3% 5.8%

Rate of increase in future compensation levels 4.8% 4.8% 4.3% 4.5% 4.6% 4.7%

Net Periodic Pension Cost for the Year Ended December 31

U.S Plans NonU.S Plans Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount rate 6.0% 6.0% 5.2% 57% 5.8% 5.9%

Rate of increase in future compensation levels 4.8% 4.8% 4.5% 4.2% 4.7% 4.6%

Expected longterm rate of return on plan assets 7.2% 8.1% 7.4% 7.1% 7.3% 7.8%

The Company uses the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve and matches points along the curve to the estimated future benefit payments of the U.S

defined benefit plans to arrive at an effective discount rate The discount rates for non U.S defined benefit plans are based on benchmark rate indices

specific to the respective countries and durations similar to those of the plans liabilities
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The Company expects to pay benefits under its deftned benefit plans in future periods as detailed in the following table The expected benefits have

been esttmated based on the same assumptions used to measure the Companys benefit
obligation

as of December31 2010 and include benefits attributable

to future employee service

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

U.S Plans NonU.S Plans Total

2011 80.1 19.0 99.1

2012 80.6 23.2 103.8

2013 81.6 24.5 106.1

2014 83.2 22.0 105.2

2015 85.2 27.7 112.9

20162020 479.1 150.4 629.5

Other Postrelirement Plans

In addition to providing pension benefits the Company provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for most retired employees primarily

in the U.S The cost of providing these benefits to retirees outside the U.S is not significant Net periodic postrettremenl benefit cost included the following

components

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost

Service cost i.s 4.5 3.8

Interest cost 16.3 15.8 14.6

Amortization of prior service credits 6.8 6.8 6.2

Amortization of actuarial losses 4.6 3.8 1.6

Total $18.6 $17.3 $13.8

Other changes in benefit obligations that were recognized in or reclassified from other comprehensive income for the year ended December31

included

2010 2009

Amortization of prior service costs 6.8 6.8

Amorli.zation of loss 4.6 3.8

Net loss
arising during the year 16.9 21.6

New
prior service credit 0.6

Total $19.1 $24.0
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The following table presents reconciliation of the begtnntng and endtng balances of the accumulated postrelirement benefit obltgation as of

December 31

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation

Accrued postretirement benefit obligation at beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Plan change

Benefits paid

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at end of year

Punded status of plans

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

Current benefit liabilities

Noncurrent benefit liabilities

Total recognized liabilities

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Prior service credit

Net loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Net amounts recognized

2010 2009

290.7 $266.5

4.5 4.5

16.3 15.8

16.9 21.6

0.6

17.5 17.1

310.9 $290.7

$310.9 $290.7

20.4 20.4

290.5 270.3

$3l0.9 $290.7

16.5
102.5

23.3
90.1

86.0 66.8

$224.9 $223.9

2011

The Company expects to recognize $5.3 of net loss and $6.6 of net prior service credit as component of net periodic postretiremeni benefit cost in

The health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 8.5% in 2010 and was assumed to decrease

gradually to 5.0% in 2033 and remain at that level thereafter The health care cost trend rate assumption has an effect on the amounts reported but is offset

by plan provisions that limit the Companys share of the total postretiremeni health care benefits cost for the vast majority of participants The Companys

portion of the total annual health care benefits cost is capped at specified dollar amounts for
participants

who retired in 1994 or later and such limits are

expected to be reached in all subsequent years Increasing the assumed health care cost trend rate by one percentage point in each year would increase the

accumulated postretiremeni benefit obligation by 19% and the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit

cost for 2010 by 1.5% Decreasing the assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage point in each year would decrease the accumulated

postretirement benefit obligation by 1.7% and the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2010

by 1.3%

The discount rate used in determining the accumulated posiretirement benefit obligation was 5.25% and 5.75% at December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively The Company uses the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve and matches
points along the curve to the estimated future benefit payments of the

U.S postretirement health care benefit plans to arrive at an effective discount rate

36



Table of Contents

The Company funds most of the cost of the postretirement health care and life insurance beneftts as incurred Benefit payments to retirees were $19.3

for the year ended December 31 2010 Reimbursements received under Medtcare Part were $1.8 for the year ended December 31 2010 The Company

expects to pay future benefits under its postrettrement health care and life insurance benefit plans and expects to receive reimbursements from annual

Medicare Part subsidy as detailed in the following table The expected payments have been estimated based on the same assumptions used to measure the

Companys postrelirement benefit obligations as of December 31 2010

Estimated Estimated

Postretirement Benefit Medicare

Payments Subsidies

2011 20.9 1.7

2012 20.8 1.9

2013 20.9 2.1

2014 20.9 2.3

2015 21.2 2.5

20162020 108.4 16.9

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has various defined contribution and savings plans covering certain employees The Company made matching contributions under defined

contribution plans of $20.6 $19.7 and $20.7 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The U.S plan is the largest
of the defined

contribution and savings plans maintained by the Company Employer matching contributions for the U.S defined contribution plan for the year ended

December 31 2010 was $13.8 The Company expects to make additional contributions of $20.7 to all defined contribution plans during 2011

NOTE 16- COMMITMENTS CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

Chanter 11 Related Matters

On May 15 1995 the Filing Date the Company voluntarily filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code with the U.S

Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of Michigan Northern Division in order to resolve the Companys breast implant liabilities and related matters

the Chapter 11 Proceeding The Joint Plan of Reorganization was confirmed in November 1999 and provides funding for the resolution of breast implant

and other products liability litigation
covered by the Chapter Il Proceeding through several settlement options or through litigation

and for the satisfaction

of commercial creditor claims in the Chapter 11 Proceeding The Company emerged from the Chapter 11 Proceeding on June 2004 the Effective Date
and is implementing its Joint Plan of Reorganization

Breast Imolant and Other Products Liability Claims

Products liability claims to be resolved by settlement are administered by settlement facility the Settlement Facility and products liability clatms

to be resolved by litigation are defended by litigation facility the Litigation Facility Products liability claimants choosing to litigate their claims are

required to pursue their claims through litigation against the Litigation Facility Under the Joint Plan of Reorganization the total amount of payments by the

Company committed to resolve products liability claims will not exceed net present value of $2.35 billion determined as of the Effective Date using

discount rate of 7% Of this amount no more than net present value of $400.0 determined as of the Effective Date will be used to fund the Litigation

Facility
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Fi.uidine the Settlement and Littuatton Factlittes

The Company haa an obltgation to fund the Settlement
Facility and the Litigation Facility collectively the Faciltttes over 16year period

commencing at the Effective Date The Company anticipates that it will be able to meet its remaining payment obligations
to the Facilities utilizing

cash

flow from operations insurance proceeds andlor prospective borrowings If the Company is unable to meet its remaining obligations
to fund the Facilities

the Company will also have access to tenyear unsecured revolving credit commitment established by Dow Chemical and Corning in an original

maximum aggregate amount of $300.0 Beginning June 2009 the amount available decreases by $50.0 per year and willfully expire June 2014 As of

Decemher 31 2010 the maximum aggregate amount available to the Company under this revolving credit commitment was $200.0 As of December 31
2010 the Company had not drawn any amounts against the revolving credit commitment

Funds are paid by the Company to the Settlement Facility with respect to products liability claims as such claims are processed and allowed by

the Settlement
Facility

and via the Settlement Facility with respect to products liability claims processed through the Litigation Facility as such claims

are resolved Insurance settlements are paid by the Companys insurers
directly

to the Settlement Facility on behalf of the Company The amount of funds

paid by or on behalf of the Company ts subject to annual and aggregate funding limits The Company has made payments of $1677.5 to the Settlement

Facility through December31 2010

In accordance with the Joint Plan of Reorganization and subject to the annual and aggregate funding limits future payments to the Settlement Facility

will be made on periodic basis as necessary to preserve the liquidity of the Settlement Facility until such payment obligations cease as provided for in the

Plan Based on these funding agreements the recorded liability is adjusted to maintain the present value of $2.35 billion determined as of the Effective Date

using discount rate of 7% Time Value Adjustments The Company has made early payments to the Settlement Facility
in advance of their due dates

and has recognized Time Value Adjustments for certain of those early payments consisting primarily of insurance proceeds The actual amounts payable

and the timing of payments by the Company to the Settlement Facility are uncertain and will be affected by among other things the rate at which claims are

resolved by the Facilities the rate at which insurance proceeds are received by the Company from its insurers and the degree to which Time Value

Adjustments are recognized

As of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 the Companys Implant reserve recorded in the consolidated balance sheets was $1566.8 and

$1580.3 respectively These amounts reflect the Companys estimated remaining obligation to fund the resolution of breast implant and other medical

device claims pursuant to the Companys joint Plan of Reorganization and other breast implant litigation related matters

During 2010 the Company recorded an out of period adjustment of $25.6 to reflect prioryears settlements of products liability claims The

adjustment reduced the Companys liability to fund the Settlement
Facility as recorded in Implant reserve on the consolidated balance sheet and increased

Other nonoperating income/expenses on the consolidated statement of income The adjustment increased the Companys pretax income by $25.6 and net

income by $16.1

Insurance Proceeds Londnn Market Insurers

The London Market Insurers the LMI Claimants have claimed reimbursement right
with respect to portion of insurance proceeds based on

theory that the LMI Claimants overestimated the Companys products liability During the third quarter of 2008 the LMI Claimants offered two

calculations of their claim amount $54.0 and $92.5 plus minimum interest of $67.0 and $115.5 respectively These estimates were explicitly
characterized

as preliminary and subject to change Litigation regarding this claim is in discovery The Company disputes the claim Based on settlement negotiations the

Company has estimated that the most likely outcome will result in payment to the LMI Claimants in range of $10.0 to $20.0 The Company recorded

liability for an amount within this range as of December 31 2010
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Insurance Allocation Apreement between the Company and Dow Chemical

number of the products liability insurance policies relevant to claims against the Company name the Company and Dow Chemical as coinsureds

the Shared Insurance Assets In order to resolve issues related to the amount of the Shared Insurance Assets that would be available to the Company for

resolution of its products liability claims the Company and Dow Chemical entered into an insurance allocation agreement Under this agreement 25% nf

certatn of the Shared Insurance Assets were paid by the Company to Dow Chemical subsequent to the Effective Date The maximum $285.0 liability was

patd in full as of September 30 2009 In accordance with the agreement portion of any such amounts paid to Dow Chemical to the extent not used by

Dow Chemical to pay certain products liability claims will be paid over to the Company after the exptration of 17.5year period commencing on the

Effective Date

Commercial Creditor Issues

The Joint Plan of Reorganization provides that each of the Companys commercial creditors the Commercial Creditors would receive in cash the

sum of an amount equal to the principal amount of their clatms and interest on such claims The actual amount of interest that will ultimately be paid

to these Commercial Creditors is uncertain due to pending litigation between the Company and the Commercial Creditors regarding the appropriate tnterest

rates to be applied to outstanding obltgattons from the Filing Date through the Effective Date the Pendency Interest as well as the presence of any

recoverable fees costs and expenses

The Companys position is that Pendency Interest should be an amount determined by applying nondefault rates of tnterest for
floating

rate

obligations in accordance with the formulas in the relevant contracts except that the aggregate amnunt nf interest rsnnnt he less than that resulting
from the

applicatton of fixed rate of 6.28% through the Effective Date and ii the higher of the relevant contract rates or 6.28% for all other obligations to the

Commercial Creditors through the Effective Date interest payable to the Commercial Credttors for periods following the Effective Date should be

computed at 5% and default interest rates should not apply the Companys Position The Commercial Creditors position is that Pendency Interest

should be an amount determined by applying default rates of interest with respect to amounts overdue under the terms of the relevant debt and commercial

agreements until the Effective Date interest payable to the Commercial Creditors for periods following the Effective Dale should be computed at 5%

and certain of the Commercial Creditors are entitled to unspecified fees costs and expenses The Company has paid to the Commercial Creditors an

amount of interest that the Company considers to be undisputed which was calculated by application of the Companys Position the Undisputed

Portion

In July 2006 the U.S Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit concluded that there is general presumption that contractually specified default interest

should be paid by solvent debtor to unsecured creditors the Interest Rate Presumption and permitting the Companys Commercial Creditors to recover

fees costs and expenses where allowed by relevant loan agreements and stale law The matter was remanded to the U.S District Court for the Eastern

District of Michigan for further proceedings to determine the presence of equitable considerations that would preclude the application of the Interest Rate

Presumption or in the absence of equitable considerations what the default rates of interest will be along with any recoverable fees costs and expenses

As of December31 2010 the Company has paid approximately $1.5 billion to the Commercial Creditors representing principal
and the Undisputed

Portion As of December31 2010 the Company has estimated its liability payable to the Commerctal Creditors to be within range of $81.4 to $267.9

However no single amount within the range appears to be better estimate than any other amount within the range Therefore the Company has recorded

the minimum liability within the range As of December31 2010 and December31 2009 the amount of interest included in Accrued interest recorded in

the consolidated balance sheets related to the Companys potential obligation to pay additional interest to its Commerctal Creditors in the Chapter 11

Proceeding was $79.9 and $76.1 respectively The actual amount of interest that will be paid to these creditors is uncertain and will ultimately be resolved

through continued proceedings in the District Court
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Risks and Uncertainties

While the Company does not anticipate need to further revise amounts recorded in its consolidated financial statements for these Chapter 11 related

matters as additional facts and circumstances develop it is at least reasonably possible that amounts recorded in the Companys consolidated financial

statements may be revised Future revisions if required could have material effect on the Companys financial position or results of operations in the

period or periods in which such revisions are recorded Since any specific
future developments and the impact such developments might have on amounts

recorded in the Companys consolidated financial statements are unknown at this time an estimate of possible future adjustments cannot be made

Environmental Matters

The Company was previously advised by the United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA or by similar slate and nonU.S nattonal

regulatory agencies that the Company together with others is Potentially Responsible Party PEP with respect to portion of the cleanup costs and

other related matters involving nutnber of waste disposal sites Management believes that there are 23 sites at which the Company may have some

liability although management expects to settle the Companys liability for eight of these sites for de minimis amounts

Based upon preliminary estimates by the EPA or the PEP groups formed with respect to these sites the aggregate liabilities for all PEPs at those sites

at which management believes the Company may have more than de minimis liability is $28.1 Management cannot estimate the aggregate Itability
for all

PEPs at all of the sites at which management expects the Company has de minimis liability
The Company records accruals for environmental matters

when it is probable that liability has been incurred and the Companys costs can be reasonably estimated The amount accrued for environmental matters

as of December 31 2010 and 2009 was $2.1 and $3.2 respectively

As additional facts and circumstances develop ii is at least reasonably possible that the accrued liability related to environmental matters may be

revised While there are number of uncertainties with respect to the Companys estimate of its ultimate liability for cleanup costs at these waste disposal

sites management believes that any costs incurred in excess of those accrued will not have material adverse impact on the Companys consolidated

financial position or results of operations This opinion is based upon the number of identified PEP at each stte the number of such PEP that are

believed by management to be financially capable of paying their share of the ultimate liability and the portion of waste sent to the sites for which

management believes the Company might be held responsible based on available records

Other Regulatory Matters

Companies that manufacture and sell chemical products may experience risks under current or future laws and regulations which may result in

significant costs and liabilities The Company routinely conducts health toxicological and environmental tests of its products The Company cannot predict

what future legal regulatory or other actions if any may be taken regarding the Companys products or the consequences of their production and sale Such

actions could result in significant losses and there can be no assurance that significant losses would not be incurred However based on currently
available

information the Companys management does not believe that any such actions would have material adverse effect on the Companys financial condition

or results of operations

40



Table of Contents

Guarantees and Letters of Credit

Guarantees arise in the normal course of business from relationships with customers employees and nonconsolidated affiliates when the Company
undertakes an obligation to guarantee the performance of others via delivery of cash or other assets if specifted triggering events occur Nonperformance

under contract by the guaranteed party triggers the obligation of the Cumpany The Company maintained an agreement to guarantee the debt of

nonconsolidated affiliate The maximum amount of potential future payments under this guarantee was $63.6 as of December 31 2010 The guarantee

expires upon repayment of the debt which is due to be repaid by May 2013 The Companys potential obligation under other guarantees is not material to

the consolidated financial statements The Company does not expect to be required to make any payments related to these agreements and no liability has

been recorded on the Companys consolidated balance sheets for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

The Company had outstanding letters of credit of $15.2 and $13.2 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively These letters of credit related

primarily to the Companys wholly owned captive insurance subsidiary

Leases

The Company leases certain real and personal property under agreements that generally require
the Company to pay for maintenance insurance and

taxes Lease expense was $51.8 in 2010 $51.1 in 2009 and $52.0 in 2008 The minimum future lease payments required under noncancellable operating

leases at December 31 2010 in the aggregate are $262.2 including the following amounts due in each of the next five years 2011 $41.2 2012 $31.4

2013 $24.6 2014 $19.7 and 2015 $17.7

Warranties

In the normal course of business to facilitate sales of its products the Company has issued product warranties and ii has entered into contracts and

purchase orders that often contain standard terms and conditions that typically include warranty The Companys warranty activities do not have material

impact on the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations
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NOTE 17- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company haa transactions in the normal course of business with its shareholders Dow Chemical and Corning and their affiliates The following

tables summarize related
party

transactions for the year ended December 31 and balances with the Companys shareholders as of December 31

2010 2009 2008

Sales to Dow Chemical $14.4 $14.6 $12.9

SalestoCorning 19.3 17.1 13.8

Purchases from Dow Chemical 68.1 43.5 64.7

2010 2009

Accounts receivable from Dow Chemical 0.4 0.8

Accounts receivable from Corning 1.2 1.1

Accounis payable to Dow Chemical 5.3 4.0

In addition nonwholly owned consolidated subsidiaries of the Company have transactions in the normal course of business with their noncontrolling

shareholders The following tables summarize related party transactions for the year ended December31 and balances between these nonwholly owned

consolidated subsidiaries and their minority owners as of December 31

2010 2009 2008

Sales to minority owners $483.9 $436.6 $383.1

Purchases from minority owners 275.9 77.8 85.3

2010 2009

Accounts receivable from minority owners $137.9 80.3

Accounts payable to minority owners 8.1 3.3

Management believes the costs of such purchases and the prices for such sales were competilive with purchases from other suppliers and sales to

other customers

In addition DCT loans excess funds to its minority shareholder Toray Industries Inc The amount of loans receivable at December 31 2010 and 2009

was $42.1 and $20.6 respectively These balances are included in Notes and other receivables in the consolidated balance sheets Management believes

that interest earned from this loan arrangement is at rates commensurate with market rates for companies of similar credit standing

In December 2009 the Company purchased an office building and technology center from Rohm Hsas Investment Holding Co Ltd subsidiary of

The Dow Chemical Company for approximately $47.2
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries EXHIBIT 12.1

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Combined

Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements

For the Years Ended December31

2006 2007In millions except ratio lUnaudiledl 2010 2009 2006

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 2802 469 $1277 4192 $4938

Add deduct

Equity in earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates

Distributed income of earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates

Capitalized interest

Amortization of capitalized interest

Preferred security dividends

1112
668

72
95

630
690

61
91

20

787
836

97
84

63

1122
774

85
79

81

959
616

73
70

77

Adjusted earnings

Fixed charges

Interest expense and amortization of debt discount

Capitalized interest

Preferred security dividends

Rental expense interest component

2381

1473

72

95

539

1571

61

20

107

$1250

648

97

63

120

3757

584

85

81

124

$4515

616

73

77

131

Total fixed charges $1640 $1759 928 874 897

Earnings available for the payment of fixed charges 4021 $2298 $2178 4631 $5412

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 2.5 1.3 2.3 5.3 6.0

Earnings required for combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends

Preferred stock dividends 340 312

Adiusiment to pretax basis at 35 percent 183 168

Preferred stock dividends pretax 523 480

Combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividend requirements 2163 $2239 928 874 897

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividend requirements 1.9 1.0 2.3 5.3 6.0
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EXHIBIT 21

Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

Location Ownership

This list includes cnmnantes for which the effective ownershin by ....mnnnv Is 50 nerceet ocjiiore

The Dow Chemical Company Delaware

Arabian Chemical Company Latex Ltd Saudi Arabia 50

Arabian Chemical Company Polystyrene Limited Saudi Arabia 50

Battleground Water Company 73 Texas

Bnildacape LLC Delaware 100

CanStaten Holdings Inc Dktahnma 100

ANGUS
Chemipal Company Delaware 100

CD Polymers Inc Delaware 100

Centen Ag Inc Delaware 100

Dow AgroSciencen LLC Delaware 30

DowBrands Inc 14 Delaware

Mycogen Corporation 13 California 12

Chemara III LLC Delaware 100

Chemtech II L.P Delaware 22

DC Partnership Management Inc Delaware 100

DowBrands L.P Delaware 42

DCDMCO Inc Delaware 100

Deamerco Inc Delaware 100

Dexco Polymers Operating Company LLC Texas 50

Dexco Polymers LP 18 Texas

Diamond Capital Management Inc Delaware 100

DML Holding Inc 30 Delaware 89

Rohm and Haas Canada Investments Inc/Placements Rohm et Haas Canada Inc 50 Canada

Dofinco Inc Delaware 100

Dow Basiness Servtcm LLC Delaware 100

Dow Capital International LLC Delaware 100

Dow Chemical Australia Limited Australia 100

Dow Australia Superannuation Fund
Ply Limited Australia 100

Dow Chemical China Investment Company Limited Chiea 100

Dow Chemical Chine Company Limited China 100

Dow Chemical Guangzhou Company Limited China 100

Dow Chemical Shanghai Company Limited Chine 100

Dow Chemical Zhangiegang Company Limited China 100

Guangdong Zhongshnn Amerchol Specialty Chemicals Co Ltd China 90

Zhejinng
Pacific Chemical Corporation Chine 100

Dow Chemical China Holdings PIe Ltd
Singapore 100

Dow Chemical Delaware Corp Delaware 100

Chemtech II L.P Delaware 73

Chemtech Porifolis Inc 11 Texan 33

Chemtech Portfolio II Inc Michigan 100

Dow Chemical International Ltd Delaware 100

Dow Chemical Thailand Ltd Thailand 100

Dow International Holdings Company 221 Delaware

Dow Internatinnal Holdings S.A 77 SwItzerland

Pacific Plastics Thailand LImited 41 Thailand 51

PetroquimicaDow S.A Petrodow Chile 100

Dow Chemical Korea Limited 34 Korea 88

Dow Chemical NZ Limited New Zealand 100

Dow Chemical Pacific Limited Hong Kong 100

Dow Chemical Pacific Singapore Private Limited Singapore 100

Dow Chemical Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100

Dow Chemicnl Intematlonal Pvt Ltd 28 India 99

Dow Chemical Vietnam LLC Vietnam 100

PT Dow Indonesia 85 ladanenia 99

Dow Chemical Singapore Private Limited Singapore 100

Dow Chemical International PsI Ltd 28 India

PT Dow Indonesia 95 Indnnesia
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

This list includes companies for which the effective oweerohiu by The flow Chemical Comousv is SOa

Lore non0 0Q Owners/tip

errent or Lilule

flow Chemical Taiwan Limited

flow Chemical Telecommunications Corp

flow Credit Corporation

flow Cootomo Trade LLC

flow flestschlnnd Inc

flow Chemical InterAmerican Limited

flaw Quimica de Colombia S.A

flow flentschlund Management Inc

flow Engineering Company

flow Engineering Inc

flow Environmental Inc

flow Financial Services Inc

flow Global Technologies LLC
Chemtech Porifulis Inc 11

Stonehenge Commanity fleveloptneut XVII LLC
flow Petrochemicals Holding LLC 42

flaulat Holdco LLC

Kfl Petruuhemkals C.V 47
Kflow Petrochemicals GmbH

Kfl Petrochemicals C.V 47
flow Technology Investments LLC 37

flow Holdings LLC
flow Corning Corporation 82
flow Hydrocarbons and Resources LLC

Csyuse Pipeline Inc

flow Intrastate Gas Company
flow Pipeline Compan
K/fl/S Promix LLL
Midland

Pipeline Corp
Fort Saskatchewan Ethylene Storage Corporation

Fort Saskatchewan Ethylene Storage Limited Partnership 12
flowBrands L.P

flow Internacional Mexicuna S.A de CV
flow International B.V
flow International Financial Services

flow Capital Public Limited Company

flow International Holdings Company 22
flC Spectrum Holding C.V 38

CoOperatleve fiC Prisms
Holding U.A 38

flow flutch Holding B.V
fiC Galaxy Holding C.V 40
flow Europe Finance B.V
flow International Holdings S.A 77

3243424 Nova Scotia Company

fiC Galaxy Holding C.V 40
flow Europe Holdinn B.V

BASF flflW HPPfl B.V

BASF flOW HPPO Technology B.V
Control Securities Finance Conseclin B.V
fiC Finance Canada B.V
flomaluua B.V
flow Austria Gesellschaft m.b.H

flow Belgium B.V.B.A

flow Benelux B.V
flow Netwerk B.V
Emecgo Finance C.V

Polyol Belgium B.V.B.A to

Taiwan

flelaware

fietawsre

flelsware

flelaware

flelaware

Colombia

flelawace

flelaware

Michigan

flelaware

flelaware

flelawure

Texas

flelsware

fleluware

flelaware

Netherlands

Switzerland

Netherlands

flelsware

flelnware

Michigan

flelaware

Texas

Loutsiaus

Texas

Texas

flelswsre

Csnads

Canada

flelawace

Mexico

Netherlands

Ireland

Ireland

flelnware

Netherlands

Netherlanda

Netherlands

Netherlands

Netherlands

Switzerland

Canada

Netherlands

Netherlauds

Netherlands

Netherlands

Netherlands

Netherlands

Netherlands

Austria

Belgium

Netherlands

Netherlands

Netherlands

Belgium

100

100

too

100

100

100

10

100

100

100

100

100

100

67

99

25

100

50

47

50

100

50

100

100

100

100

50

100

50

100

100

100

100

70

99

99

100

100

99

100

99

100

50

100

100

100

too

too

100

100

50

99
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

Valaepark Terneuzen Beheer B.V Netherlands

Vnlaepark Terneuzen CV 25 Netherlands

Dow Beteiligungagesellschaft mhH Co KG Germany

Dow Dlefinverbund GmbH 44 Germany

Dow Chemical Company Limited United Kingdom

Autothane Limited United Kingdom

Cromarty Petroleum Compaey Limited United Kingdom

Dow Chemical Services UK Limited United Kingdom

Dow Services Trustees UK Limited United Kingdom

Hyperlast Limited United Kingdom

ALH Rail Castings Limited United Kingdom

Hypertec Print Services Limited United Kingdom

Xitrack Limited United Kingdom

Dow Chemical East Africa Limited 79 Kenya

Dow Chemical Iberica S.L Spain

Terminal de Atraqne de Productss Peeroqnimicos AlE Spain

Trannformadora de Elileno AlE Spain

Dow Chemical Korea Limited 34 Korea

Dew Chemical DOD Russia

Dow Chemical Romania S.R.L Romania

Dew Deatschland Verwaltsngu Veririeba GmhH Germany

Dow Deatachland Vertrieha GmhH Co DHG 76 Germany

Dew Earepe GmhH Switzerland

Dolpa SarI Luxembearg

DuwGACL SulVsnture Limited India

Dow Chemical IMBA GmbH Switzerland

Dow Ceaeract Services FZE Duhai

Dow Egypt Servicea Limited 43 Egypt

Dow Mideast Systems S.A.E USC Egypt

Dow France S.A.S France

Dow Hellas A.E Greece

Dow Hungary Kft Hungary

Dow laterEranch D.V Netherlands

Business Process Service Center Terneazes B.V Netherlands

Dow Chemical East Africa Limited 75 Kenya

Dow Denmark A/S Denmark

Dow Mideast Systems S.A.E USC Egypt

Dow Norge A/S Norway

Dow Saudi Arabia Company 35 Saadi Arabta

Dow Tarktye Kimya Sanayi ye Ticaret Limited Sirkesi Turkey

Dow
Zwijndrechs B.V.B.A 19 Belgium

Santa Vttoria Acacar Alceol Lida gi Brazil

Dow Italla art Italy

Dow AgroSciencea Italia act Italy

Dow Italia Divisione Commerciale a.r.I Italy

Dow Mideast Systems S.A.E USC Egypt

Dow Egypt Services Limited 43 Egypt

Dow Olefiaverband GmbH 44 Germany

ANGUS Chemie GmbH Germany

Dow SlIde Produksioaa GmbH Co DHG 29 Germany

Dow Wolff Cellulosics GmbH Co OHG 36 Germany

Dow AgroSciencea GmbH Germany

Dow Dessachland Anlagengesellachaft mbH Germany

Dow Wolff Cellalosics GasbH Germany

Probis GmbH Germany

UPPC GmbH Germany

UPPC Ltd United Kingdom

Thts list isclsdes comaaslea for which the effective ownershin by The Dow Chemical Comsanv is 50 eercent or more

aa OanersjijR_

50

l0

100

100

50

100

100

100

50

100

50

90

99

50

50

14

100

100

100

30

100

100

50

100

100

25

100

100

100

100

100

10

100

100

15

50

100

test

100

66

75

95

100

30

50

100

100

100

100

100

100
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Dow MF Verwaltungs GmbH
Dow MF Produktion GmbH Co DUG 74

Dow Pipelioe Geoellnchaft mbH Co KG
Dow Pipeline Verwultungogesellochaft mbfl

SAPECHEM Eorope GmbH
Dow Deutschland Vertriebs GmbH Co DUG 76
Dow MP Prodoktion GmbH Co DUG 74
Dow Stade Produktioos GmbU Co DUG 26
Dow Wolff Cellolosics GmbU Co DUG 36

Dow Plastics and Chemicals Holdiog B.V
KD Peirochensicals C.V 47

Dow Poloka Sp.z.o.o

Dow Portugal Produtos Qaimicos Unipesnoal Ldn

Dow Saudi Arabia Company 35
Dow Southern Africa Pty Ltd

Dow Snomi DY
Dow Sverige AB
Dow Tnrkiye Kimya Sanayi ye Ticaret Limited Sirketi

Dow Wiltoo Limited

Dow Zwijodrechi B.V.B.A 19
Edulan AJS

Edulan U.K Limited

UPPD Uoldiog Pinance C.V
MEGlobal B.V
MTP UPJV C.V 83
MTP UPJV Management B.V 83
Dmao Petrochemical Induntrien Company LLC
Polyol Belgium B.V.B.A 10
RUS Polyurelhaneu Uolding B.V

Dow Izolan DDD 45
Dow Izolan Ukraine LLC 46

UC Inveotment By
EQUATE Marketing Company E.C

Rofan Automation and Information Systems B.V

Terneuzen Purtnerohip Services B.V
Vatnepark TPrnee7en 75

Dow Netherlands Investments LLC
Cooperatieve DC Priomu Uolding U.A 39

Dow Netherlands Uoldingo LLC
DC Spectrum Uolding C.V 38

DowBrands Inc 14
Dow International Technology Corporatioo

Dow Kukoh Kuboohiki Kniohu

Dow Pacific Moldings B.V
Dow Peru S.A 24
Dow Petrochemiculo Molding LLC 42
Dow Qoimicu Argentina S.A 20
Dow Qoimicu Chilena S.A 21
Dow Quimica de Colombia S.A

Dow Qoimica Mexicana S.A de C.V 16
Dow Roofing Systems LLC
Dow South Africa Moldings Pty Ltd

Seolrachem Limited

Cisvaal Proprietary Limited

MinLhem lnlerndtiuljdl InL

South African Polymer Moldings PTY Ltd

Dow Tmding S.A

Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 39 2010

Location uu Oenerslrip
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Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Netherlunds

Netherlands

Poland

Portugal

Saudi Arabia

South Africa

Pinlaed

Sweden

Turkey

United Kingdom

Belgium

Denmark

United Kingdom

Netherlands

Netherlands

Netherinodo

Netherlundo

Dman

Belgium

Netherlands

Russia

Ukraine

Netherlands

Babruin

Netherlundo

Netherlando

Netherlands

Delaware

Netherlands

Deinware

Netherlandn

Delaware

Delaware

Japan

Netherlands

Peru

Delaware

Argentina

Chile

Colombin

Mexico

Delaware

South Africa

South Africa

South Africa

South Africa

South Africa

Switzerland

100

30

go

80

100

70

70

70

50

100

100

100

85

100

100

100

99

100

99

100

100

50

50

50

50

58

100

100

100

50

100

100

49

100

100

79

100

65

100

91

25

76

89

90

85

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

Location Qanership

This list Includes comosnies for wsics me ersecsive uwljersnlu liv vow t.llellllLdl .lJlllUdllVSfloprreetprmpre

Dow Trent Limited

Dow UK Limited

Halternaon Limited

Ascot Investments Limited

Ascot Chemicnls Limited

Hnltermann Pension Trustees Limited

Suter Limited

Dow Venezuela C.A
Dow Verwaltsngsgesellschaft mhH
DowMitsai ChlorAlkali LLC 13
DSL Holdings Inc

Dow Reichhold Specialty Latex LLC
DW Dexco Investment LLC

Ueited Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kiegdom

United Kingdom

United Kingduiii

Venezuela

Germany

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

100

100

100

100

100

100

tOO

36

100

50

100

50

100

Dexco Polymers LP 18
Eqsipolymers By
Essex Chemical Corporation

Essex Specialty Products LLC
American Mortell Corporation

Mortell Company
Dow Chemical Wuhan Compaey Limited

Dow International Holdings Company 22
GWN Holding Inc 31

FilmTec Corporation

DMEX Overseas Holdings Inc

Zhejiang OMEX Environmental Engtoeering Co ltd

Flexible Products Company

Flexible Products Company of Canada Inc

Forbanco Inc

Texas

Netherlands

New Jersey

New Jersey

Texas

Delaware

Chtua

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Virgin Islands

China

Georgia

Canada

Delaware

48

50

100

100

100

100

100

27

100

100

100

100

tOO

100

General Latex and Chemical Corporation

GNS Enterprises LLC

GNS Technologies LLC
Great Western Pipeline Company Inc

GWN Holding Inc 31
Rohm and Hass Canada Investments Inc/Placements Rohm et Bass Canada Inc 56

3243425 Nova Scotia Company
Daulat Canada Holding LP 80
Dow Canada Holding LP 78
Rohm and Haas Canada LP 57

Dow Canada Holding LP 78
Daulat Canada Holding LP 80

3229809 Nova Scotia Company

Dow Investment Argentina S.A 48
FBBPoltsur S.A 28

PBEPolisur S.A 28
Dow Investment Argentina S.A 48

Petrochemicals C.V 47
SD Group Service Co Ltd

Slam Polyethylene Company Limited 75
Siam Polyethylene Company Limited 75

Dow Chemical Canada ULC

Massachusetts

Georgia

Georgia

California

Delaware

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Argentina

Argentina

Argentina

Argentina

Netherlands

Thailand

ThaIland

Thailand

Canada

100

100

100

100

66

92

100

99

99

100

97

72

28

50

49

100

3229897 Nova Scotia Company
Dow Chemical Finance Canada ULC

Modelund loternattosal Holdings Inc 23
Dow Erasit S.A

Branco Dow Compostns de Engenharia Ltda

Dopec Industcia Comercto Ltda

Dow Especiatidades Quimicas Ltda

Canada

Canada

Bnrbados

Brazil

Brazil

Brazil

Brazil

100

100

59

100

100

100

100



This list includes comnanies tor which -S by
fl.. h.....1 r.-...... nn

Dow Brasil Sudeste Ieduslrisl Ltds Brszil

Keytil Sociedad Assnima Urugusy

Sseta Vitoria Acucar Alcool Ltds 81 Brazil

Fort Saskatchewan Ethylene Storage
Limited

Partnership 12 Canada

HD Tech Inc Csnada

MEClobal Canada Inc Canada

Pttromost asd Company Limited Partnersltip
Canada

Pelromont Inc Canada

Robot and Hass Canada LP 57 Canada

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Luxembourg

Delaware

Ireland

Michigan

Bermudo

Delaware

Bermuda

Thailand

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

California

Delaware

Iowa

Pakistan

Mauritius

Isdin

China

Vermont

Delaware

Masritius

India

Netherlands

Argentina

Argentina

Argentina

Argenrina

Portugal

Turkey

Argentina

Bolivia

Paraguay

Malaysia

Australia

Bolivia

Canada

Chile

Costa Rica

Dnmark
Colombia

Mexico

Ifcu Inc

Chentech II L.P

Intarsia Corporation

Ion Holdings LLC 15
Ion Investments Sari

Liana Limited

Dorinco Insurance Ireland Limited

Dorieco Reiussrance Company

Dorintal Reinsurance Limited

100 Independence Mall West LLC
Timber Insnrsnce Limited

Pacific Plastics Thailsnd Limited 41
Raven Croup Ltd

RaveoWorko Ltd

Rofan Services Inc

Dow AgroSciences LLC
DswBrands Inc 14
Ion Holdings LLC 15
Mycogeo Corporation 13

Dow AgroSciesces LLC
Alsan Research

Bayer DAS Private Ltd

DAS Agricaltsral Investment Holding Company Ltd

Dow AgroSciesces India Pvl Ltd 27
Dow AgroSciences China Company Limited

DERe Insurance Company
Dintec Agrichemicalo LLC it

Dow AgroSciences Agrtcsltsral Products Limited

Dow AgroSciencea India Pvt Ltd 27
Dow AgroSciesres B.V

Ambito DAS S.A

ChacoDAS S.A

DASER ACRD S.A

Desab S.A

Dintec Agroquimica Prsdutos Quimicos Lda

Dow AgroSciences A.S

Dow AgroSciences Argentina S.A 17
Dow AgroSciences Bolivia S.A 32
Dow AgroSciences Paraguay S.A 33

Dow AgroSciences Asia Sdn Bhd
Dow

AgroSciences Australia Limited

Dow AgroSciences Bolivia S.A 32
Dow AgroSciences Canada Inc

Dow AgroSciesces Chile S.A

Dow AgroSciences Costa Rica S.A

Dow AgroSciesces Danmark AIS

Dow AgroSciences de Colombia S.A

Dow AgroScieoces de Mexico S.A do C.V

Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

Locationt Own ership

log

tog

50

49

50

50

50

50

99

100

99

60

too

log

log

100

100

100

100

49

log

go
100

10

40

98

51

50

50

too

100

tog

50

100

99

too

50

50

50

50

66

too

99

too

too

98

too

100

100

too

tog

tog
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

Location Ownership

This list includes comnanies for which the effective ownership by The Dow Che mtcnl Comnanv Is 50 nercent or more

Dow AgroSciencet Export S.A.S France 100

Dow AgroSciences Guatemala S.A Guatemala 100

Dow AgroSciencea Iberics S.A Spain
100

Dow AgroSciences Industrial Lida Brazil 100

Dow AgroSciences Sementes Biotecnologis Brasil Ltda Brazil 100

Dow
AgroSciences

Limited United Kingdom 100

Dow AgroSciencs Malayoiu Sdn Bhd MalaysIa
100

DowAgroSciences NZ Limited New Zealand 100

Dow AgroSciences 000 Russia 100

Dow AgroSciences Pacific Limited Hong Kong 100

Dow AgroSciences Paraguay S.A 33 Paraguay gg

Dow AgroSciences Bolivia S.A 32 Bolivia

Dow
AgroSciences Polnks Sp zoo Poland 100

Dow AgroSciencea S.A.S France 100

Dow AgroSciences Distribution S.A.S France 100

Dow AgroSciences o.r.o Czech Republic
100

Dow AgroSciences Sverige A/B Sweden 100

Dow AgroSciences Taiwan Ltd Taiwan 100

Dow AgroSciences Technology GmbH Switzerland 100

Dow AgroSciences Switoerlnnd S.A Switzerland 100

Dow AgroSciences Hungary Kft Hungary 100

Dow AgroSciences Vertriebsgesellschaft rn.b.H Austria 100

Dow Chemical Japan Limited Jspan
100

Dow Vnnezsels C.A Venezuela 54

Fedea S.A Argentina
50

Forratec Argentina S.A Argentina 50

JV Agro S.A Argentina
50

PT Dow AgroSciences Indonesia Indonesia 15

Rindes Cultivon DAS S.A Argentina 50

Terramur JV S.A Argentina
50

Ubajay DAS S.A Argnntina 50

Dow
AgroSciences China Ltd Delaware 100

Dow AgroSciences International Ltd Delaware 100

Dow AgroSciences Thailand Limited Thailand 100

Dow
AgroSciences

Southern Africa Proprietary Ltd South Africa 100

Sanaclsnm Zimbabwe Pvt Ltd Zimbabwe 100

DowBrando Inc 14 Delaware it

Mycogen Crop Protection Inc California 100

Mycogen S.A de C.V Mexico gI

Mycogen Plant Scienrn Inc Delaware 100

Agrigenntlca Inc Delaware 100

Agrigenntics
Molokai LLC Hnwnii 100

Brodbeck Seeds LLC Delaware 100

Dairylnnd Seed Co Inc Wisconsin 100

Dow AgroSciences Argnntina S.A 17 Argentina
11

Duo Maize B.V Netherlands 100

Mycogen S.A de C.V Mexico

Mycogen Seeds Puerto Rico Corporation Delaware 100

PEster Seeds LLC Delaware 100

Renze Seeds LLC Delaware 100

Texas Triumph Seed Co lac Texas 100

Monterey Seed Company Inc Texas 100

Phytogen Seed Company LLC Delaware 54

Wenben Inc Delaware 100

Rohm and Haao Company Delaware 100

AgroFrnuh Inc Illinois 100

Charles
Lennig Company LLC Delaware 100

182



Rohm and Haas Australia Pty Ltd 49
Rnhm and Haaa Chile Liwitada 50
Rohm and Haaa Colombia Ltda 51

Rohm and Hnas Argentina S.R.L 52
Rnhm and Haas Australia Pty Ltd 49
Rohm and Hans Chemicals LLC 53

CVD Incnrpornted

Msrton Intermediate Cnmpany

Rohm and Hans Elnctronic Materials Taiwan Ltd

Marina International Ca Ltd

Morton International LLC

NichigoMorton Cs Ltd

Rshm and Huas Credit LLC
Rohm and Hans Bermuda Ltd

Rohm and Hans Holdings Ltd 54
Rohm and Hans Cspitnl Corporation

Rohm and Hans Equity Corporation 55
ROH Venture CmbH

StoHans Management GmbH
StoHuns Monomer GmbH Co KG

Rohm and Hans Far East Limited

Rohm nod Hnns Asin Inc

Rohm and Hans Chemical Thuitnnd Limited

Rohm nod Hnns China Inc

Beijing Eastern Rohm and Hans Csmpuny Limited BERHC
Rohm nnd Hnns Internntionnl Trnding Shanghni Co Ltd

Shnnghni Eastern Rohm nod Hans Compnoy Ltd

Rohm nod Hnns Denmark Investments LLC
Rohm asd Hans European Holding ApS 59

Rohm and Hans Denmnrk A/S

Rohm nod Hnns Denmark Finance A/S

Acima AG fur Chemische Industrie

PT Rohm and Husu Indonesia gl
RH Denmurk Asia Pluatirs Additives Investment ApS

RH DK ChemiHnas Holding ApS
RH DK Korea FPD Holdings ApS

SKC Hans Display Films Co Ltd

SKC Huas Display Films USA LLC
SKC Hans Display Films Japan K.K
SKC Hans Display Films Taiwan Ltd

SKC Hans Polskn Sp.z

SKC New Material Suzhsu Cs Ltd

RH DK Korea OLED Holdings ApS
RH DK Mexico Holding ApS

Rohm nod Hans Mexico de R.L de C.V g2
RH DK Vietnam Holdings ApS

Rohm and Hans Vietnam Co Ltd

Rohm and Hans India FyI Ltd 60
Roltm and Hans UK Holdings Ltd

Morton lntemntionul Limited

Rohm nod Hans Electronic Materials Europe Ltd

Shipley Clsemicnlu Limited

Rohm and Hans UK Investment Ltd

Rohm nod Hans UK Limited

Lesnig Chemicals Limited

Rohm and Hnau Scotland Limited

Rohm and Hans Electronic Materials AE
Rohm and Hans Electronic Materials Holdings UK Ltd

10

99

23

100

100

100

100

100

50

100

100

99

100

83

too

50

50

100

100

100

100

60

100

58

to

100

100

100

99

100

100

100

51

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

99

100

10

100

100

100

100

100

100

50

100

100

100

Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

Locationtm 06 Ownership
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Australia

Chile

Colombia

Argentina

Australia

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Taiwan

Japan

Indiana

Jspnn

Delaware

Bermsdn

Bermuda

Delaware

Delaware

Germany

Germany

Germany

Hong Kong
Delaware

Thailand

Delaware

China

China

Chinu

Delaware

Denmark

Denmark

Denmark

Switzerland

Indonesia

Denmark

Denmark

Denmark

Korea

Delaware

japan

Taiwan

Poland

Chins

Denmark

Denmark

Mexico

Denmark

Vietnam

India

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kinedsm

United Kingdom
Sweden

United Kingdum
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

Ownership

.tc ...omaanv isThis list includes comnnnies for
.1 rr.. The fl. ri....i or more

Rohm and Haas Argentina S.R.L 52
Robin and Haas Bermuda Partner GP 03

Rohm and Haaa Denmark Bermsda GP ApS

Rohm and Hans Bermuda GP 64
Rohm and Hans Denmark Holding Company ApS

Finndinp Ltd

Limited
Liability Company Rohrn and Hans

Limited Liability Company Rohm and Hoas Ktumtcheskiye Tekhnologii

Rohm and Hans By

Argentina

Bermuda

Denmark

Bermoda

Denmark

Russia

Russia

Russia

Netherlands

90

46

100

47

100

100

100

100

100

Rohm and Hans
Bspaea Production Holding St

Rohm and Hans Espano S.L

Rohm and Hans Borope Sales ApS

Rohm and Hana International SNC 09
Rohar and Hans Eorope Services ApS

Rohm and Hans Europe Trading ApS

RH Switzerland Production Holding GmbH
Rubro and Haas Blectronic Materials Schweiz GmbH

Spain

Spain

Denmark

Prance

Denmark

Denmark

Switzerland

Switzerland

100

100

100

100

100

100

tOO

RH Deotschlond Prodoktton Holding GmbH
Rohm and Hoan Deutschlnad Prodokttnn GmbH Co KG

Rohm and Hans Nordinka AB

Germany

Germany
Swedea

100

100

100

Rotim and Hans Sooth Africa PTY Limited

Rohm and Hans France Finance SAS

Rohm and Hans Itolia Sri
Rohm and Hans Kimya Sanayi Limited Sirketi 06
Rohm and Hans Kimya Ttcaret Limited Sirketl 67
Rohm and Hans Kimyaaal Urualer Uretim Dogilim ye Ticaret AS 60
Rohm and Hans International SNC 69

RH France Production Holding SAS

Rohm and Hans Fraace S.A.S

Morton International S.A.S

Sooth Africa

Prance

Italy

Turkey

Turkey

Turkey

Prance

Praace

Prooce

Prance

100

100

100

99

99

59

99

100

100

100

Rohm and Hans Electronic Materials SAS

Rokm aad Haan Poiska 5p 0.0

Rohm and Hans Bermoda Partner II QP 70
Rnhm and Hnaa Bermuda GP 64

Rohm and Haas Chemicals Singapore Pte Ltd

Rohm and Haas China Holding ApS
Rohm and Hans China Holding Co Ltd

Rohm and Hans China Investment Holding Company Ltd

Rohm and Hans Denmark Bermoda Holding Company ApS
RH Asia Holding GmbH

Rohm and Hans Electronic Materials Asia Limited

RH Denmark Donggoan Holding Company ApS
Rahm and Hans Electronic Materials Shanghai Ltd

Rnhm and Hans Electronic Materials Singapore Pte Ltd 71
Rohm and Haas HK China Investments Limited

Rohm and Haas Electronic Materiala Singapore Pie Ltd 71
Rohm and Haaa Bermuda Partner GP 63

Rohm and Hans Denmark China loveatment ApS
PT Rohm and Hans Iadoneaia 61
Rohm and Haaa Bermuda Partner GP 03
Rohm and Haas Bermuda Partner II GP 70
Rohm and Hans Latinoamerica de R.L de C.V 72
Rohm and Hans Mexico de R.L de CV 62
Rnhm and Haao Shanghai Chemical Industry Co Ltd

Rohm and Hans Finland Dy
Rohm and Hans HK Dnnggoao Holding Limited

Rohm and Hans Electronic Moteriola Donggoan Ltd

France

Poland

Bermoda

Bermoda

Singapore

Denmark

China

Maoritioa

Denmark

Swltzerlaod

Hang Koag

Denmark

China

Singapore

Hong Knag

Singapore

Bermuda

Denmark

lndoaeaia

Bermuda

Bermuda

Mexico

Mexico

China

Finland

Hong Kong

Chiaa

100

100

99

53

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

50

100

50

53

100

100

100

100

too



Denmark

India

Turkey

Turkey

Turkey

Mexico

Netherlands

Singapare

Denmark

Germaey

Korea

Lexembuerg
Caeada

Caaeda

Texas

Texas

Delaware

Delaware

Malaysia

Bermada

Delaware

Delaware

Chile

Colombia

Venezuela

Japan

Japan

Japan

Japan

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Japan

Korea

Malaysia

Germany

Delaware

Delaware

Netherlaada

Taiwan

Korea

Japan

Japan

Japan

Taiwaa

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Vermone

Delaware

New Zealand

Philippines

Brazil

100

99

99

100

100

99

100

100

100

100

100

52

100

27

100

12

100

99

95

100

100

100

100

10

100

76

100

100

80

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

50

100

100

11

100

100

64

100

100

100

Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

This list incinden comoaniea for which the effective ownershin by The Dow Chemical Comonev is 50
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Rohm and Haan India Investment ApS
Rohm and Mass India Pvt Ltd 60

Rohm and Mass Kimyn Sannyi Limited Sirkeei 66
Rohm and Mass Kimyn Ticaret Limited Sirketi 67
Rohm aed Mass Kimysanl Urnnler Uretim Dngieim ye Ticsret A.S 68
Rohm and Mass Lntinosmericn de R.L de C.V 72
Rohm and Mass Nederlend B.V
Rohm and Mass Singapore Pie Ltd

Rohm and Mass
European Molding ApS 59

Rohm and Mass German Real Estate GmbM
Rohm and Mass Korea Co Ltd

Rohm and Mass Luxembourg Molding
Sari

Rohm and Mass Csandn Finance Compnny/Cempsgnie de Finance Rohm et Mass Canada

Rohm and Msns Cnnnds Investments IncJPlscemeeis Rohm et Mass Canada Inc 56
Rohm and Mans Texas Incorporated

Bnttlegronnd Water Company 73
RDM Monomer Melding Company

Rehm and Mans Investment Moldings Inr 58
Rohm and Mann Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Rohm and Mass Moldings Ltd 54
Rohm and Mass Equity Cerporation 55
Rohm and Mans Wood Treatment LLC

Rohsi and Mans Chile Limitndn 50
Rohm and Mnan Colombia Ltdn 51
Rohm and Mass de Venezneln C.A

Rohm and Mans Electronic Materials K.K
LeaRonnt Jnpnn

Y.K
Rohm ned Mnnn Jnpnn Knbunhikt Knisha

Japan Acrylic Chemical Co Ltd

Rohm and Mans Eqnity Corporation 55
Rohm and Mans Moldings LLC

Rohm nod Mans Chnmicnln LLC 53
Rohm and Mann Electronic Materials Moldings Inc

Rohm nnd Mann Electronic Materials CMP Inc

Rohm and Mans Electronic Materinln CMP Asia Inc

Niltn Mans Trading Compnny
Rohm and Mann Electronic Mnterinlo CMP Korea Ltd

Rohm and Mnan Electronic Materinlo CMP Sdn Bhd
Rohm and Mans Etectronic Mnterinls CMP Europe GmbM
Rohm and Mann Electronic Materials CMP Moldings Inc

Rohm and Mann International Moldings Inc

Rohm and Mass Asis Moldings By
Rohm nnd Mann Electronic Materinis AsinPncific Co Ltd

Rohm and Mann Electronic Materisin Kores Ltd

Rohm snd Mann Japan Moldings Y.K
Nittn Mans Incorporated 83

Rodel Particles Inc

Rohm and Mean Tniwnn Inc

Rohm and Mass Electronic Materials LLC
Rohm nnd Mans Equity Corporation 55

Rohm and Mann Latin America Inc

Rohm and Mans Chemicals LLC 53
Rohm and Mano Vermont Company

Rohm and Mans Investment Moldings bc 58
Rohm and Mann New Zealand Limited

Rahm nod Mann Philippines Inc

Rahm and Mans Quimica Ltdn
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ormore
Rohm and Hans Southeast Asia Inc Delaware

Silicon Valley Chemical Laboratories Inc Culifocnia

SAFECHEM North America LLC Delaware

Sentrechem US Inc Delaware

Hampshire Holdings Inc Delaware

Hampshire Chemical Corp Delaware

Siam Polystyrene Company Limited Thailand

Siam Styrene Monorper Co Ltd Thailand

Siam
Synthetic

Latex Company Limited Thailand

Styron
Asia Limited Hong Kong

TCM Technologies Inc Delaware

Texas LNG Holdings LLC Delaware

Union Carbide Corpsratioa New York

Amerchal Corporation
Delaware

Benefit Capital Massgement Corporation
Delaware

Calidrie Corporation Delaware

Carbide Chemical Thailand Limited Thailand

Excellent Quality Thailand Company Limited Thailand

Catalysts Adsorbento Process Systems Inc Maryland

DML Holding Inc 30 Delaware

Dow International Holdings Company 22 Delaware

Dow Petrochemicals Holding LLC 42 Delaware

Dow Qnimics Argentina S.A 20 Argentine

Dow Quimica Mexicana S.A de C.V Ig Mexico

Dow Venezuela C.A Venezsela

Global Industrial Corporation
New York

GWN Holding Inc 31 Delaware

Isttuutrian Carlisil 5.A Mexico

Modeland Intemattonal Holdings Inc 23 Barbados

Nippon Untcar Company Limited Japan

P.T Union Carbide Indonesia Indonesia

Pniiuetao Technology Park LLC Delaware

Seadrift Pipeline Corporation
Delaware

Serviciou de Quimicoo Agricolas Mexico

South Charleston Sewage Treatment Company West Virginis

UC Finco Inc Delaware

UCAR Emulston Systems International Inc Delaware

UCAR Emulsion Systems FZE Dubat

UCAR Interam Inc Delaware

UCAR Louisiana Pipeline Company Delaware

UCAR Pipeline Incorporated Delaware

UCMG LLC Delaware

Umetco Minerals Corporation
Delaware

Auntrulle and New Zealand Bxplnretinn Company Delaware

Blue Creek Coat Company Inc Delaware

Predate Properties Pty Ltd South Africa

Umetco Minerals Exploration Corporation Delaware

Union Carbide Asia Limited Hong Kong

Union Carbide Guengdong Zhongshan Company Limited Chine

Union Carbide Asia Pacific Inc Delaware

Union Carbide Chemicaln Plastics Technology LLC Delaware

Dow Petrochemicals Holding LLC 42 Delaware

Dow Technology Investments LLC 37 Delaware

Union Carbide Comercial Nicaragua S.A Nicaragua

Union Carbide Customer Services Pte Ltd Singapore

Union Cerbide Ethylene Dxide/Glycoi Company Delaware

Union Carbide Inter America Inc Delaware

Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

Location Oenership
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

This list inctedes comoanies for which the effective ownershin by Tire Dow Chemtcal Cumoaev to SOn

Location Ownership

ercent or more

Dow Peru S.A 24 Peru

Dow Qoimica Chileea S.A 21 Chile 10

Ueion Carbide Middle Eaat Limited Delaware 100

Union Carbide Pao America Inc Delaware 100

Dow Qeimica Argeetiea S.A 20 Argentina

Dow Qsimice Chilenu S.A 21 Chile

Union Carbide Philippines Far East Inc Plsilippines 100

Unien Carbide Pelyolefins Development Company Inc Delaware 100

Union Carbide South Africa Preprietary Limited South Africa 100

Union Carbide Subsidiary Inc Delaware 100

Univatien Technologies LLC Delaware 50

Union Carbide Subsidiary Inc Delaware 100

Union Carbide Wire Cable Company Inc Delaware 100

Union Polymers Sdn Bhd Malaysia 90

UNISDN Transformer Services Inc Delaware 100

Westbridge Insurance Ltd Eermuda 100

U.S Laboratories Inc Ohio 100

Administrative Easiness Systems Inc Ohio 100

PoIyCurb Inc Ohio 100

Warbler LLC Delaware 100

Location of incorporation or organization Primary location of organization is reported for partnerships
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

These companies are 50%owned nonconsolidaled affiliates of The Dow Chemical Company and are accounted for on the equity basis Separaie

financial statements for these companies are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10K These companies are oot controlled directly or

indirectly by The Dow Chemical Company Subsidtaries of these companies if any are not listed to this Exhibit 21

The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Mideast Systems S.A.E USC is 100% of which Dow Europe Holding B.V owns

99.96% Dow Europe CmbH owns 0.020% and Dow InterBranch B.V owns 0.020%
The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Turkiye Kimya Sanayi ye Ticaret Ltd Sirketi is 100% of which Dow Europe Holding

By owns 99.9988% and Dow IutelBranLh B.V uwias 0.0012%

The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Mycogen S.A de C.V is 100% of which Mycogen Crop Protection Inc owns 99% and

Agrigenetics Inc owns 1%
The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Quimica de Colombia S.A is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns 90%

and Dow Chemical InterAmerican Limited owns 10%
The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of DowBrands L.P is 100% of which Dow Holdings LLC owns 58% and DC Partnership

Management Inc owns 42%
The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Venezuela C.A is 100% of which Dow AgroSciences By owns 53.84% The Dow
Chemical Company owns 36.06% and Union Carbide Corporation owns 10.1%

The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Chemlech II L.P is 100% of which Dow Chemical Delaware Corp owns 72.46% The Dow

Chemical Company owns 22.39% and Ifco Inc owns 5.15%

The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow AgroSciences LLC is 100% of which Mycogeo Corporation owns 51% Cenlen Ag Inc

owns 38.9 1% and Rofan Services Inc owns 10.09%

10 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Polyol Belgium B.V.B.A is 100% of which Dow Benelux B.V owns 99.5% and Dow Europe

Holding B.V owns 0.5%

11 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Chemtech Portfolio Inc is 100% of which Dow Clobal Technologies Inc owns 66.82% and

Chemlech TI L.P owns 33.18%

12 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Port Saskatchewao Ethylene Storage Limited Partnership is 50% of which Dow Chemical

Canada ULC owns 49.9% and Port Saskatchewan Ethyleoe Storage Corporation owns 0.2% Midland Pipeline Corp owns 50% of Port

Saskaichewan Ethyleoe Storage Corporation

13 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Mycogen Corporation is 100% of which Rofao Services Inc owns 88.11% and Centen Ag Inc

owns 11.89%

14 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of DowBraods Inc is 100% of which Dow International Holdings Company owns 79%

Mycogen Corporation owns 11% Centen Ag Inc owns 8% and Rofan Services bc owns 2%
15 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Ion Holdings LLC is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns 60% and Rofan

Services Inc owns 40%
16 The Dow Chemical Company effective owoership of Dow Quimica Mexicaoa S.A de C.V is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns

84.58% and Union Carbide Corporation owns 15.42%

17 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow AgroSciences Argeotioa S.A is 100% of which Dow AgroSciences B.V owns 89.13%

and Agrigenetics Inc owns 10.87%

18 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dexco Polymers LP is 50% of which DW Dexco Investment LLC owns 49.5% and Dexco

Polymers Operating Company LLC owns 1% The Dow Chemical Company owns 50% of Dexco Polymers Operating Company LLC
19 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Zwijndrechl B.V.B.A is 100% of which Dow Europe Holdiog B.V owns 99.65% and

Dow InterBranch By owns 0.35%

20 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Quimica Argentina S.A is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owos 76.70%

Union Carbide Corporaiioo owns 23.20% sod Union Carbide Pan America bc owns 0.10%

21 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Quimica Chilena S.A is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Compaoy owns 89.81%

Union Carbide InterAmerica Inc owns 10.16% and Union Carbide Pan America Inc owns 0.03%

22 The Dow Chemical Company effective owoership of Dow International Holdings Compaoy is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns

72.0268% Union Carbide Corporation owns 19.1341% Essex Specialty Products LLC owos 8.7988% and Dow Chemical boternational Ltd owos

0.0403%

23 The Dow Chemical Company effective owoership of Modeland International Holdiogs Inc is 100% of which Dow Chemical Finance Canada ULC

owns 59.1% and Unioo Carbide Corporation owns 40.9%

24 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Peru S.A is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns 91.21% and Union

Carbide bierAmerica bc owns 8.79%
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

25 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership uf Valuepark Terneuzen C.V is 50% of which Terneuzen Partnership Services B.V owns

49.82% and Valuepark Terneuzen Beheer B.V owns 0.36% Dow Benelux B.V owns 50% of Valuepark Terneuzen Beheer BV
26 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Chemical International Pvl Ltd is 100% of which Dow Chemical Pacific Singapore

Private Limited owns 99.99% and Dow Chemical Singapore Private Limited owns 0.01%

27 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow AgroSciences India Pvt Lid is 100% of which Dow AgroSciences Agricultural Products

Limited owns 99.99% and DAS Agricultural Investment Holding Company Ltd owns 0.01%

28 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of PBBPolisur S.A is 100% of which Dow Investment Argentina S.A owns 72% and 3229809

Nova Scotia Company owns 28%

29 The Dow Chemical Company effeclive ownership of Dow Stade Produktions GmbH Co OHC is 100% of which SAFECHEM Europe CmhH

owns 70% and ANGUS Chemie GmbH owns 30% Dow Europe Holding B.V acts as general partner with 0% capital participation

30 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of DML Holding Inc is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns 88.84% and Union

Carbide Corporation owns 11.16%

31 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of CWN Holding Inc is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns 66.23% Essex

Specialty Products LLC owns 26.93% and Union Carbide Corporation owns 6.84%

32 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow AgroSciences Bolivia S.A is 100% of which Dow AgroSciences B.V owns 99% Dow

AgrnScienres Argentina S.A owns 0.5% and Dow AgroSciences Paraguay S.A owns 1.5%

33 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow AgroSciences Paraguay S.A is 100% of which Dow AgroSciences B.V owns 99.99%

and Dow AgroSciences Argentina S.A owns 0.01%

34 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Chemical Korea Limited is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns 85.82%

and Dow Europe Holding B.V owns 14.18%

35 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Saudi Arabia Company is 100% of which Dow Europe Holding B.V owns 85% and

Dow Interbranch B.V owns 15%
36 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Wolff Cellulosics CmbH Co OHG is 100% of which ANGUS Chemie CmbH owns

50% and SAFECHEM Europe GmbH owns 50% Dow Europe Holding B.V acts as general partner
with 0% capital participation

37 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Technology Investments LLC is 100% of which Dow Global Technologies Inc owns

50% and Union Carbide Chemicals Plastics Technology LLC owns 50%

38 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of DC Spectrum Holding C.V is 100% of which Dow International Holdings Company owns

99.999% and Dow Netherlands Holdings LLC owns 0.001%

39 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Cooperatieve DC Prisma Holding U.A is 100% of which DC Spectrum Holding C.V owns

99.999% and Dow Netherlands Investments LLC owns .001%

40 The Dow Chemical Company effeclive ownership of DC Galaxy Holding C.V is 100% of which Dow International Holdings S.A owns 99.928%

and flow Dutch Holding liv owns 0.O1Z%

41 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Pacific Plastics Thailand Limited is 100% of which Dow Chemical International Ltd owns

51% and The Dow Chemical Company owns 49%
42 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Petrochemicals Holding LLC is 100% of which The Dow Chemical Company owns

25% Dow Global Technologies Inc owns 25% Union Carbide Corporation owns 25% and Union Carbide Chemicals Plastics Technology LLC

owns 25%

43 The Dow Chemical Company effeclive ownership of Dow Egypt Services Limited is 100% of which Dow Mideast Systems S.A.E USC owns 75%

and Dow Europe GmbH owns 25%

44 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Olefinverbund GmbH is 100% of which Dow Europe Holding B.V owns 95% and Dow

Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Co KG owns 5%
45 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Izolan 000 is 58% via its ownership interest in RUS Polyurethanes Holding B.V

46 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Izolan Ukraine LLC is 58% via its ownership interest in RUS Polyurethanes Holding

47 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of KD Petrochemicals C.V is 50% of which Daulat Holdco LLC owns .00058011% Dow

Plastics and Chemicals Holding B.V owns .00058011% Daulat Canada Holding LP owns .00058011% and KDow Petrochemicals GmbH owns

1119651133% Dnw Petrorhemiealc Hnlding LLC owns 50% nf KDow Petrochemirsis GmhH

189



Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

48 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Investment Argentina S.A is 100% of which 3229809 Nova Scotia Company owns 97%

and Daulat Canada Holding LP owns 3%
49 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Australia Ply Ltd is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Company owns

99.999867% and Charles Lennig Company LLC owns .000133%

50 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Chile Limitada is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Company owns 99% and

Charles Lennig Company LLC owns 1%
51 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Ruhm and Haaa Columbia Ltda is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Company owns

94.899867% and Charles Lennig Company LLC owns 5.100133%

52 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haaa Argentina S.R.L is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Denmark Pinance A/S

owns 89.9942% and Rohm and Haas Company owns 10.0058%

53 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haaa Chemicals LLC is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Holdings LLC owns

76.80153% Rohm and Haas Company owns 23.13014% and Rohm and Haas Latin America Inc owns .06833%

54 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haaa Holdings Ltd is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Bermuda Ltd owns

99.971725% and Rohm and Haas Credit LLC owns .028275%

55 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Equity Corporation is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Credit LLC owns

82.731264% Rohm and Haas Chemicals LLC owns 12.666042% Rohm and Haas Electronic Materials LLC owns 3.031015% and Rohm and Haas

Company owns 1.57 1679%
56 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Canada Invesimenis Inc.Rlacements Rohm et Haas Canada Inc is 100% of

which CWN Holding Inc owns 1.6% Rohm and Haas Canada Pinance Company/Compagnie de Finance Rohm et Haas Canada owns 8.2% and

DML Holding Inc owns 0.2%

57 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haaa Canada LP is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Canada Investments

Inc/Placements Rohm et Haaa Canada Inc nwns 99.99% and 3243425 Nova Scotia Company owns .01%

58 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Investments Holdings Inc is 90.909% of which Rohm and Haas Company

owns 63.6363% and Rohm and Haas Texas Incorporated owns 27.2727%

59 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas European Holding ApS is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Equity Corporation

owns 99.999347% and Rohm and Haaa Denmark Investments LLC owns .000653%

60 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas India Pvt Ltd is 100% of which Rohm and Haas India Investment ApS

owns 99.9860% and Rohm and Haaa Denmark Finance A/S owns .0140%

61 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of PT Rohm end Haas Indonesia is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Denmark Finance A/S owns

99% and Rohm and Haaa Denmark China Investment ApS is 1%
62 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership Rohm and Haaa Mexico de R.L de CV is 100% of which RH DK Mexico Holding ApS

owns 99.999999% and Rohm and Haaa Denmark China Investment ApS owns .000001%

63 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Bermuda Partner GP is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Denmark Bermuda

Holding Company ApS owns 53.751817% Rohm and Haas Denmark Finance A/S owns 46.248181% and Rohm and Haas Denmark China ApS

owns .000002%

64 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Bermuda GP is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Bermuda Partner II OP owns

52.80% and Rohm and Haas Denmark Bermuda OP ApS owns 47.20%

65 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of PT Dow Indonesia is 100% of which Dow Chemical Pacific Singapore Private Limited owns

99% and Dow Chemical Singapore Private Limited owns 1%
66 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Kimya Sanayi Limited Sirketi is 100% of which Rohm and Heas Denmark

Holding Company ApS owns 99.9992% and Rohm and Haaa Denmark Finance A/S owns .0008%

67 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Kimya Ticaret Limited Sirkeli is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Denmark

Holding Company ApS owns 99.9999% and Rohm and Haas Denmark Finance A/S owns .0001%

68 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm end Haas Kimyasal Urunler Uretim Dagilim ye Ticaret AS is 60% of which Rohm and

Haas Denmark Holding Company ApS owns 59.9993% and Rohm and Haas Denmark Finance A/S owns .0007%

69 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haaa International SNC is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Denmark Holding

Company ApS owns 99.99999% and Rohm and Haas Europe Sales ApS owns .0001%

70 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Bermuda Partner II CF is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Denmark Finance

A/S owns 99.999999% and Rohm and Haas Denmark China Investment ApS owns .000001%
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Subsidiaries of The Dow Chemical Company

At December 31 2010

71 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Electronic Materials Singapore Pie Ltd is 100% of which Rohm and Haas

Electronic Materials Asia Limited owns 50% and RH Asia Holding GmbH owns 50%
72 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Rohm and Haas Latinoamerica DE R.L DE CV is 100% of which Rohm and Haas

Denmark Pinance A/S owns 99.999999% and Rohm and Haas Denmark China Investment ApS owns .000001%

73 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Battleground Water Company is 60.61% of which Rohm and Haas Texas Incorporated owns
1.77% and The Dow Chemical Company owns 8.84%

74 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow MP Produktion GmbFl Co OHG is 100% of which SAPECHEM Europe GmbH owns

70% and Dow MP Verwaltungs CmbH owns 30% Dow Europe Holding By acts as general partner with 0% capital participation

75 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Siam Polyethylene Company Limited is 50% of which Daulat Canada Holding LP owns 49%

and SD Group Service Co Ltd which is 50% owned by The Dow Chemical Company owns 2%
76 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Deutschland Vertriebs GmbH Co DHG is 100% of which SAPECHEM Europe

GmbH owns 70% and Dow Deutschland Verwaltungs Vertriebs GmbH owns 30% Dow Europe Holding B.V acts as general partner with 0%

capital participation

77 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow International Holdings S.A is 100% of which Dow Dutch Holdtng B.V owns 99.824%

and Dow Chemical International Ltd owns 0.176%

78 The Dow Chemical Cnmpany effective ownership of Dow Canada Holding LP is 100% of which Rohm and Haas Canads Investments

Inc/Placements Rohm et Haas Canada Inc owns 99.9999% and 3243425 Nova Scotia Company owns 0.0001%

79 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Dow Chemical East Africa Limited is 100% of which Dow Europe Holding B.V owns 90%
and Dow InterBranch B.V owns 10%

80 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Daulat Canada Holding LP is 100% of whtch Dow Canada Holding LP owns 99.9999% snd

3243425 Nova Scotia Company owns 0.0001%

81 The Dow Chemical Company effective ownership of Santa Vhoria Acucar Alcool Ltda Is 100% of which Dow Brastl S.A owns 50% and Dow
InierBranch B.V owns 50%

82 Dow Corning Corporation is 50% owned nonconsolidated affiliate of The Dow Chemical Company and is accounted for on the equity basis As

significant subsidiary separate financial statements for Dow Corning Corporation are presented in this Annual Report on Porm 10K pursuant to

Rule 309 of Regulation SX Subsidiaries of Dow Corning Corporation if any are not listed in this Exhibit 21

83 These companies are 50%owned consolidated affiliates of The Dow Chemical Company Subsidiaries of these companies if any are not listed in

this Exhibit 21
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm EXHIBIT 23a

We consent to the incorporation by reference of our reports dated February 18 2011 relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial

statement schedule of The Dow Chemical Company and subsidiaries the Company and the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10K of The Dow Chemical Company for the
year ended December 31 2010 tn the following

Registration Statements of The Dow Chemical Company

Form S3

No 333 140859

Form 34

No 33388443

Form S8

Nos 64560

33 21748

3351453

3352841

3358205

3361795

333 27381

33340271

33343730

33349183

333674 14

333 88443

333 91027

333103518

333103519

333105080
333 115185

333122932

333145015

333162910

333170384

is DELDITTE TOUCHE LLP

Deloitte Touche LLP
Midland Michigan

Februsry 18 2011
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Analysis Research Planning Corporations Consent EXHIBIT 23b

The Dow Chemical Company

Analysis Research Planning Corporation ARPC hereby consents to the use of ARPCs name and the reference to ARPCs reportc
in this Annual

Report on Form 10K of The Dow Chemical Company for the year ended December 31 2010 and the incorporation by reference thereof in the followtng

Registration Statements of The Dow Chemical Company

Form S3

No 333140859

Form

No 33388443

Form

Nos 264560

33 21748

335 1453

335284

3358205

33 61795

33327381

33340271

33343730

333 49183

333674 14

33388443

333 91027

333103518

333 103519

333 105080

333115185

333122932
3331450 15

3331629 10

333 170384

Is THOMAS FLORENCE

Thomas Florence

President

Analysts Research Planning Corporation

February 16 2011
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm EXHIBIT 23c

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference tn the Registration Statements on Form S3 No 333140859 Form S4 No 333 88443 and Form

S8 Nos 264560 3321748 3351453 3352841 33 58205 3361795 33327381 33340271 33343730 33349183 33367414 333 88443

33391027 333103518 333103519 333105080 333 115185 333122932 333 145015 333162910 and 333170384 of The Dow Chemical

Company of our report dated February 2011 relating to the financial statements of Dow Corning Corporation which appears tn this Form 10

Is FricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Detroit Michigan

February 17 2011

194



The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries EXHIBIT 31a

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

Andrew Liveris certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10K of The Dow Chemical Company

Based on my knowledge this
report

does not contatn any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary to make the

statements made in
light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a 15e and Sd 15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13alS and

15dlSffl for the registrant and have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to

ensure that material information
relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this
report

is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporung to be designed under uui

supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent

fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the

registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent function

all
significant

deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably

likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant
role in the registrants internal control

over financial reporting

Date February 18 2011

/s/ ANDREW LIVERIS

Andrew Liveris

President Chief Executive Officer and

Chsirman of the Board
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries EXHIBIT 31b

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

William Weideman certify that

have reviewed this annual
report on Form 10K of The Dow Chemical Company

Based on my knowledge this
report does not contain any untrue atatement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary to make the

statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13al5e and l5d15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules l3al5f and

lsd15f for the registrant and have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to

ensure Ihal material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent

ftscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case uf an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the

registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent function

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably

likely to adversely affect the registrants ability lo record process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the registrants internal control

over financial reporting

Date February 18 2011

/s/ WILLIAM WEIDEMAN
William Weideman

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries EXHIBIT 31a

Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

Andrew Liveris President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of The Dow Chemical Company the Company certify that

the Annual Report on Form 10K of the Company for the year ended December 31 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the

Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Secujities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

/s/ ANDREW LIVERIS

Andrew Liverts

President Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board

February 18 2011
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The Dow Chemical Company and Subsidiaries EXHIBIT 31b

Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the
SarbbOxleY

Act of 2002

William Weideman Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer oflMSLPflS$jpany the Company certify that

the Annual Report on Form 10K of the Company for the year ended December 31gt7i1ed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the

Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects
finUiOilLtIjiJion and results of operations of the Company

Is WILLIAM WEIDEMAN
William Weideman Washington tjc
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 18 2011
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